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CORPORATE /7

Lifestyle International Holdings Limited (together with its subsidiaries, the
“"Group”) is a Hong Kong-based retail operator that specializes in the
operation of mid to upper-end department stores in Hong Kong and
mainland China. The Group’s two SOGO stores in Hong Kong including
the flagship store in Causeway Bay ("SOGO CWB"), the largest and
leading department store in Hong Kong, as well as the Tsim Sha Tsui
store ("SOGO TST"). SOGO TST quickly established itself as a new
shopping landmark after it was relocated to a prime and convenient
address in Tsim Sha Tsui in November 2014. In mainland China, we have
three stores in operation and our Shanghai Jiuguang store was first
established in 2004 with a similar business format to that of our flagship
SOGO CWSB, and is now widely recognized as one of the most sought-
after shopping locations in Shanghai. Since their opening in January and
May 2009 respectively, our Suzhou Jiuguang and Dalian Jiuguang have
been gaining traction and delivering steady performances. Shenyang
Jiuguang, our fourth Jiuguang Store in mainland China, was closed down
in December 2015 after two years operations due to weak local operating
environment. The Group’s commercial complex project in Daning,
Shanghai is currently under construction and is preliminarily scheduled for
completion in 2018. This project is in line with the Group'’s strategy of
expanding sensibly in mainland China. Upon commencement of
operation, the Daning project is expected to strengthen the Group’s
presence and influence in Shanghai. With the Group's strong financial
position and operating cash flows as well as its unparalleled brand equity,
the Group is always prepared to take on new investment opportunities to
further fuel its growth momentum in the future.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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The Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 3#&%} ()

Head Office and Principal Place
of Business in Hong Kong

20th Floor, East Point Centre
555 Hennessy Road
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

Principal Banker
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
Auditor

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Solicitors

Reed Smith Richards Butler
Sit, Fung, Kwong & Shum

Hong Kong Share Registrar and
Transfer Office

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Cayman Islands Share Registrar and
Transfer Office

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company
(Cayman) Limited

4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

Share Information

Place of listing: The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Main Board
Stock code: 1212
Board lot: 500 shares
Financial year end: 31 December
Closing share price at 31 December 2015: HK$10.36

Market capitalization at 31 December 2015: HK$16,603 million

Website

www.lifestylehk.com.hk
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FINANCIAL
HIGHLIGHTS

BRI TS a2

Operating Results & & #£1&

HK'000 F#&7T 2014 2013 2012 2011
(Restated)
(E71)
Sales proceeds SHEFBRIE 13,836,382 13,616,709 13,795,500 12,883,804 12,052,081
Turnover &3 %8 6,171,393 5,969,740 5,955,335 5,523,443 5,131,950
Profit before taxation & #5 A& 5 2,675,411 2,831,865 3,150,477 2,754,961 2,594,401
Profit for the year attributable to
owners of the Company
REFRNNBEAR AEREF] 1,914,392 2,143,994 2,448,247 2,057,461 1,867,170
Basic earnings per share (HK cents)
BREREF (B 118.69 131.12 147.83 123.49 111.25
Total dividends per share (HK cents)
TR B BT (BIL) 59.1 59.1 49.4 44.9
For the year ended 31st December #Z + = A =+—HILFEZ
Turnover Growth ¥R
HK$ Million (o)
HEBT (o)
FEAMEE
7,000
0 6,171
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (CONTINUED) Bf## % (#)
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‘ e Continued to outperform broader market
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o ® Rejuvenated SOGO CWB
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® New SOGO TST performance exceeded
management'’s expectation

MARPERARREYERERY

| CHINA [

Z

Remain Stable . ;J%Jt%egggj\g/th driver
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Shanghai Jiuguang kicked
off its renovation program to
reinvigorate the store's image.
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The Group issued US$300 million 10-year
(maturing June 2025) unsecured guaranteed
bonds, which bear a fixed interest rate of
4.50% per annum.

AEEBIT—E 1+ FH 300,000,000 % T ¢
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NOVEMBER+— A

Thankful Week once again achieved strong
results, with total sales revenue

reached HK$1,366.1 million.

[ B E 1 SEEBERAI TN EE
#HHE W AE1,366,100,000 8 7T °
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SOGO CWB store underwent a series of

renovations to give the main entrance, the

ground-floor atrium in the new wing and SOGO
CLUB on the 11th floor to 16th floor a facelift.
BB RAETHNIRE  BEFM -
FEBENPER 11 £ 16121 SOGO CLUB
HITHIH -

DECEMBER +—A

The relaunched SOGO TST's first-year sales in
2015 exceeded management’s expectation.
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Lau Luen Hung, Thomas |88
Chairman /&

E
CHAIRMAN'S &5
STATEMENT

2015 was a challenging year for the global economy and China, in
particular, saw its GDP growth sliding to below 7%, the slowest in 25
years. Amidst weakening economy, sliding demand for luxury goods by
the Chinese and a strong US dollar, retail market in both China and Hong
Kong continued to experience correction throughout 2015.

Lifestyle International stayed focused on reinforcing its business strengths
and leading market position despite the challenging operating
environment. The Group managed to deliver a set of resilient financial
results for the year 2015 as it continued to offer top-notch lifestyle
shopping experiences for its customers, with its operations in Hong Kong
outperformed the market average.

During the year, both SOGO Causeway Bay ("SOGO CWB") and
Shanghai Jiuguang continued to focus on their renovation programs
seeking to enhance customers’ shopping experiences. Given the scale of
the renovation works and the need to minimize interferences on normal
operations at the store front, the revamp works had been scheduled to
be carried out in phases, and will continue into 2016. These asset
enhancement initiatives are necessary as part of the efforts to strengthen
further the Group's status as the most sought-after shopping destination
in each of the two cities, a move that is expected to contribute to better
store performance down the road.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group's turnover recorded
small growth but saw the net profit eased 10.7% to HK$1.9 billion.
Earnings per share for the year were HK cents 118.7, down 9.2% year on
year. Despite a decline in the reported profit due mainly to a relative
small investment income as compared to that of the previous year, the
board of directors is pleased to recommend a final cash dividend of HK
cents 34.3 per share. Together with the interim dividend of HK cents 28.9
already paid during the year, the payout for the year 2015 totaled HK
cents 63.2, higher than the total dividend of HK cents 59.1 in 2014. It
represented 53.2% of reported profit.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED) /&R ()

Notwithstanding a tough operating environment, the Group's operations
in Hong Kong delivered solid performance during the year under review.
Defying the broad market downturn, the Group’s retail operations in
Hong Kong outperformed the average of the city’s retail sector by
recording 2.3% sales growth. The partially revamped SOGO CWB store
already offers shoppers a more stylish and shopper-friendly environment
that is commensurate with its enriched brand portfolio seeking to cater to
a broader customer base. These strategic efforts have proved some
success in the store’s sales efficiency and productivity. Following the
relocation in November 2014 to another prime landmark in Tsim Sha Tsui,
SOGO Tsim Sha Tsui ("“SOGO TST"), with a significantly improved
product mix, quickly attracted a huge following of old and new
customers. This relaunched store has been growing steadily and
delivered better-than-expected sales performance.

Against the backdrop of a slowing economy and intensified competition
brought about by different on-line off-line retailing formats, coupled with
a change in consumer preferences, we start to see diverging retailing
environment among different cities in China, with the bigger and service
oriented cities tending to be more resilient. We saw our Shanghai
Jiuguang and Suzhou Jiuguang continued to exhibit their strengths and
solid market positioning amid stiff competition but the Group had to
close down operation of its relatively young store in Shenyang due to the
poor local economic conditions. This strategic decision was to help the
Group reallocating its resources to other areas which are expected to be
more productive.

Leveraging its leadership position, Beiren Group, our strategic investment
in Shijiazhuang, Hebei Province, continued to deliver stable performance
during 2015, amidst a highly competitive operating environment.

Construction work of the Group's new retail and commercial complex in
Daning, Shanghai is currently under construction and proceeding
smoothly. The project, tentatively scheduled for completion in 2018, will
feature a commercial complex, comprising a large-scale retail venue,
office blocks and the Group's second Jiuguang store in Shanghai.

Looking into 2016, we expect the downward correcting trend of the
economy and retailing environment in both mainland China and Hong
Kong is likely to continue. Notwithstanding the expected headwinds, our
resourceful management team has a proven track record of mastering
changes and creating shareholder value during challenging times and the
Group will stay focused on consolidating its business strengths and
leading market position through a variety of strategies and measures. The
Group will continue to work on its store renovation program and at the
same time to improve the brand and product portfolios of its existing
stores.

Whilst remaining open to new strategic investment opportunities, the
Group looks forward to generating greater returns for its shareholders
with its existing assets and operations.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED) FFE#& (&)

On behalf of the board, | would like to express my sincerest gratitude to
all our management team members and staff for their industrious efforts
during the year. | also extend my appreciation to the unrelenting support
of our customers, business partners and shareholders. We shall be
grateful for your continuing trust and support in the years to come.

Lau Luen Hung, Thomas
Chairman

29 February 2016
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Market Overview

Economies around the world staged recoveries at varying paces during
2015, with China continued to grapple with slowdown and saw its gross
domestic product slowed from 7.3% in 2014 to 6.9%, first time below 7%
in quarter of a century.

During the year, China continued its efforts in shifting the country’s major
economic driver from fixed asset investments to domestic consumption.
Despite the additional efforts by the government to stimulate domestic
demand and consumption, the weakening momentum of the underlying
economy has dampened in general consumer sentiment and more so the
appetite for luxury goods and high-quality staple goods. For the whole
year, retail sales in mainland China grew 10.7% over 2014 to RMB30.09
trillion, a notable slowdown comparing with the 12% growth in the
previous year.

In Hong Kong, the Group’s home market, economic growth remained
moderate throughout the review period as slack global demand curtailed
export growth and financial market volatility weighed on consumer
sentiment. The city’'s GDP rose 2.4% in 2015, compared to 2.3% in 2014,
but the growth slowed from 2.2% in the third quarter to only 1.9% in the
fourth quarter of 2015. Growth in the retail market was also undermined
by sluggish local demand and a drop in tourist arrivals, especially those
from mainland China. Weakening Asian currencies prompted both local
consumers and tourists to visit alternative destinations including Japan
and Korea. Visitor arrivals to Hong Kong fell 2.5% to 59.3 million in
aggregate for 2015 with visitation from mainland China experienced a 3%
decline. For the whole year, retail sales in Hong Kong dropped 3.7% year-
on-year, compared with a 0.2% dip in 2014. The fall in sales was especially
pronounced in luxury goods categories, including jewelry and watches.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) & &5tk 24T ()

In spite of global economic headwinds, Lifestyle International stayed
focused on implementing its sound business strategies anchored on
strong brand equity, service excellence and appropriate marketing plans.
Whilst the Group stayed committed to long-term growth, it took effective
measures to balance short-term sales growth and profitability while
enhancing the image and brand equity of its stores in a way that will bring
to its long term benefits.

Financial Review 2015

Despite the challenging business environment, the Group'’s leadership
position remained unrivalled as it stayed focused on consolidating its
business strengths and brand equity. During the period under review, the
Group ramped up marketing efforts and promotions to strengthen
customer loyalty and boost shopper traffic in its stores. As a result, the
Group delivered a set of healthy and steady results for 2015, with
aggregate gross sales proceeds ("GSP”) growing 1.6% to approximately
HK$13.8 billion.

In 2015, the Group's operations in Hong Kong continued to outperform
the broader market. SOGO Causeway Bay ("SOGO CWB") store and
SOGO Tsim Sha Tsui ("SOGO TST") store managed to achieve a 2.3%
growth in aggregate GSP, a pleasing outcome at a time of weak
consumer sentiment and slowing economic growth, thanks in part to a
lower base for its SOGO TST due to store relocation during 2014. As with
previous years, the Hong Kong operations continued to contribute
significantly to the Group's earnings and their combined GSP constituted
73.2% of the Group's total GSP.

Meanwhile, the Group’s operations in mainland China painted a mixed
picture amid fierce competition and lackluster domestic demand. GSP of
Shanghai Jiuguang managed to record 3.1% growth, with the strong
growth in the TH 2015 offset by the slight negative growth in 2H. Suzhou
Jiuguang performed steadily throughout the period under review despite
intensified competition resulted from entry of new players, thanks to the
strong brand equity of Jiuguang and appropriate business strategies. In
light of fragile business environment, Dalian Jiuguang recorded a 23.8%
negative growth in sales revenue. In December 2015, the Group closed
down operation of the relatively young Shenyang Jinguang due to
unsatisfactory performance amid the weak economy in northeast China.

Turnover and Sales Proceeds

For the year 2015, Lifestyle International saw its turnover increased 3.4%
over the previous year while total gross sales proceeds (net of VAT),
derived from both direct and concessionaire sales transactions, was up by
1.6%. In terms of sales contribution by region, the Group’s operations in
Hong Kong and mainland China generated HK$10,134.1 million and
HK$3,702.3 million worth of sales proceeds, respectively, accounting for
73.2% and 26.8% (2014: 72.8% and 27.2%) of the Group's total gross sales
proceeds, respectively.

Gross Profit and Concessionaire Rates

The Group's gross profit margin as a percentage of turnover was 60.1%,
similar to that in 2014. Gross profit totaled HK$3,706.9 million, up 3.4%
from HK$3,583.8 million recorded in the previous year. During the year,
the Group continued to implement its strategy of seeking profitable
growth with enhancements in the brand and product portfolios and
managed to improve the average concessionaire rate from approximately
23.2% in 2014 to approximately 23.6%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) & &5t &k 24T ()

Net Profit Attributable to Shareholders

The Group’s net profit attributable to shareholders for the year amounted
to HK$1,914.4 million, down 10.7% from HK$2,144.0 million in the
previous year. The drop in profit was mainly a result of a much smaller
investment income from the Group’s financial investment portfolio as
compared to last year, coupled with a one-off costs relating to the closure
of the unprofitable Shenyang Jiuguang. As such, the Group’s net profit
margin, as a percentage of turnover, shrank from 35.9% in 2014 to 31.0%
in 2015.

Selling and Distribution Costs

Aggregate selling and distribution costs of the Group increased 4.8%
over the previous year, which was mainly attributable to higher rental,
depreciation and other expenses associated with the full-year operation
of the new SOGO TST. Total selling and distribution expenses, as a
percentage of total gross sales proceeds, increased from approximately
8.8% in 2014 to 9.0% for the period under review, mainly due to the weak
sales number of the Shenyang Jiuguang store.

Administrative Expenses
The increase in the Group’s general administrative expenses is in line with
the general inflation and is comparable to the same period in 2014.

Staff Costs

Staff costs (excluding those of the directors) increased 3.0% to
approximately HK$439.4 million during the year under review. The salaries
and wages increase for the Group's existing staff during the year was
largely in line with the market and general inflation. Total number of full-
time staff of the Group at the end of 2015 was around 2,377 with some
825 in Hong Kong and the rest in mainland China.

Other Income, Gains and Losses

Decrease in other income, gains and losses were mainly due to inclusion
of a one-off costs provision relating to the closure of the Shenyang store
of approximately HK$22 million.

Investment Income

The Group’s investment income fell to HK$163.5 million from HK$413.8
million in 2014. Investment income comprised mainly interest income of
HK$150.7 million from the Group's bank deposits and net investment
income of HK$12.8 million from a portfolio of yield enhancing financial
products amounting to approximately HK$5,092.7 million as at the year
end. The relatively small net investment income, which comprised fair
value changes, interest received and receivable and dividend income
from corporate bonds, fixed income type financial products and listed
equities, was mainly due to mark-to-market fair value loss whereas it was
a gain in 2014. Using the average bank balance during the year of
HK$8,491.1 million and the average investment portfolio size of
HK$4,467.1 million, the Group’s average interest rate on bank deposits
and average yield on the investment portfolio were approximately 1.8%
and 0.3% respectively. As a result, the average annual yield of the Group's
bank balances and investment portfolio taken as a whole was only
approximately 1.3% (2014: 3.4%).

BRERFER BRI FEE
REBNFERREHERENFER
1,914,400,0008 7T  BELF#)2,144,000,000
PITTER10.7% © g A BT E E R LR
EFRREBMYBREAAHFERIKE
WA B PR B B NPT (8 22 3R 5 A T
E—RMERMME - Bt REBREHE
RATHEFEN TR - T —MFR359%
REZZT—HFH31.0%

HER 2 HEA
RNEBMHE R HRAREREF LT
48%  TZRANFADER N2 FEE
FEANRSEE HEREMER -2
HERDHASIREHEEMSHRIALEZ
Bl BT HFH8.8% LT =D
HfEY9.0% » EERPEG A SIS RS
EHFHE -

THMAX
NEER —RITEG IE SRR E 2 -
I 8 = B —PUF R ELLEARE -

BITRAE

REBEFE BEIRA(TERBEESHE)
851 3.0% 2 £9439,400,000 47T © REE IR
BEINFERIAENFRNTTIEETS
NMBIRABRAY - REER_-_T—HFF
ER2BE T ASK2377% - K 825%
REE TN - HRRETERM -

HiWA - RS RER

HpA - s kEERd  TZ2887
HBEGEGEEMEL —RERBERY
22,000,000/ 7T °

BEWA

AREFBHRERAB -_Z—UEHD
413,800,000 7% 7T T F£ 2 163,500,000 7T
BREWAEZEBEAEERNIRITFRFE
1 A 150,700,000 7% 7T K ¢ BB (L B3R > 3%
EEMLBAE (RFKEHY AS5092,700,000
JC) 815 2 SF R E WA 12,800,000 7T © 48
HEADFEEWA - EREDEES &
BEERFNE/ERR ETRENAFE
B8 B RERFBERE  HEE
AREMEAFENEMELEZEE 0
ZT-MFA AR - KAFANTFHIR
17 45 8% /5 8,491,100,000 78 7T N F 19 #% & 4B
A R A 4,467,100,0005 7T - AEBIRTT
FERE G F R R E HE 8T B )R
D BI4951.8% 1 0.3% B - NEER
RITHEB R ERAEEM S TR RE
T4 51.3% ( —F—PO4F : 3.4%) o

17

Rl e = A U e

Ee Rt = B



G0z Moday [enuuy  paliwi] sBulp|oH |euoneuiaiul o|A1sa

18

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) &2 &tk 24 ()

Finance Costs

The Group's total finance costs consisted mainly of interest expenses on
bank loans and interests payable in respect of the bonds payable. The
aggregate amount of interest incurred, before capitalization, was
approximately HK$481.8 million (2014: HK$429.1 million) for the whole
year. The finance costs charged to the profit and loss statement
aggregated approximately HK$284.7 million, up from HK$267.3 million in
2014, was mainly due to additional interest incurred for the US$300
million bond issued during the year. Using the average loan and bond
payable balance for the year of HK$11,520.2 million, the average interest
rate of the Group’s debt portfolio, before interest capitalization, was
approximately 4.2 % (2014: 4.0%).

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Notwithstanding a drop in the net profit which as explained above was
due mainly to a drop in investment income, the Group’s EBITDA
(excluding also investment income, fair value changes on investment
properties, share of results of associates and a joint venture and other
non-recurring items, if any) for the year remained stable at around
HK$2,639.4 million (2014: HK$2,592.3 million). As at the end of 2015,
before counting the investment portfolio which was worth approximately
HK$5,092.7 million (2014: HK$3,841.6 million), the Group’s net debt
increased moderately from approximately HK$2,211.4 million in 2014 to
HK$3,846.9 million.

The Group's cash at banks amounted to about HK$8,669.6 million (2014:
HK$8,312.5 million) as at the end of 2015, of which HK$6,284.2 million is
kept in Hong Kong. Of the cash kept at banks in Hong Kong,
approximately 99.6% was denominated in US dollar and Hong Kong
dollar and approximately 0.4% in RMB. Of those being kept in mainland
China, approximately 8.9% was denominated in USD and approximately
91.1% in RMB.

The Group's bank loans at the end of 2015 amounted to approximately
HK$4,053.8 million (2014: HK$4,354.4 million) and bonds payable
amounted to approximately HK$8,462.8 million (2014: HK$6,169.5 million).
The bank loans comprised an outstanding loan of approximately
HK$1,801.4 million which was drawn under the Hong Kong dollar-
denominated five-year (due in September 2016) secured loan facility in
the amount of HK$5,000 million, of which HK$3,336 million (or two-third
of the facility) is in the form of a term loan, repayable semi-annually
during the five-year term whereas the remaining one-third (equivalent to
HK$1,664 million) of the facility is of a revolver nature and was not utilized
at the year end. Interest on this loan facility is calculated with reference to
HIBOR. The remaining bank loan balances comprised: (1) secured project
loans of RMB882.7 million (equivalent to HK$1,041.6 million), bearing
interest calculated with reference to the PBOC lending rate, and with
approximately RMB1,853.6 million (equivalent to HK$2,187.2 million)
facility still available, (2) short-term US dollar loans totaling US$104.6
million (equivalent to HK$810.8 million) drawn under a US$255 million
facility, which is secured against certain of the Group's financial
investments, with the interest calculated with reference to LIBOR; and (3)
unsecured loan of HK$400 million, bearing interest calculated with
reference to HIBOR. As at the year end, the Group had aggregate un-
utilized banking facilities in the amount equivalent to approximately
HK$5,016.8 million (2014: HK$5,875.6 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) & &5t &k 24T ()

The bonds payable of HK$8,462.8 million (or US$1,100 million at maturity)
(2014: US$800 million at maturity) at the year-end comprised a US$500
million 5-year (bearing interest at 5.25% and maturing in January 2017); a
US$300 million 10-year (bearing interest at 4.25% and maturing in
October 2022) unsecured guaranteed bonds, both were issued during
2012; and a US$300 million 10-year (bearing interest at 4.5% and maturing
in June 2025) unsecured guaranteed bonds issued in June 2015.

The Group’s net debt to equity ratio (defined as total borrowings less
cash and bank balances divided by equity attributable to the owners of
the Company) was 34.6% (2014: 19.9%).

Foreign Exchange Management

The functional currency of the Company and its major subsidiaries in
Hong Kong is HKD in which most of the transactions are denominated
whereas the functional currency of those subsidiaries operating in
mainland China is RMB in which most of their transactions are
denominated. As described under the “Liquidity and Financial
Resources” section above, certain monetary assets and liabilities of the
Group are denominated in RMB, USD and to a small extent, in other
foreign currencies. The Group currently does not have a comprehensive
foreign currency hedging policy as HKD, in which most of the Group's
transactions are denominated, is effectively pegged to USD.
Management monitors closely the Group’s foreign exchange exposure
and will consider taking appropriate measures (including hedging means
where appropriate) to mitigate any significant foreign currency risk.
During the year, the Group converted most of its RMB bank deposits kept
in Hong Kong into USD to reduce the amount of exchange loss as a result
of depreciation of the RMB. The exchange loss realized during the year
was relatively small and has been included under other income, gains and
losses.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s certain leasehold land and
buildings in Hong Kong with carrying values aggregating approximately
HK$1,325.6 million (2014: HK$1,369.9 million), together with shares of
certain subsidiaries of the Group, had been pledged to secure the
HK$5,000 million (2014: HK$5,000 million) loan facility granted to the
Group, of which HK$3,336 million (2014: HK$3,336 million) was utilized. In
addition, certain of the Group’s property, plant and equipment in
mainland China and the Group's financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss with carrying values amounting to approximately HK$7,242.6
million (2014: HK$7,024.3 million) and HK$1,174.7 million (2014:
HK$1,790.9 million) respectively had been pledged to secure loan
facilities in the amount of approximately RMB2,736.3 million (2014:
RMB3,040 million) and US$255 million (2014: US$255 million) respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) &2 &tk 24 ()

Contingent Liabilities
The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2015.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals
There were no material acquisitions or disposals during the period under
review.

Review of Operations

Despite the challenging business environment both in Hong Kong and
mainland China, Lifestyle International once again delivered a set of
satisfactory results. Leveraging its strong brand equity and solid
fundamentals, the Group'’s operations in Hong Kong and mainland China
remained on a firm footing.

Hong Kong

SOGO CWB

Due to slack tourist spending and weak local consumption, SOGO CWB
recorded a 4.5 % decline in sales revenue for the year but continued to
be the largest contributor to the Group's revenue and profit in 2015.

Being a barometer of the domestic spending and general economic
climate, the store’s performance was inevitably affected by changes in
the economic performance and market sentiment, including volatility in
the stock and property market, and the impact was more apparent in the
second half of the year. Nonetheless, with its leading market position and
unrelenting effort to optimize its sales and marketing strategy, business
of SOGO CWB fared better than most other retailers.

As a popular shopping destination, the store’s key operation indicators
remained resilient amid deteriorating consumer sentiment. Stay-and-buy
ratio rose slightly from 34.6% in 2014 to 34.9% in 2015 while ticket size
was down 3.1% to HK$850.

During the period under review, SOGO CWB continued its renovation
programs to reinforce its leadership position and broaden its customer
base, which coupled with the sluggish retail environment, contributed to
a 2.4% decline in the store's overall traffic footfall.

The store revamp during the year included giving the main entrance, the
ground-floor atrium in the new wing and SOGO CLUB on the 11th floor
to 16th floor a facelift, with a view to creating the best shopping
environment for customers. The Group also made continuous efforts to
refine the brand and product mix, with an aim to further improving store
efficiency and sales productivity.

As with previous years, the Thankful Week anniversary events in May and
November were seen as important shopping festivals in Hong Kong. The
biannual promotion events once again achieved strong results, with total
sales revenue reached HK$1,001.7 million for the May Thankful Week and
HK$1,140.7 million for the November Thankful Week, respectively.

RREE
RZEB—RAF+-RA=+—H AEHEL
BAEAEARAAE -

EXRRBEREE
H Bl BRI M AU S S -

E a0

BE B Rh B A A 2 R BRI T W Bk
B NBERB - OERABES - BE
HB XN mERE M RIREER  AEH
B8 N o B A 3t SR TS AR A VA FBRD 25 o

)

AR R
HRIREEE N T RAMEE RS - il
HESNARFEEIFHE WA 4.5% K1E
BREERAEEN - —AF WA KT
B KR

ERAHIBE R EREERENIERG
ZIENERRBAZIEBERARTISASR
BT E BERTMEDLS X
TENRSETYFERPE - BEWL
BEHRENT S RER(CEHERM
TS HERERR S m e M@ S - RS
HOEBEREBNASHHMTER -

TERBYED - ZIEMEBLEIBIEEY
BEELIBTNAREE - EHBEEL X
BT FERMSEAE T —HF
H134.9%  MERX S T #3.1% % 850
BIT e

ORI - SRR BE A B
2 NEERHELSMULRBEAEZRPE
e BUE RHE R 0 B ERB RN LIS R
BEERE NE24% -

FREEEBH TIEBERER - FEM
TEIFEE R 11 E 16 H) SOGO CLUB#ETT
BH - BRREFPBEXEENENR
B REBIRTEZE HECmiE MEMmE
A AE—FRSPIUERERIFEED -

WMEF - AART AN RHE]BFLRL
DEDRERBEEENBYE - —F W
REMERSBIRERRIEE > LA TR
SE R+ —A TR E ] WEEEWAD
7113 1,001,700,0007% 7T 5 1,140,700,000 78
T o



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) & &5t &k 24T ()

SOGO TST

SOGO TST quickly established itself as a new shopping landmark after it
was relocated to a prime and convenient address in Tsim Sha Tsui in
November 2014. The relaunched boutique-like SOGO TST grew steadily
and its first full-year sales revenue in 2015 already exceeded that of the
old store in 2013, the year before it was closed.

Its stay-and-buy ratio, average ticket size and traffic footfall all performed
well above the management’s projections. Similar to its CWB counterpart,
the May and November Thankful Week events were also strong revenue
drivers for the store, with sales revenue achieving HK$183.3 million and
HK$225.4 million, respectively.

Mainland China

Shanghai Jiuguang

As one of the most popular shopping locations in Shanghai, the Group's
Shanghai Jiuguang remained on a solid footing in spite of intensifying
competition and weak market sentiment. For the first half of 2015, the
store performed strongly, with sales revenue up 9.7% from a year earlier,
thanks to an improved brand and product mix and a lower base in the
previous year due to brand movements. However, changes in market
conditions in the second half of the year weighed on the store’s
performance for the year, with sales revenue rose only mildly in 2015 to
RMB 1,989.7 million, from RMB 1,930.6 million a year earlier. This is
considered a satisfactory performance given the generally weak
consumption sentiment in Shanghai and when compared with other
rivals.

During the year, Shanghai Jiuguang kicked off its renovation program to
reinvigorate the store’s image and the work is scheduled for completion
in 2016.

Suzhou Jiuguang

Notwithstanding the weakening local consumption, Suzhou Jiuguang
continued to rise in popularity and delivered steady results throughout
the year. Thanks to its loyal clientele and the first-mover advantage,
Suzhou Jiuguang'’s profit margin remained resilient despite competition
in the local department store sector, which is intensifying with entry of
new players. For the whole year, Suzhou Jiuguang's sales revenue rose
0.3% to RMB793.3 million from the previous year and the average daily
traffic footfall increased 4.4% to 22,400 visitors.

In view of the increasingly competitive market, the Group monitored the
market conditions closely and has been developing sound marketing and
business strategies to maintain the sales momentum.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) &2 &tk 24 ()

Dalian Jiuguang

Dalian Jiuguang in the northeast of China performed largely in line with
the sluggish local market conditions during the year. Sales revenue
decreased by 23.8% from the previous year although the average daily
traffic footfall saw an increase. The Group continued its efforts to realign
the product range and tenant mix with an aim to expand the customer
base of the store.

Shenyang Jiuguang

Shenyang Jiuguang, a relatively young store opened only in October
2013 continued to face a challenging and deteriorating operating
environment with shrinking economic activities and fragile consumer
sentiment during the year. In light of the anticipated prolonged economic
slowdown in Shenyang, the Group strategically closed down the store in
December 2015, as part of its efforts to reallocate the Group's resources
to other more promising stores or business areas.

Standalone Freshmart Operation

The Group's first standalone Freshmart store in Shanghai reported
weakening results for the year, with sales revenue slide 7.7 %, a reflection
of the generally deteriorating economy in China. The store, opened in
July 2013, represents the Group’s effort to replicate the success and
broaden the presence of the Freshmart brand, whose high-quality food
and confectionary products have been enjoying widespread popularity
among customers at SOGO CWB and Shanghai Jiuguang.

Interest in Associates

The Group's strategic investment in Beiren Group, a leading retailer
based in Shijiazhuang, Hebei Province, delivered steady results despite
slack consumer demand and intense competition. For the period under
review, the investment contributed about HK$401.1 million in profit
(including profit attributable to non-controlling interest) to Lifestyle
International, compared with HK$347.8 million in 2014.

Beiren Group currently operates a total of approximately 1.3 million
square meters of retail space that comprises 18 department stores, 39
supermarkets and various shops and points of sale specializing in
electrical appliances, consumer electronics, and gold and jewelry. Most
of the operations of the Beiren Group are located in Shijiazhuang City.
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Lifestyle Properties

Lifestyle Properties, in which the Group owns approximately 60% equity
interest, recorded a profit of HK$17.2 million (2014: loss of HK$13.9
million) attributable to owners for the year ended 31 December 2015. The
turnaround to profit for the period under review was mainly attributable
to increase in bank interest income and project management income
from the Group. The profit was further lifted by an exchange gain arising
from its US dollar cash holding at the bank for the RMB, which is its
functional currency, depreciated during the year.

At 31 December 2015, cash and bank balances of Lifestyle Properties
amounted to HK$533.0 million (2014: HK$566.1 million). Major non-
current assets included investment properties fair-valued at HK$668.4
million (2014: HK$700.4 million) and the Group's intention to dispose of
these properties has not changed. The only development project of
Lifestyle Properties, namely the Yifu Land project in Shenyang, was still in
the final design stage at the year end and construction work has not yet
commenced.

Expansion in Mainland China

Construction work of the Group's project under development, namely the
retail and commercial complex in Daning, Shanghai, is proceeding
smoothly. The project, tentatively scheduled for completion in 2018,
features a commercial complex comprising a large-scale retail venue,
office blocks, and the Group’s second Jiuguang store in Shanghai. The
plan is in line with the Group’s strategy of achieving profitable expansion
in mainland China. Upon completion, the project is expected to boost
the Group’s market share and enhance its brand equity in Shanghai.

Outlook and Plan

The outlook for the retail market in Hong Kong and mainland China
remains challenging and difficult given the lingering global economic
uncertainties. The recoveries of developed economies will be slow and
patchy, with downward pressures on emerging market economies still
prominent.

Whilst economic growth in China has moderated in recent years, the
country, as the world’s second largest economy, is expected to remain
the key growth driver for the world economy. The ongoing economic
reforms and expansion of middle and upper classes in mainland China
will drive sustainable growth in retail consumption. As a reputable retail
operator, Lifestyle International is well positioned to benefit from the
growth opportunities in the retail market in the medium to long term.

A strong U.S. dollar and restrained global growth could continue to
discourage consumer spending in Hong Kong, the Group’s home market.
The management will stay prudent and focused on implementing its
long-standing and sound business strategies of seeking profitable growth
through effective marketing and service excellence. The Group is
rejuvenating SOGO CWB with optimized brand and product mix as it
prepares for the next stage of growth. To further enhance the store
image of SOGO CWB, the Group will continue with the remaining
renovation work in 2016 and strive to contain any disruption to the traffic
footfall of the store to a minimum.
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SOGO CWHB, positioning itself as a leading full-fledged department store,
will widen its appeal with enhanced customer engagement and expanded
brand portfolio. To accelerate the sales momentum at SOGO TST, the
Group will further adjust the store’s product and brand mix.

As for the operations in mainland China, the Group will continue to
provide top-notch shopping experience, as well as high-quality products
to cater for the needs of the more sophisticated and quality conscious
customers. In 2016, the Group will continue with its renovation and
improvement project for Shanghai Jiuguang. Innovative promotions will
also be introduced to boost store traffic and strengthen customer loyalty
for all the stores. Following closure of the unprofitable Shenyang
Jiuguang operation, the Group is in the process of evaluating different
strategic alternatives for this store premise from a longer term
perspective.

With the Group's strong brand equity and competent management team
whose expertise and sound strategies have established SOGO and
Jiuguang stores as a leading shopping destination in cities where it
operates, the board believes that the Group will continue to thrive and
deliver better return for its shareholders.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CRERHE

Corporate Governance Principles

The board of directors ("Board”) and management of the Company
are committed to maintaining good corporate governance
practices appropriate to the businesses of the Group. The
Company has adopted the code provisions in the Corporate
Governance Code (“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) as its
guidelines and focus on a quality Board, sound internal controls,
and transparency and accountability to all stakeholders.

Codes Compliance

The Company has complied with all code provisions of the CG
Code for the year ended 31 December 2015, except the deviations
stated below:

@)

(in)

The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are not
segregated. Such arrangement facilitates the development
and execution of the Group’s business strategies and
enhances the effectiveness of its operations.

Due to other engagement, Dato’ Dr. Cheng Yu Tung, the
former Chairman, was unable to attend the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 4 May 2015.

The Board

(n

Board Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board consists of a total of
seven directors, including one executive director, two non-
executive directors and four independent non-executive
directors. More than one-third of the Board is represented by
independent non-executive directors with one of whom being
a certified public accountant. The Board believes that the
number of executive and non-executive directors is
reasonable and adequate to provide sufficient checks and
balances that would safeguard the interests of the
shareholders and the Company. The directors possess
professional qualification and knowledge and industry
experience and expertise, which enable them to make
valuable and diversified advice and guidance to the Group's
business activities and development.

The Company adopted a Board diversity policy in accordance
with the requirements set out in the code provisions of the
CG Code. The Company recognizes the benefits of having a
diverse Board, and sees diversity at the Board level is essential
in achieving a sustainable and balanced development. In
designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been
considered from a number of aspects, including but not
limited to gender, age, educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge, industry
experience and expertise. All Board appointments are based
on meritocracy and considered against a variety of criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
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(2)

(3)

Details of the composition of the Board are set out in the
“Corporate Information” in this annual report. Details of the
changes to the composition of the Board during the year and
up to the date of this report are provided in the “Directors’
Report” under the section “Directors”. The directors’
biographies and the relationships among them are set out in
the “Profile of Directors” in this annual report.

The independence of the independent non-executive
directors is assessed according to the relevant rules and
requirements under the Listing Rules. The Company has
received written confirmation of independence from each of
the independent non-executive directors and the Company is
of the view that all independent non-executive directors meet
the independence guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and are independent.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Chairman of the Board is responsible for setting overall
strategic plan and development of the Group whereas the
Chief Executive Officer is responsible, in addition to assisting
in setting the Group's strategic plan, for implementing the
Board's decisions, monitoring and supervising the Group’s
overall performance, ensuring adequate capital and
managerial resources are available to implement the business
strategies being adopted from time to time, setting out and
monitoring targets, plans and direction for management,
reporting to the Board on the Group’s performance and
proposing business plans and strategies for further evaluation
and assessment by the Board.

Responsibilities

The Board is charged with promoting the success of the
Company by directing and supervising its affairs in a
responsible and effective manner. The Board steers and
oversees the management of the Company including,
establishing the strategic direction and setting long-term
objectives for the Company, monitoring the performance of
management, protecting and maximizing the interests of the
Company and its shareholders, and reviewing, considering
and approving and the subsequent reviewing and monitoring
of the annual budget against actual performances and results.
The Board has delegated management, under the leadership
of the Chief Executive Officer, with authorities and
responsibilities for the day-to-day operations and
administration of the Group.

Each director has a duty to act in good faith in the best
interests of the Company. The directors are aware of their
collective and individual responsibilities to the Company and
the shareholders in respect of the manner in which the affairs
of the Company are being controlled and managed.

(2)

(3)
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(4)

(5)

Directors are requested to make declaration of their direct or
indirect interests, if any, in any proposals or transactions to be
considered by the Board. If a director has a potential conflict
of interest in a matter to be considered by the Board which
the Board has determined to be material, the matter will be
dealt with in accordance with applicable rules and regulations
and, if appropriate, an independent board committee will be
set up to deal with the matter.

All directors have full access to and are provided with
adequate, reliable and timely information about the
operations and latest development of the Group to enable
them to discharge their responsibilities and make timely
decision. Updates have also been provided to all members of
the Board on a regular basis to enable them to discharge
their duties. Operational and financial Information and
analysis of the Group can be accessed directly through
briefing and reporting by the Chief Executive Officer and
management during Board meetings. Through the company
secretary, independent professional advice, on the account of
the Company, could be sought should such advice be
considered necessary by any director for carrying out his/her
duties properly.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

After recommendation from the nomination committee,
appointment of new director(s), if any, is vested with the
Board. Under the Company'’s articles of association, the Board
may from time to time appoint a director either to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Any such new director
shall hold office until the first general meeting of the
Company (in the case of filling a casual vacancy) or until the
next following annual general meeting of the Company (in the
case of an addition to the Board) after his/her appointment
and shall then be eligible for re-election at the same general
meeting.

All non-executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) are appointed for a specific term of one
year and all directors (including non-executive directors) are
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years and are subject to re-election in accordance with the
Company'’s articles of association.

Meetings

The Board held six meetings during the year to review,
among other matters, quarterly operating performance of the
Group, and to approve the Group's interim and final results
announcements and financial statements, the continuing
connected transaction and the issuance of bonds.

(4)

(5)
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(6)

Board members attended the Company’s Board meetings
either in person or through telephone conferencing means in
accordance with the provisions of the Company's articles of
association. The attendance record of each director at the
Board meetings and annual general meeting held during the
year is set out below:

REARNFMEHMESEMAGERE  EF
EREARGIANBFGEAALEAR
RAEFEeR SEENFAHFESS
SNBSS RE ZRBHENIT

Number of meetings attended/held

HE " BITEERE
Annual
Board General
Meetings Meeting
Directors E=E EEERE BERAFAE
Executive Director HITES
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas BBuR 6/6 11
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Dato’ Dr. Cheng Yu Tung* EEEMPIEL 0/2 0/1
Dr. Cheng Kar Shun, Henry* B AT * 0/2 0/1
Mr. Doo Wai Hoi, William RS EE 5/6 0/1
Ms. Lau Yuk Wai, Amy EEZL+ 4/6 11
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYkHTES
Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon I 20 4 6/6 11
The Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham VatiE &3 6/6 0/1
Mr. Hui Chiu Chung Sr AR 5 A 6/6 11
Mr. Ip Yuk Keung R LLE 6/6 11

* retired on 4 May 2015

Practices and Conduct of Board and Board Committee
Meetings

The company secretary is responsible for ensuring the proper
convening and conducting of the Board and Board committee
meetings, with the relevant notices, agenda and Board and
Board committee papers being provided to the directors and
relevant Board committee members in a timely manner
before the meetings.

The company secretary is responsible for keeping minutes of
all Board and Board committee meetings. Board and Board
committee minutes are available for inspection by the
directors and Board committee members.
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(7) Directors’ Induction and Continuous Professional

Development

Induction package covering the Group’s businesses and the
statutory and regulatory obligations of a director of a listed
company will be provided to each newly appointed director,
if any. The Company continuously updates the directors on
the Group’s businesses and the latest developments
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements.

During the year, the directors participated the following

(7) ESHXERBEEXRR

BENEAZERT (WA ERBEERRE
AREBEBR LT RAREEEERNEE
RELEENBEER - AARHERE
ERHAEBAKEZEIN - EWARARK
HBEREERENSHER -

FA - BFE2HEUNEI

training:

Types of Training
Directors S BEIIER
Executive Director HITES
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas BEB L AC
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Doo Wai Hoi, William HEIExEE AC
Ms. Lau Yuk Wai, Amy AEZExt AC
Independent Non-executive Directors BYEHTES
Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon IR e = AC
The Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham AiEHZE A,B,C
Mr. Hui Chiu Chung FFRR A S A AC
Mr. Ip Yuk Keung ks AB,C
A — reading materials given by the Company relating to the A — HEARARRHEBBAEAARED

Company's businesses and regular updates on the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements relevant
to director’s duties and responsibilities

B — attending briefings/seminars/conferences/forums relevant
to director’s duties and responsibilities

C — reading newspapers and journals relating to corporate
governance matters, environment and social issues or
director’s duties and responsibilities

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors on terms no less exacting than the
required standard set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
("Model Code”). After specific enquiries by the Company, all
directors confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code and the Company’s own code
during the year ended 31 December 2015.
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Directors’ Responsibility for Financial
Statements

The directors acknowledged their responsibility for overseeing the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2015. The directors have ensured that the
financial statements of the Group are prepared so as to give a true
and fair view of the Group's state of affairs, the results and cash
flow for the year, and on a going concern basis in accordance with
the statutory requirements and applicable accounting and financial
reporting standards.

The directors also ensure timely publication of the Group's financial
statements and aim to present a clear, balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group's performance and
position through all its publications and communications to the
public. They are also aware of the requirements under the
applicable rules and regulations about timely disclosure of inside
information.

The report from the auditor of the Company regarding their
responsibilities and opinion on the financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 is set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report. The Board
has taken steps to ensure the continued objectivity and
independence of the external auditor. For the year ended 31
December 2015, the remunerations paid/payable to the external
auditor of the Company were approximately HK$4.1 million and
approximately HK$1 million in respect of audit and non-audit
services provided to the Group respectively. Details of significant
non-audit services and the fees incurred are as follows:

Review of interim financial information
for the six months ended 30 June 2015 HK$0.8 million

Services provided relating to issuance of bonds HK$0.2 million
Board Committees

As at the date of this report, the audit committee, the remuneration
committee and nomination committee are in operation and they
have been established with specific terms of references to assist
the Board in discharging its responsibilities.

(1) Audit Committee

The audit committee comprises four members, namely, Mr.
Lam Siu Lun, Simon, The Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham, Mr.
Hui Chiu Chung and Mr. Ip Yuk Keung, all are independent
non-executive directors. The audit committee is chaired by
Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon, who is a certified public accountant.
The audit committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its responsibilities.

The terms of reference of the audit committee setting out the
committee’s authorities and duties, which follow closely the
guidelines of the code provisions of the CG Code, are
available on the Company’s website.
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(2)

The principal duties of the audit committee are as follows:

(i) to review the services and appointment of the
Company’s external auditor, the nature and scope of
auditing, and the related audit fees;

(i)  to review the Company’s financial statements and
reports, the changes in accounting policies and
practices, and the compliance with applicable
accounting standards, the Listing Rules and legal
requirements;

(i) to oversee the Group's financial reporting system, risk

management and internal control systems; and

(iv) to review and monitor the corporate governance

functions as set out in the CG Code.

The audit committee held two meetings during the year. The
attendance record of each committee member is set out
below:

BERZEGZIEBENT

()  FBHEARRRINEEED 2 RS R HE
A RAZ B E R M AAE S E

A
(i) %Fyﬁzﬁ Al M Ewmk RmE - &5t
RENEPI 2 BF)  REHETER

SR - EARAISOEPIRE

(i) EERAKBEZHMBEHABHE - ARE

BREANMBEEFIEESRE &

(v mEREECESTRIEN ZEEER
EIJH%JZFJKC’

FR - BRZEEERITMASHE - 8%8

BXREHESH ZEHIINT

Number of meetings attended/held

Audit committee member EREEENE HEBITERRE
Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon (Chairman) MIKEE A (X E) 2/2
The Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham AiEHZEE 172
Mr. Hui Chiu Chung FrRRRR A 2/2
Mr. Ip Yuk Keung HEEHoaiLsE 2/2
In the meetings, the audit committee (i) reviewed with EZEZE R E () EINEZEEMERA
external auditor the Group's interim and annual financial E.ﬁ%ﬁﬂ&iﬁﬂﬁﬁ#&ﬁ&#ﬁ BIAZ R
statements and reports before they were submitted to the EF LB R RAOE 5 (i) E NS AZ BED

Board for consideration and approval; (ii) reviewed with the
external auditor the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group; (iii) reviewed the effectiveness of the
internal control systems; and (iv) reviewed the corporate
governance functions of the Group.

Remuneration Committee

Members of the remuneration committee comprise three
independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Lam Siu
Lun, Simon who is the chairman of the remuneration
committee, The Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham and Mr. Hui
Chiu Chung and one executive director, namely, Mr. Lau Luen
Hung, Thomas. The remuneration committee is provided with
sufficient resources to discharge its responsibilities.

The terms of reference of the remuneration committee setting
out the committee’s authorities and duties, which follow
closely the guidelines of the code provisions of the CG Code,
are available on the Company’s website.

(2)

EHAKBEMRAz 2T RAURELAER
(i) BN IBEIEFIE 2 BRBUE K& (iv) 6
AEB 2 BEEAREE -

FHEES

YINEZE SR =R B I IFMITEEME
EE(BERFMEZEGZ2EIRE)  ARHHA
BRAFRPEEARNITERRZBEE
HE - HINEZE B SR REHARERIAET

REBETRHMTAGENEIEZHMEE S
BESEFNEZESCEINBREEE
ZAYNSIFEDE

#

31

Rl IR = A - e

Ee Rt = B



G0z Moday [enuuy  paliwi] sBulp|oH |euoneuiaiu| o|A1sa

32

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

(3)

REER®RE (H)

The principal duties of the remuneration committee are to
provide advices and recommendations to the Board on (i) the
remuneration packages of the directors and senior
management; (i) any specific remuneration packages with
reference to market conditions, performance of the Group
and the individuals with reference to the goals and targets as
set by the Board from time to time; and (iii) if necessary, any
compensation arrangement for termination of office of
directors or senior management.

The remuneration committee held one meeting during the
year. The attendance record of each committee member is
set out below:

FHEZEe s TEZRAERAEESRME
ENEREONESNSAEERE ZH TS
)i“ﬁ%miﬁ\ M ARG B R AR AR IR R
é%’\TET%HEZE%‘i% CHERARE
BB R et - RN U ERLEF L

A B A L B A B 4 2 AR O
Wi o
FR - FWEEERRTREH  SEE

EREHFESH 2NN

Number of meetings attended/held

Remuneration committee member FHZEEERE HE " BITEBERK
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas BRI 11
Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon (Chairman) MRS (ETF) 1/1
The Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham AigHZEE 1”71
Mr. Hui Chiu Chung Eictibiea 11

In the meeting, the remuneration committee reviewed and
recommended for the Board’s approval the remuneration
packages of the directors and senior management for the
year.

Nomination Committee

Members of the nomination committee comprise three
independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Lam Siu
Lun, Simon who is the chairman of the nomination committee,
The Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham and Mr. Hui Chiu Chung
and one executive director, namely, Mr. Lau Luen Hung,
Thomas. The nomination committee is provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its responsibilities.

The terms of reference of the nomination committee setting
out the committee’s authorities and duties, which follow
closely the guidelines of the code provisions of the CG Code,
are available on the Company’s website.
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The principal duties of the nomination committee are as
follows:

(i)  to review the structure, size and composition (including
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

(i) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and select or make recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated
for directorships;

(i) to assess the independence of the independent non-
executive directors; and

(iv) to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and
succession planning for directors, in particular the
chairman and the chief executive.

The nomination committee held one meeting during the year.
The attendance record of each committee member is set out
below:

REZEGZIEBENT
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FAN - RREBEGLETRAEHE - FEER
BREHESH ZREHIINT

Number of meetings attended/held

Nomination committee member EEEEERE HEBTEEIH
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas BB 171
Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon (Chairman) I S A () 11
The Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham Vet &1 11
Mr. Hui Chiu Chung FFRR A LA 1”71

In the meeting, the nomination committee (i) reviewed the
existing structure, size and composition of the Board;
(i) reviewed the independence of independent non-executive
directors; and (iii) made recommendations to the Board on
the proposed re-election of the retiring directors at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. During the year, the
nomination committee had also reviewed and recommended
to the Board for the appointment of the Chairman of the
Board and the re-designation of director of the Company.
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Internal Control

m

(2)

Internal Control

The Board acknowledges its responsibility in maintaining a
sound and effective system of internal control for the Group
to safeguard interests of the shareholders and assets of the
Company at all times.

The Group's system of internal control which includes a
defined management structure with limit of authority is
designed to help the achievement of business objectives,
safeguard assets against unauthorised use or disposition,
ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records for the
provision of reliable financial information for internal use or
for external publication, and ensure compliance with relevant
legislation and regulations. The system is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to manage rather than eliminate
risks of failure in the operational systems and achievement of
the Group's objectives.

Management has conducted regular reviews during the year
on the effectiveness of the internal control system covering all
material factors related to financial, operational and
compliance controls, various functions for risk management
and physical and information systems security. The audit
committee had been reported during the audit committee
meetings of key findings identified by the Company’s external
auditor and discussed findings and actions or measures taken
in addressing those findings relating to the Group's internal
controls. No material issues on the system of internal control
have been identified during the year ended 31 December
2015 which required significant rectification works.

The Board has, working in conjunction with senior
management, conducted a review on the audit work carried
out by the internal audit team during the year with a view to
enhancing the Group's internal control system.

Internal Audit Function

The Group's internal audit team is responsible for conducting
regular review of the Group’s internal control procedures,
including accounting system and operational procedures, and
will make recommendations to the relevant department
management for necessary actions. The management
considers the present work arrangement of the internal audit
functions is effective having taking into account the current
organizational structure, lines of responsibility, authority of
the management team and the risks associated with the
operations of the Group. The management and audit
committee review and monitor closely the works of the
internal audit team and are committed to strengthening the
functions of the Group's internal audit team. In addition to its
agreed scheduled work, the internal audit team may conduct
other review and investigative work of the Group’s businesses
on an ad hoc basis as and when necessary.
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Commitment to Transparency

The Board emphasizes in creating and maintaining a high level of
transparency through timely disclosure of relevant information on
the Group’s business and activities to the shareholders, investors,
media and investing public, through regular press releases,
analysis’s briefings, press conferences, as well as timely updating of
the Company’s website. Our executive director and management,
who look after the business operation, are committed to respond
to enquiries from regulators, shareholders and business partners.

Investors’ Relations and Communication with

Shareholders

The Company regards high quality reporting as an essential
element in building successful relationships with its shareholders.
The Company always seeks to provide relevant information to
existing and potential investors, not only to comply with the
different regulatory requirements in force but also to enhance
transparency and communications with the shareholders and the
investing public. This is part of a continuous communication
program that encompasses meetings and relevant announcements
to the market in addition to periodic written reports in the form of
preliminary results announcement and the publication of interim
and annual reports. The annual general meeting of the Company
also provides an opportunity for communication between the
Board and the shareholders.

In addition, the Company also maintains a corporate website on
which comprehensive information about the Group is made
available on a timely basis. Regular meetings are also held with
institutional investors and research analysts to provide them with
timely updates on the Group's latest business developments which
are not inside information (as defined under the Listing Rules) in
nature. These activities will keep the public informed of the Group's
activities and foster effective communications.

The Group also participated in investment conferences and forums
during the year in order to enhance the awareness of the investing
public of the Group’s business operations and development
strategies.

The Company is committed to ensuring that it is fully complied with
disclosure obligations stipulated in the Listing Rules and other
applicable laws and regulations, and that all shareholders and
potential investors have an equal opportunity to receive and obtain
externally available information released by the Group.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Pursuant to Article 58 of the articles of association of the Company,
any one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the company secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the shareholder(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the shareholder(s) as a result of
the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the shareholder(s)
by the Company.

The above written requisition shall be addressed to the Company’s
head office at 20th Floor, East Point Centre, 555 Hennessy Road,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong.

The procedures regarding proposing a person for election as a
director are set out under the “Investor Relations” on the
homepage of the Company’s website.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to the Board in
writing through the company secretary whose contact details are as
follows:

Company Secretary

Lifestyle International Holdings Limited
20th Floor, East Point Centre

555 Hennessy Road

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2838 2030
Email: info@lifestylehk.com.hk

Constitutional Documents
During the year, the Company has not made any changes to its
memorandum and articles of association.
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Executive Director

Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas (BA, MBA)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Lau, aged 61, joined the Company in January 2004. He is the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company who
leads and manages the Group by setting and implementing
policies and strategies, and monitoring results and targets of the
operations of the Group. Mr. Lau is also the chairman and a non-
executive director of Lifestyle Properties Development Limited
("Lifestyle Properties”), the listed subsidiary of the Company whose
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
("Stock Exchange”). Mr. Lau is a member of the Chinese People'’s
Political Consultative Conference Shanghai Committee and a
member of the board of directors of the Shanghai Jiao Tong
University, the PRC. He is the sole director of Asia Prime Assets
Limited and Dynamic Castle Limited and a director of United Goal
Resources Limited, all being the substantial shareholders of the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance. Mr. Lau is the brother of Ms. Lau Yuk Wai, Amy.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Doo Wai Hoi, William (JP)

Mr. Doo, aged 71, joined the Company in March 2005. He is also
the vice-chairman and non-executive director of New World
Development Company Limited and an independent non-executive
director of The Bank of East Asia, Limited and Shanghai Industrial
Urban Development Group Limited, all companies listed on the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Doo is the chairman and director of Fung
Seng Enterprises Holdings Limited. He is a Justice of the Peace
appointed by the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region. He is also a National Committee Member of
the Twelfth Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of
the PRC, the Honorary Consul General of the Kingdom of Morocco
in Hong Kong and Macau, and a Governor of the Canadian
Chamber of Commerce in Hong Kong. Mr. Doo was awarded the
Chevalier de la Légion d'Honneur by the Republic of French in
2008.

Ms. Lau Yuk Wai, Amy

Ms. Lau, aged 62, joined the Company in March 2004. She is also a
non-executive director of Chinese Estates Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange. Ms. Lau holds a Bachelor of
Science degree and a Doctor of Dental Surgery degree from
University of Toronto, Canada. She is a practicing dentist registered
with the Royal College of Dental Surgeons of Ontario, Canada. Ms.
Lau is the sister of Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon (BA, ACA, FTIHK)

Mr. Lam, aged 66, joined the Company in March 2004. Mr. Lam
graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of
Arts degree. After graduation, he worked at KPMG Peat Marwick
and obtained his qualification as a chartered accountant from The
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales in 1979
and certified public accountant from the Hong Kong Society of
Accountants (now known as the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants) in 1980. He is also a fellow member of the
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. Mr. Lam has been a practicing
accountant for over 25 years and is the proprietor of Messrs. S.L.
Lam & Company, a firm of certified public accountants. He has
served as a member of the Insider Dealing Tribunal on a number of
occasions. He is an independent non-executive director of Lifestyle
Properties (the listed subsidiary of the Company) and Le Saunda
Holdings Limited, both companies listed on the Stock Exchange.

The Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham (BA, DIP. ED., GBS, SBS, JP)
Mr. Shek, aged 70, joined the Company in March 2004. He is a
member of the Legislative Council for the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region representing real estate and construction
functional constituency since 2000. Mr. Shek is a member of the
Court of The Hong Kong University of Science & Technology and
Court and Council Member of The University of Hong Kong. Mr.
Shek is a director of The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation
Limited and a non-executive director of the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Authority. Mr. Shek is an independent non-
executive director of MTR Corporation Limited, Midas International
Holdings Limited, Paliburg Holdings Limited, NWS Holdings
Limited, Chuang’s Consortium International Limited, Chuang'’s
China Investments Limited, ITC Corporation Limited, ITC Properties
Group Limited, Country Garden Holdings Company Limited, Hop
Hing Group Holdings Limited, SUIM Holdings Limited, China
Resources Cement Holdings Limited, Lai Fung Holdings Limited,
Cosmopolitan International Holdings Limited and TUS International
Limited (formerly known as Jinheng Automotive Safety Technology
Holdings Limited), all companies listed on the Stock Exchange, and
Dorsett Hospitality International Limited (withdrawn from listing on
the Stock Exchange in October 2015). He is also an independent
non-executive director of Eagle Asset Management (CP) Limited
(the manager of Champion Real Estate Investment Trust which is
listed on the Stock Exchange) and Regal Portfolio Management
Limited (the manager of Regal Real Estate Investment Trust which
is listed on the Stock Exchange). Mr. Shek holds a Bachelor of Arts
degree and has extensive experience in the property development
field. Mr. Shek was awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star and Gold
Bauhinia Star by the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region in 2007 and 2013 respectively.
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Mr. Hui Chiu Chung (JP)

Mr. Hui, aged 68, join the Company in July 2005. Mr. Hui is the
chairman and chief executive officer of Luk Fook Financial Services
Limited and has over 45 years of experience in the securities and
investment industry. He had for years been serving as a council
member and vice chairman of the Stock Exchange, a member of
the advisory committee of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures
Commission, a director of the Hong Kong Securities Clearing
Company Limited, a member of the listing committee of the Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited, an appointed member of
the Securities and Futures Appeal Tribunal, a member of Standing
Committee on Company Law Reform, and an appointed member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
Investigation Panel A. He was also a member of the Committee on
Real Estate Investment Trusts of the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures Commission and a member of Government “Appointees”
(independent member) of Appeal Panel of the Travel Industry
Council of Hong Kong. Mr. Hui was appointed by the Government
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region a Justice of the
Peace in 2004 and was also appointed a member of the Zhuhai
Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference in 2006. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors and senior fellow member of the Hong Kong
Securities and Investment Institute. Mr. Hui also serves as an
independent non-executive director of Zhuhai Holdings Investment
Group Limited, Gemdale Properties and Investment Corporation
Limited, China South City Holdings Limited, SINOPEC Engineering
(Group) Co., Ltd., Agile Property Holdings Limited and FSE
Engineering Holdings Limited and a non-executive director of Luk
Fook Holdings (International) Limited, all companies listed on the
Stock Exchange. He was an independent non-executive director of
Chun Wo Development Holdings Limited and Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited until his resignation effective from
1 February 2015 and his retirement from 29 April 2015 respectively.
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Mr. Ip Yuk Keung

Mr. Ip, aged 63, joined the Company in April 2014. He is an
international banking and real estate professional with over 31
years of experience in the United States, Asia and Hong Kong. His
expertise are in real estate finance, corporate banking, risk
management, wealth management and transaction banking.
Previously managing director and corporate bank head of Citigroup
and managing director of investments at Merrill Lynch (Asia Pacific),
Mr. Ip currently serves as an executive director and the chief
executive officer of Langham Hospitality Investments (“LHI") and
Langham Hospitality Investments Limited (listed on the Stock
Exchange) and LHIL Manager Limited (the trustee-manager of LHI)
and a non-executive director of Eagle Asset Management (CP)
Limited (the manager of Champion Real Estate Investment Trust
which is listed on the Stock Exchange). He is also an independent
non-executive director of AEON Credit Service (Asia) Company
Limited, Hopewell Highway Infrastructure Limited, Hopewell
Holdings Limited, New World China Land Limited, Power Assets
Holdings Limited and TOM Group Limited, all companies listed on
the Stock Exchange. Mr. lp is at present a member of the Legal Aid
Services Council and a board of governor of the World Green
Organization.

Mr. Ip is a member of the Advisory Board on Accountancy and
Faculty of Business and an honorary professor at Lingnan University,
a member of the International Advisory Board of College of
Business and an adjunct professor at City University of Hong Kong,
a member of the International Advisory Committee and an adjunct
professor at University of Macau, an executive fellow in Asia and a
member of International Advisory Council Asia at Washington
University in St. Louis, a member of School Board Advisory
Committee at Victoria Shanghai Academy, an honorary fellow of
Vocational Training Council and a research fellow of the Institute
for Financial Economics at Singapore Management University. He is
a member of the committee on Certification for Principalship at the
Education Bureau of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.

Mr. Ip holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Applied Mathematics
and Computer Science at Washington University in St. Louis
(summa cum laude), a Master of Science degree in Applied
Mathematics at Cornell University and a Master of Science degree
in Accounting and Finance at Carnegie-Mellon University.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHREE

The board of directors (“Board”) of the Company present their
annual report and the audited consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are the operation of
"lifestyle” department stores and other retailing format and
property development and property investment.

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on page 58.

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HK cents 34.3 in cash per share to the shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on
22 April 2016. Subject to the approval of the shareholders at the
annual general meeting, the final dividend will be paid on
4 May 2016. Together with the interim dividend of HK cents 28.9
per share, the total cash dividend for the year ended 31
December 2015 is HK cents 63.2 per share.

Business Review

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2015 is set out in the “Financial Highlights”,
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 4 to 5, pages 9 to 11 and pages 13 to 24
respectively of this annual report.

The Group committed to enhancing governance, promoting
employee benefits and development, protecting the
environment and giving back to society in order to fulfill social
responsibility and achieve sustainable growth. The Group has
complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have
significant impact on the operations of the Group.

Shares

Details of movements during the year in the shares of the
Company are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Debentures

Details of the bonds issued by the Group are set out in note 31
to the consolidated financial statements. Save for the above,
the Group has not issued any debentures during the year.
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Equity-linked Agreements

Save for the share option scheme described below, the Group
has not entered into any equity-linked agreements during the
year.

Distributable Reserves
Details of distributable reserves of the Company are set out in
note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.

Convertible Securities, Options, Warrants or
Similar Rights

Other than the share option scheme described below, the
Company had no outstanding convertible securities, options,
warrants or similar rights as at 31 December 2015. Save as
disclosed below, there has been no issue or exercise of any
convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights during
the year.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's articles of association although there are no
restrictions against such rights under the laws in the Cayman
Islands.

Major Suppliers and Customers

The Group is principally involved in retail business. The five
largest suppliers and the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for less than 30% of the Group's purchases and
turnover respectively during the year.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

Donations
During the year, the Group made charitable and other
donations amounting to HK$1.9 million (2014: HK$0.5 million).
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Directors
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Director
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas (Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors

Dato’ Dr. Cheng Yu Tung (Chairman) (retired on 4 May 2015)

Dr. Cheng Kar Shun, Henry (retired on 4 May 2015)

Mr. Doo Wai Hoi, William (re-designated from executive to
non-executive director on 11 June 2015)

Ms. Lau Yuk Wai, Amy

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon

The Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham

Mr. Hui Chiu Chung

Mr. Ip Yuk Keung

In accordance with Article 87 of the articles of association of the
Company, Ms. Lau Yuk Wai, Amy, Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon and
The Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham will retire from office by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, all
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 31 December 2015, the directors’ and the chief executive’s
interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance ("SFQO")), as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
("Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(“Listing Rules”) were as follows:

(i) Long position in shares of the Company

ESRESITHRAERKRG - HERKR®A
REERE 2 En

R-Z-—AF+-A=1+—R JBEBZFRESTHEA
B R RS EAL A 2 AREE A B (1RCRE 77 S BB 1P
(IBHRHEED D EXVERRES) 2 - 18-
BeAn R EREE P B AR IRRE 5 R B IR D5 352 1657
BN ABEFZECMAREETEREZSME
PRAE (B3P ) & 5 L AR R (T LR R ) B+
FEZ(EMBETAEFETESF X INELESFR)
(MR¥ESF A ARG AR B RE P2 s MoK R &
FIaRT

() E2AARGBZHER

Number of Percentage of
Name of director Nature of interest shares held issued shares
HEBRTRSG
EEuR fERME BEROEE ZEISH
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas Beneficial owner 66,051,460 4.12%
("Mr. Thomas Lau”) EnlEA A
RE /I E
([ ]) Interest of controlled corporations (Note 1) 540,000,000 33.70%
SRR EE R (FEE1)
Interest of controlled corporations (Note 2) 222,350,332 13.87%
ZAEHEEER (FHFE2)
Notes: BfsE -
1. United Goal Resources Limited (“United Goal”) holds 1. United Goal Resources Limited ([United

540,000,000 shares. United Goal is ultimately owned as to
80% by Mr. Thomas Lau through Asia Prime Assets Limited
and as to 20% by a family trust of which Mr. Lau Luen Hung,
Joseph and certain of his family members are eligible
beneficiaries. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Thomas Lau is
deemed to be interested in the same parcel of shares in
which United Goal is interested.

2. Dynamic Castle Limited (“Dynamic Castle”), which is wholly-
owned by Mr. Thomas Lau, holds 222,350,332 shares. By
virtue of the SFO, Mr. Thomas Lau is deemed to be
interested in the same parcel of shares held by Dynamic
Castle.

Goal]) # % 540,000,000 f% fi% 15 ° United Goal
B R &88 S A 1B 38 Asia Prime Assets Limited #
B80% B iEm Rk —EAEEERZ T A RRIZH
EEREETREXNENRKIEEARZKESR
20% Mt i am o IRIRFE HF L EAE G0 - 21808
5¢ HE 4 4R B 8 B United Goal BT i 8 #9 48 [A) A%

DS -

2. i B &% 5t £ 2 & A 2 Dynamic Castle
Limited ([ Dynamic Castle|) # 4 222,350,332
ARR& 17 o RIRE FH R ARG G0 - BISIB £
% A% Dynamic Castle FT % /)8 [A A% 17 #
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(ii) Long position in shares of associated corporation

(i) MEEEEROZIHR

Number of Percentage of

Name of director Name of associated corporation Nature of interest shares held issued shares

EEBITREG

BExng BB SR EEtE BERGBEA 2B

Mr. Thomas Lau Lifestyle Properties Development Interest of controlled 249,611,200 59.56%
gt Limited ("Lifestyle Properties”) corporation (Note 1)

FliEnEERARAR ([FELE]) T EE R (PHEE1)
Interest of controlled 62,740,675 14.97%

corporation (Note 2)
AR (fEE2)

Notes:

1. These shares are held by the Company. The Company is
owned as to approximately 51.69% by Mr. Thomas Lau
directly or indirectly through companies which he controls.
By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Thomas Lau is deemed to be
interested in the same parcel of shares in Lifestyle Properties
in which the Company is interested.

2. There shares are held by Springboard Holdings Limited
("Springboard”), which is wholly-owned by Mr. Thomas Lau.
By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Thomas Lau is deemed to be
interested in the same parcel of shares in which Springboard
is interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of the
directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or which are
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code. Nor any of the directors and chief
executive had any interest in, or had been granted any right to
subscribe for the securities of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) or had
exercised any such right during the period under review.

fiss -

1. ZEBRMBARRFE - ARR BB EBEE
BEKEZEBRZEG R R REARLI51.69%
RigES MEED - BIEREERA/ER
ARRRR B EMEENARR N EE -

2. #Z % MR 19 & Springboard Holdings Limited
([Springboard )5 + ZARIHBEBLEES
BHER - RIBEF LTGRO - 21808k L
15 5 B Springboard AT A KRR B D HE RS ©
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Interests of Shareholders Discloseable under
the SFO

As at 31 December 2015, the following persons (other than a
director or the chief executive of the Company) had an interest
or short position in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO or notified to the Company:

REZZRAERAETHRE ZRRE
=

R-T—RAF+=-A=+—H8  FTIHAL(FREL
RAEFXRBITRAB) RARF 2RI RAAMR
15 o 1R 15 2 5 T A B 1GR9 58 336 A SE AR ER A 7R
Bz BRMARMERR T2 Eik R EE0S
T

Long position in shares of the Company ARATBBZHFRE
Number of Percentage of
Name Nature of interest Shares held issued shares
HERITREZ
=% EEME BERGHE Ak
United Goal Beneficial owner (Note 1) 540,000,000 33.70%
BEmEA A (1)
Asia Prime Interest of controlled corporation (Note 1) 540,000,000 33.70%
ZEGlAE R (1)
Dynamic Castle Beneficial owner 222,350,332 13.87%
EmEBA
Qatar Investment Authority Interest of controlled corporations (Note 2) 371,122,958 23.16%
ZPEHEE R (EE2)
FMR LLC Investment manager 112,296,000 7.01%
BAKIE
Notes: Bz -
1. Asia Prime, a company wholly-owned by Mr. Thomas Lau, holds 1. Asia Prime B 8| & I8 Se A= 2 EHE B - H £ A United

80% of the entire issued share capital of United Goal. By virtue of
the SFO, Asia Prime is deemed to be interested in the same
parcel of shares comprising 540,000,000 shares in which United
Goal is interested as beneficial owner.

2. Bellshill Investment Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Qatar Holding LLC, which in turn is wholly-owned by Qatar
Investment Authority. By virtue of the SFO, Qatar Holding LLC and
Qatar Investment Authority are deemed to be interested in the
same parcel of shares comprising 371,122,958 shares held by
Bellshill Investment Company as beneficial owner.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified by
any person (other than a director or the chief executive of the
Company) who had an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company as at 31 December 2015
which were recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO or notified to the Company.

Goal 2 8B B 1TIE AN 2 80% © RIBFE FH & B & 14501 -
Asia Prime# %2 & M United Goal® = # A B
540,000,000 A% f% 17 H & B FE R #e

2. Bellshill Investment Company /4 Qatar Holding LLC &9
=&MW E A A mi&E Bl fAQatar Investment
AuthorityZ2 E#E A © R EF H L H E K - Qatar
Holding LLC } Qatar Investment Authority 9 # 1% /&
#E A Bellshill Investment Company A B #m#E A A & 15
P8 BUAHIR) 371,122,958 ARl # = ©

B EXBEEN  BEEAAL(RRRERTHR
SITBRAERIN BARRBAER - —HF+=
A=+—BHAREESLHEFRDIZE 336 FRE L
BRABFZECMARAMERRE 2 RAFRM K
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Share Options

The share option scheme (“2009 Share Option Scheme”) was
approved by the shareholders of the Company on 3 March 2009
for a period of 10 years commencing from 3 March 2009 as
incentive or rewards for the contribution of the eligible
participants to the growth of the Group and to provide to the
Group with a more flexible means to reward, remunerate,
compensate and/or provide benefits to the eligible participants.
Under the 2009 Share Option Scheme, the Company may grant
options to any employee, director, consultant or adviser,
distributor, contractor, supplier, service provider, agent,
customer and business partner of the Company and/or any
subsidiary who, at the sole determination of the Board, have
contributed or will contribute to the Company and/or any
subsidiary.

There is no general requirement on the minimum period for
which an option must be held or the performance targets which
must be achieved before an option can be exercised under the
terms of the 2009 Share Option Scheme. However, the Board
may offer to grant any options subject to such terms and
conditions in relation to the minimum period of the options to
be held and/or the performance targets to be achieved before
such options can be exercised and/or any other terms as the
Board may determine in its absolute discretion.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options which may be granted under the 2009 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 166,860,950 shares,
representing 10% of the issued shares of the Company as at 3
March 2009, the date on which the 2009 Share Option Scheme
was approved by the shareholders of the Company, which
represented approximately 10.41% of the issued shares of the
Company as at the date of this report.

Unless otherwise approved by the shareholders, the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted to each eligible participant (including both
exercised and outstanding options under the 2009 Share
Option Scheme) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of
the issued share capital of the Company.

fBIRrE
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AR TREETEE RS SRR R RERHE
REMERERZ R AR K, AL B R 72 (] &
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7 BRISOUER - RIZ - B REBRBLE -

HRBRER AR — SN FBBRREA 3 2 GRTT
ERTMER AR 2 RERARKAEZE 2 KA B
17 WK —RIERE - AT EFSRTENE
PR R] RS2 B IGR S G - ARIRAE R R RE AR AT
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Where options are proposed to be granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company or any of their respective associates, and the
proposed grant of options will result in the total number of
share issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
already granted and to be granted (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of such grant representing
in aggregate over 0.1% of the issued share capital of the
Company on the date of offer and having an aggregate value,
based on the closing price of the shares at the date of each
grant, in excess of HK$5 million, such grant of options must be
subject to the approval of the shareholders taken on a poll at
general meeting. The connected person involved in such
proposed grant to options and all other connected persons of
the Company must abstain from voting in such general meeting
(except that any connected person may vote against the
proposed grant provided that his intention to do so has been
stated in the relevant circular to the shareholders).

Option granted must be taken up within the time limit specified
in the offer letter (which shall not be later than 5 days from the
date of offer), upon payment of HK$1 on acceptance of the
offer. Options may be exercised at any time during a period to
be notified by the Board to each grantee which shall not be
more than 10 years from the date of the offer. The exercise
price is determined by the directors of the Company, and will
be at least the highest of (i) the closing price of the Company's
shares on the date of grant, (ii) the average closing price of the
shares for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s
share.

No options were granted or subsisted at any time during the
year.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or
Debentures

Other than the share option scheme of the Company, at no
time during the year was the Company, its holding company, or
any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements and Contracts

Save as disclosed under the section “Continuing Connected
Transactions” below, no transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a director of the Company or any
entities connected with the director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year.
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Continuing Connected Transactions
The following transactions of the Group constituted non-
exempt continuing connected transactions (“Continuing
Connected Transactions”) for the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2015 under the Listing Rules.

(n

Shanghai Jiuguang Department Store’s Tenancy
Agreement

On 26 November 2004, the Group's 65% owned Shanghai
Ongoing Department Store Limited (“Shanghai Ongoing”)
entered into a tenancy agreement with the Group’s 50%
owned /8N B W M ES B R A A (“CityPlaza Co”) in
respect of the lease of the entire building of Shanghai
Joinbuy CityPlaza (“Joinbuy CityPlaza”) of approximately
92,000 square metres (“sg.m.”), for a period of 20 years
commencing from 1 October 2004 (“Tenancy
Agreement”), at a basic annual rental of RMB125 million,
with adjustment for additional rental at the rate of 3.5% on
the amount over and above the annual turnover of
RMB1,500 million generated from the sales at the whole
Joinbuy CityPlaza. Management fee was on a cost incurred
basis. The Tenancy Agreement was arranged for the
leasing of the retailing space as necessary for the
operation of the Group’s Shanghai Jiuguang Department
Store. During the year ended 31 December 2015, a total of
RMB199.6 million (equivalent to approximately HK$245.4
million) rental and management fee was paid by Shanghai
Ongoing to Cityplaza Co. under the Tenancy Agreement.

The Group’s 65% owned Shanghai Ongoing is owned as
to 5% by I A (E) AR AR ("Joinbuy Group”) and
30% by 8 & KM% A R A 7 (“Joinbuy Co”). The
Group's 50% owned Cityplaza Co is owned as to 12% by
Joinbuy Group and 38% by Joinbuy Co. Joinbuy Group is
the controlling shareholder of Joinbuy Co. Thus, Joinbuy
Group and Joinbuy Co, being substantial shareholders of
Shanghai Ongoing, are connected persons of the
Company. In view of Joinbuy Group and Joinbuy Co have
substantial equity interest in Cityplaza Co, Cityplaza Co is
an associate of Joinbuy Group and a connected person of
the Company. Thus, the transaction under the Tenancy
Agreement constituted a continuing connected
transaction for the Company.

RERERS
BE_F-AFT_A=+—AILFER  RELD
$A - AR T35 5 AR T H R ERER S
(MFEmER5)) -

(1)
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vHEwE((HEHz]) B —TTNF+ A
— BRI AH0F EAFHAARK
125,000,000 7T - jEETfE%éﬁijlﬁivﬁﬁ?E%b%fﬁﬁé
e A R % 1,500,000,000 7T 2 589
35%:tE mw&%méo*ﬁ§&W@ﬁ$g
ﬁ%moJiﬂhﬁﬁaﬁﬂ%W“ﬁigi
BMAKNBEENHEEERHL - BE-_T—1F
+—A=+—HLFER  LBAKXBERE
B TES QA AR 199,600,000
iﬂﬁﬁ%%mwmam%@ﬂi&ﬁﬁﬁo

AEEEBS%Em s EBA D RIE LS
he(EE)ERARITAEEED) R EEAE
B ERAR ([ E8NE])BEA 5% &% 30% ° 4
% B 5 50% 1 2 T 35 A Bl 2 IRIE S B
Eﬁnﬁﬁlﬁi/iﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁm%&%% hE
EEALEBNEZERERE - Al A LS
AZEEREMNNEEBER LGB RAR
RAEZHEEBEAT - ERNBEER LENEE
BRMTES AR ZERBRAER  RTESA

AIBNBREZBBEALIIASARBZEEA
ToFl BEBRETZRIBERARBZFH

BEERS -

Rl IR = A - e

Ee Rt = B



G0z Moday [enuuy  paliwi] sBulp|oH |euoneuiaiu| o|A1sa

50

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED) #EE&#{&3E (&)

(2)

Framework Agreement — Chow Tai Fook Jewellery
Group

On 29 November 2011, the Company entered into a
framework agreement which took effect on 15 December
2011 for continuing connected transactions entered into
between the Company and Chow Tai Fook Jewellery
Group Limited ("CTF Jewellery Group”) (“Framework
Agreement”) for the purpose of consolidating and
governing all the transactions between members of the
Group and members of CTF Jewellery Group and its
subsidiaries (collectively "CTFJ Group”) arising from the
following:

(@) concessionaire arrangements in respect of retailing
counters for the sale of jewellery and watches by
CTFJ Group at properties in Hong Kong and the
PRC owned by, or leased to, the Group or at which
the Group operates its business; and

(b) leasing or sub-leasing of premises to members of
CTFJ Group at properties in Hong Kong and the
PRC which are owned by, or leased to, the Group

(collectively the “Transactions”).

For the year ended 31 December 2015, a total of HK$39.9
million was received/receivable pursuant to the Framework
Agreement. The directors consider that the inclusion of
jewellery and watches at “Chow Tai Fook” branded
retailing counters in the stores operated by the Group
provides a well mix of products for the Group’s customers.

CTF Jewellery Group is an associate of Chow Tai Fook
Enterprises Limited which is an investment holding
company of which the family members of Dato’ Dr. Cheng
Yu Tung (the former Chairman and non-executive director
of the Company who retired from the Board on 4 May
2015) have controlling interest. As such, CTF Jewellery
Group is a connected person of the Company. The
Framework Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder constituted continuing connected transactions
for the Company.

(2)
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(3) Services Framework Agreement — Lifestyle

Properties Group

On 9 April 2015, the Company entered into a services
framework agreement (“Services Framework Agreement”)
with Lifestyle Properties which took effect from 1 January
2015 to 31 December 2017. This agreement regulates,
inter alia, all future transactions between members of the
Lifestyle Properties and its subsidiaries (“Lifestyle
Properties Group”) and members of the Group (excluding
Lifestyle Properties Group) (“Lifestyle International
Group”) arising from the provision by Lifestyle Properties
Group of non-exclusive property project related services
in respect of property development, including but without
limitation feasibility study, design, project co-ordination
and supervision, for the relevant properties owned by or
leased to the Lifestyle International Group and situated in
the PRC and Hong Kong (“Services”). The Services do not
cover the provision of routine property management
services for existing properties of the Lifestyle
International Group. During the year ended 31 December
2015, a total of HK$13.8 million service fees was paid to
Lifestyle Properties Group under the Services Framework
Agreement.

Lifestyle Properties is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company. Mr. Thomas Lau, an executive director and
the controlling shareholder of the Company, holds more
than 10% of the issued shares of Lifestyle Properties. As
such, Lifestyle Properties is a connected person of the
Company and thus, the Services Framework Agreement
and the transactions contemplated thereunder constituted
continuing connected transactions for the Company.

All the Continuing Connected Transactions above have been
reviewed by the independent non-executive directors of the
Company who have confirmed that for the year ended 31
December 2015 the Continuing Connected Transactions have
been entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group; (ii) on normal commercial terms or
better; and (iii) according to the agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company's shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Notice 740 “Auditor’'s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing its findings
and conclusions in respect of the Continuing Connected
Transactions in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules.

(3) MBERGE — A EHLEEE

R-ZZE—RAFMNANAB  ARABIEFEHES]
VRBIERBZ(RBESIERBR]D B2
—hAF—A—ARRE_T—+tF+=-A=+—
BAM - ZipZ A (AR aE) flahEER
HEWB AR ([FEbEEEDKE AR MAE
B EAR(TREMEESR) ([FIEEER
EE D EEEMEEEERFEREREER
EFRBRRBEEEEXEEMEREMEREN
BRMEBEEHBAREMETHNMERS
BIFERRRAIITHEMIE &Rt BEFER
EE([RE]) - REIL T EIEEFEBEEE®H
BEMXIEHOBEMEEERE 2%
—RAFT_AZ=Z+—HLEFEAR  AQERE
RISIEER B ZEAFEOEEBINREERE
+£13,800,0007% 7T, °

MBEHER/RRARFF2EREBMBAT - AR
RITTE S R IR AR 18R 5T £ 15 A TR
EmI10% BT « Bt - FIRER/ER
AIMBEMB AR RBERBERE T 2R
SERARBZBEEERS -

RRABZBIIEATEFEER A L2 IFERMER
2 UHRBE_ZT-—RAFt+t-_A=1+—HLFE "
ZERBHEXSDOBARFRBBEBREIL
(AR IR — AR 15 IR N S B AR FOETT © M ARIBZ
EX G HRIETETT - ERAFAE - XFAEAR

AICRA R A -

ARAFBEERARF 2 ZBEREFL S QS 3
2 BB LR RIS AERSE 3000 5% (K IEFT) [ H|ixkE®E
BREM B ER AN ZEE TR - WRECEBHA)
FE7405% TR T B( EMRADMAFFEERHH
ZEBEMEH ] RAREZIHEREX S IEHER
ZERIERIE ETRAIE 14A56 16 - SAIRERER S
BRI AR BRI

51

Rl IR = A - e

Ee Rt = B



G0z Moday [enuuy  paliwi] sBulp|oH |euoneuiaiu| o|A1sa

52

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED) #EE&#{&3E (&)

The related party transactions set out in notes 40(a)(i) and
40(a)(iv) to the consolidated financial statements constituted
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules and the Company has complied with the
relevant requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules in respect of such transactions. The related party
transactions shown in notes 21, 40(a)(ii) and 40(a)(iii) to the
consolidated financial statements constituted connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions but are
exempt from shareholders’ approval and disclosure and other
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Businesses
The following directors have interests in the following
businesses which are considered to compete or are likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the
Group as disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules:

4R & B 7% 5 5% B R 40(a) (i) K 40(a)(iv) Fr & 2 B i A+
ZHEXLETHRAUNETTNAEEE Z2HEBER
5 MARRECMZERFUTETHAZ ZHEEEE
T o AR ERMFE21 ~ 40(a)(ii) K 40(a)(iii) = 8 2
AR GEBREBER GHIFEBERS - EAERE
B EMRAE T HAS 2 REH AN E R H AR

.
T °

EERNBFXRBE B

TIEERAR RYEA R E AR RIS 8.10 {5 AT i ER 62
AEEEXBEEAEZBNGFRARBREF 22X

hEs

Nature of
Interest of
Description of the director in
Name of director Name of entity businesses the entity
=y HRER EZv AL MY EENZERZ
EmME
Mr. Doo Wai Hoi, William New World Development Property development and Director
MEESEE Company Limited investment and department =

it ABERER AT

Amelia Gold Limited
group of companies
Amelia Gold Limited j& T~ 53

Fortune Success Limited
group of companies

BERRARET RE

Fung Seng Enterprises
Investment Company Limited
group of companies

SROEREFRAFE T EE

Fung Seng Enterprises Limited
group of companies

SRAZOEARAFE T KE

Golden Wealth Investment Limited
group of companies

TEREARARETEHE

Silver City International Limited
group of companies
Silver City International Limited

ETEE

Sunshine Dragon Group Limited
group of companies

Sunshine Dragon Group Limited
RN EE

Chinese Estates Holdings Limited
Chinese Estates Holdings Limited

(EABEEE)

Ms. Lau Yuk Wai, Amy
EELL

store operations

MEERMERAELE

Property investment

MERE

Property investment

MERE

Property investment

MEHRE

Property investment and
management

MEIE N ETE

Property investment and
development

MERE MER

Property investment and food
and beverage operations

MEREREREE

Property investment

MEHRE

Property investment and
development

MERE MER

Director and
shareholder
BEENMRE
Director and
shareholder
EERERRE
Director and
shareholder

BEERBRR

Director and
shareholder
EENRRE
Director and
shareholder
EERRRE
Director and
shareholder

EERBRE

Director and
shareholder

EERBR

Director

5%
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As the Board of the Company is independent of the boards of
the above-mentioned companies and none of the above
directors are in control the Board of the Company, the Group is
therefore capable of carrying on its businesses independently
of, and at arm’s length, from the businesses of these companies.

Changes in Information of Directors
Below are the changes in directors’ information required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

The director’s fee of Mr. Thomas Lau has been adjusted to
HK$200,000 per annum with effect from 1 January 2016.

Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon resigned as an independent non-
executive director of Kiu Hung International Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange, with effect from 20
February 2016.

The Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham is an independent non-
executive director of Dorsett Hospitality International Limited
whose shares were withdrawn from listing on Stock Exchange
on 16 October 2015.

Mr. Hui Chiu Chung has been appointed an independent non-
executive director of FSE Engineering Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange, with effect from 18
November 2015.

Mr. Ip Yuk Keung has been appointed (i) an adjunct professor at
University of Macau with effect from 18 September 2015 and
(i) an honorary professor of Lingnan University with effect from
1 January 2016. He ceased as a council member of Lingnan
University with effect from 21 October 2015.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

Pursuant to the Company'’s articles of association, every director
shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all losses or liabilities which he/she may
sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/her
office or otherwise in relation thereto. There is appropriate
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the
directors and officers of the Group.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company'’s Securities

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company
repurchased a total of 26,798,500 shares of the Company on the
Stock Exchange for enhancing net asset value and earnings per
share of the Company. All the repurchased shares were
cancelled. Details of the repurchases of shares are as follows:

BE - HESBEEA QTR SF

REE-_ZT-—RAE+-_A=+—"HIFE XQFTE
Bét <2 B B [0 & 3£ 26,798,500 I AN A RIAR 1D+ LAIR S
NAIFERNEEFELET - ZZ0OERME T
i o BRI Z BT

Number of Purchase price per share Aggregate

shares SREEE purchase price

Month repurchased Highest Lowest (excluding expenses)

B BEROHBE Bs BE HRBEE(TEEZEA)

HK$ HK$ HK$

BIT 7 TT HTT

March 2015 4,395,500 13.52 13.22 58,871,510.00
—T-HF=A

April 2015 4,858,500 14.70 14.14 70,392,750.00
—ZE-HFMA

May 2015 10,260,000 14.62 13.96 145,847,440.00
—T—-HFHA

June 2015 1,768,000 14.48 13.76 24,925,990.00
—E—RFXA

August 2015 4,632,500 13.08 11.70 57,163,285.05
—E—RFNA

September 2015 884,000 12.10 11.62 10,522,980.00
—T-HFEAA

26,798,500 367,723,955.05

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any listed
securities of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2015.

Remuneration Policy

The remuneration policy of the Group is set on the basis of the
employees’ merit, qualifications and competence. The
emoluments of the directors of the Company are reviewed by
the remuneration committee, with consideration to the
Company’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics. The Company has adopted a
share option scheme as an incentive to directors and eligible
employees of the Group.
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Employees

As at 31 December 2015, the Group employed a total of 825
employees in Hong Kong and 1,552 employees in the PRC. Staff
costs (excluding directors’ emoluments), amounted to HK$439.4
million (2014: HK$424.3 million) for the year. The Group ensures
that the pay levels of its employees are competitive and in line
with market trend and its employees are rewarded on a
performance related basis within the general framework of the
Group's salary and bonus system.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the
Company'’s shares has been held by the public as at the date of
this report.

Auditor
The consolidated financial statements for the year have been
audited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”). A
resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to reappoint Deloitte as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board
Lau Luen Hung, Thomas
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

29 February 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

BYZBMBES

Deloitte.
=Z)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
LIFESTYLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Lifestyle International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the "Group”) set out on
pages 58 to 159, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2015, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the applicable
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2015, and of its financial performance and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
29 February 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEBEERkEMEEER

for the year ended 31 December 2015 #IZ — T —hF +_A=+—HIELFE

2015 2014
—E-HF | ZE—OF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
i Tt i
Turnover = 5] 7 6,171,393 5,969,740
Cost of sales HE AR 7 (2,464,452) (2,385,930)
Gross profit E7 3,706,941 3,583,810
Other income, gains and losses HgA ~ W R EE 9 166,271 187,380
Selling and distribution costs SHE ko HEK AR (1,249,517) (1,192,362)
Administrative expenses 1T (268,688) (264,112)
Investment income LB WA 10 163,509 413,849
Fair value changes on investment properties REMENTE 17 3,000 (3,053)
Share of profit of a joint venture BiE—REEERH 21 38,040 26,463
Share of profits of associates FE(R BN B) % A 20 400,505 347,157
Finance costs AR 1 (284,650) (267,267)
Profit before taxation B4 B /I 02 A 2,675,411 2,831,865
Taxation I 12 (504,097) (466,395)
Profit for the year REFE T 13 2,171,314 2,365,470
Other comprehensive expense Hip2m=H
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to BEE IR EF DR B
profit or loss: ZIBH :
Exchange differences arising on translation of WMEGINERIFESE
foreign operation 2N ERE (455,292) (220,095)
Share of exchange differences of associates FE(G B E N A PE =58 (115,970) (47,019)
Share of exchange difference of a joint venture [Elh—REEEEL =5 (14,136) (7,087)
Other comprehensive expense for the year NEEFEHMEER S L (585,398) (274,201)
Total comprehensive income for the year REE 2R ALLEE 1,585,916 2,091,269
Profit for the year attributable to: AFEEEERAM
Owners of the Company NANRIER A 1,914,392 2,143,994
Non-controlling interests IR ME 2 256,922 221,476
2,171,314 2,365,470
Total comprehensive income attributable to: R 2T REE
Owners of the Company IN/NECIEZ =N 1,410,640 1,914,900
Non-controlling interests IEFE G RE = 175,276 176,369
1,585,916 2,091,269
Earnings per share FREAF 16
— basic — E K HK$1.19 HK$1.31
— diluted — s HK$1.19 HK$1.31
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

LR
AR RE g
At 31 December 2015 R—E—AFE+-_A=+—H
3
2015 2014 =
—E-RHE | —_ET-OF [E
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000 A
i 3E T e e
Non-current assets EREEE _
Investment properties b =¥/ 17 668,390 700,403 -
Property, plant and equipment WE - BE NG 18 5,945,766 5,600,456 N
Prepaid lease payments EBAHEERIA 19 3,425,462 4,250,922 o
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, ﬁ%g%% J??ib%j& b e
plant and equipment & 46,146 24,931 %
Interests in associates i ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁéﬁﬁ 20 3,202,796 2,926,323 £
Interest in a joint venture w— R 21 491,680 556,835
Properties under development %X‘JEEF‘ %% 22 778,716 -
Club debentures SFRIES 19,137 15,637
14,578,093 14,075,507
Current assets MEVEE
Inventories zE 23 79,348 86,419
Prepaid lease payments EBAHEEFRIA 19 80,204 94,504
Trade and other receivables FEU AR &EI@JE Mﬁz IE 24 273,242 367,766
Amount due from a joint venture FEW—REENER 25 - 11,638
Financial assets at fair value through ?§ﬁ$@u‘f‘)\i§\ﬁnz
profit or loss TREE 26 5,123,761 3,899,564
Bank balances and cash RITHEENRE 27 8,669,626 8,312,497
14,226,181 12,772,388
Current liabilities mENEE
Trade and other payables FENBRETR &,H\ﬁﬂr’éﬂ"f IE 28 2,430,489 2,608,405
Amount due to a joint venture EN—FREENER 25 40,101 -
Tax payable FEFTRIA 354,486 343,756
Bank borrowings — due within one year RITEE — —F AT 29 3,165,156 2,004,388
Derivative financial liabilities TEsamasE 30 1,997 7,307
5,992,229 4,963,856
Net current assets mEVEEFEE 8,233,952 7,808,532
Total assets less current liabilities BEERLBAEE 22,812,045 21,884,039
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED) #R=& Bk 3k (4)

At 31 December 2015 R=Z—RF+=-A=+—H

2015 2014
—E-RE | —ET—WUF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
i FiEx FAT

Non-current liabilities ERBAEE
Bank borrowings — due after one year RITEE — —F1&EH 29 888,594 2,350,024
Bonds (EE2 31 8,462,750 6,169,468
Deferred tax liabilities FEEBIEEE 32 234,020 237,969

Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder FEB B A A — & FEFERR

of subsidiaries A& EE 7 I8 33 130,550 137,665
9,715,914 8,895,126
13,096,131 12,988,913

Capital and reserves BEAR R
Share capital P& A 34 8,013 8,147
Reserves =2 11,115,046 11,094,220
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RNBEE ANELREZS 11,123,059 11,102,367
Non-controlling interests JEFEPS RERS 1,973,072 1,886,546
13,096,131 12,988,913

The consolidated financial statements on pages 58 to 159 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

29 February 2016 and are signed on its behalf by:

Lau Luen Hung, Thomas 2|58

Executive Director $177% &=

Doo Wai Hoi, William #E1is

FESBEINVEGAMBRREEEEN T F=
AT NARSERBRETE SHTIESKREE

Non-executive Director JFHIITE =



61

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
reERB R

for the year ended 31 December 2015 &2 —ZE —RF + - A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

Rl IR = A - e

EATEEAEETD
Share-
Capital Asset based Non-
Share Share redemption revaluation  Exchange  payment  Retained controlling
capital  premium  Reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total  interests Total B
EARE  EEEf RAFR *2R -
BE  RHEE s i wE ERREG wE REEA a5t | 353 @zt =
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 o
TERL TR TER FEL FEL TERL TERL TR TR TR TR kil
(Note 36) F
(M336) F
#
A1 January 2014 H-Z-mE-F-8 82 105 S0 B 30 A5 834 93042 1046455 1799205 12263770
Profit for the year RER T - - - - - - - 2M3W 2143994 21476 2365470
Other comprehensive expense AEEEM2AXE
for the year - - - - - (229,094) - - (229,094) @5107) (274,201
Total comprehensive income TERRERALE
for the year - - - - - (229,094) - 2143994 1,914900 176369 2,091,269
Share repurchase RiAERE
— repurchase of shares —BOkh (116) - - - - - - - (116) - (116)
— premium on repurchase of shares —BORh 2 EE - (29,110) - - - - - (323387) (35249 - (352,497
— transfer —82 - - - 116 - - - (116) - - -
Exercise and lapse of share options BIRERTEREN 1 17,035 - - - - (148,364) 146,09% 14,778 - 14778
Dividend paid to non-controlling BN FHERERRS
shareholders - - - - - - - - - (89,028) (89,028
Dividends paid (Note 15) BIRARE (3 15) - - - - - - - (939,263 (939,263) - (939,263)
Transfer of reserves HEREE - - 19,031 - - - - (19,031) - - -
At 31 December 2014 RZZ-ME+-A=+-R 8,147 - 76,121 553 3,680 625111 - 10388755 11102367 1886546 12988913
Profit for the year RERRA - - - - - - - 1914392 1914392 256922 2171314
Other comprehensive expense AEREMRERH
for the year - - - - - (503,752) - - (503,752) (81,646)  (585,398)
Total comprehensive income TEERERALE
for the year - - - - - (503,752) - 1914392 1,410,640 175276 1585916
Share repurchase RIAER
— repurchase of shares —BORkh (134) - - - - - - - (134) - (134)
— premium on repurchase of shares —BERG 2 EE - - - - - - - (36862) (368629 - [368609)
— transfer —gz - - - 13 - - - (134) - - -
Dividend paid to non-controlling BIRATHERERRE
shareholders - - - - - - - - - (88,750) (88,750)
Dividends paid (Note 15) BIRARE (i 15) - - - - - - - (1021185 (1,021,189) - (1,021,189
Transfer of reserves BEEE - - 4572 - - - - 4572) - - -

At 31 December 2015 WZE-RF+-A=1-H 8013 - 80,693 687 3,680 121,359 - 10908627 11123059 1973072 13,096,131
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERERER

for the year ended 31 December 2015 #IZ — T —hF +_A=+—HIELFE

2015 2014
—E-AF —Z=—EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BT
Profit before taxation BRELRTE A 2,675,411 2,831,865
Adjustments for: KYER AT % -
Interest income on bank deposits RITIF R Z A BUA (150,741) (201,768)
Imputed interest income HER A - (1,622)
Other interest income E A B HA (3,520) (5,617)
Finance costs BE A 284,650 267,267
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Y - BENEEINE 238,322 253,198
Release of prepaid lease payments TAfT A E IR 23,827 24,370
Dividend income from financial assets at BAFERFABRZ
fair value through profit or loss TREEZREWA (36,593) (29,615)
Interest income from financial assets at BATEFABR 2 EREARE
fair value through profit or loss ZFEHA (80,206) (46,380)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - WEL&E
plant and equipment &8 11,399 741
Fair value changes in respect of financial BAFEFABRZ
assets at fair value through profit or loss EMEEZ NFEEE 107,551 (128,847)
Changes in fair value of investment properties EYE L NTEZE) (3,000) 3,053
Share of profit of a joint venture BE—REELEET (38,040) (26,463)
Share of profits of associates FEAGHE & R E)E T (400,505) (347,157)
(Reversal of) write-down of obsolete inventories T E () U (7) 444
Reversal of impairment and written-off of JFEE Lt PR 35K e L A Wi K 1B
trade and other receivables B AT iERE e (3) (926)
Operating cash flows before movements in EEESEHHNCERE
working capital mE 2,628,545 2,592,543
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERAD (Em) 4,894 (7,550)
Decrease (increase) in trade and other receivables & Uk BR 7t N H fih & U FR I8 R D (38 00) 51,182 (22,888)
Decrease (increase) in amount due from R —REELERE
a joint venture B (35 0) 11,638 (35,769)
Increase in amount due to a joint venture BN —REECERIAEEMN 40,101 -
(Decrease) increase in trade and other payables JEASTBR 3 % oAb A 5K I8 O A>) 380 (89,325) 86,866
Cash generated from operations IREHEESIRS 2,647,035 2,613,202
Interest received BF B 151,905 204,479
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EEEBAEN (333,852) (367,774)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BB REMmEH (155,272) (66,187)
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded EATEFER 7,482 458
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEBRBREFER 2,317,298 2,384,178




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED) #&aR&RER ()
for the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZE —Z—AF+_A=+—HILFE

2015 2014
—E-HEF —E—4E
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBR FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES KEES
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HERAFEGFABR
at fair value through profit or loss ZEREEEHR 1,901,161 1,685,283
Purchase of financial assets at fair BEIEAFETAEBREZ
value through profit or loss TREE (3,218,435) (2,110,272)
Interest received from financial assets at BATER AERZ
fair value through profit or loss SRMEEZBEWFE 80,206 46,380
Investment income received from derivative HeMITETEMRGZ
financial instruments & W= - 1,177
Dividend received from an associate H—FKBERR 2B W E 54,315 22,818
Dividend received from a joint venture H—REEREZEWRRKRE 37,239 -
Dividend received from financial assets at WIEAFEFTABRZ
fair value through profit or loss TRIEEZEWRE 36,593 29,615
Interest received from a joint venture —REBLEZBWFE 3,011 3,559
Repayment from a joint venture H—REELEMBER 47,200 12,460
Acquisition of additional interest in an associate A — K& A B 2 BEINIE (13,360) -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME  HEL&B (809,073) (603,770)
Investment expenses paid for derivative BERTESHBTAZ
financial instruments TEZH (19,784) (6,258)
Additions to investment properties BEIREYE - (3,350)
Purchase of club debentures BEEMES (3,500) —
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries HEMB A RERIE - 342,526
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYZE - BB KRB
plant and equipment FT1S K 254 439
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES RERBMARCFE (1,904,173) (579,393)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES S VEE)
Advance from a joint venture —REBEREEBRK - 32,682
New bank borrowings raised HERITIEE 1,239,287 2,458,741
Exercise of share options 1Tl AR i - 14,778
Repayment of bank borrowings BRRTEE (1,503,691) (2,760,385)
Repayment to non-controlling shareholders B R FEIE R AR R - (38,377)
Dividends paid 2R E (1,021,185) (939,263)
Finance costs paid B BE A (473,330) (426,323)
Repurchase of ordinary shares of the Company [ CIRN/NET S Y (368,763) (352,613)
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders BIRAT 45 FEIEAR AR AR B (88,750) (89,028
Issue of bonds HITES 2,287,521 -
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) BMEEBAE(PTR)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES b b 71,089 (2,099,788)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND Re LREEEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS ECRA) FEE 484,214 (295,003)
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE [ERZEE T2
RATE DIFFERENCE (127,085) (61,560)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FNHRERREEEY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 8,312,497 8,669,060
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FR[ENRIREEEBY
END OF THE YEAR 8,669,626 8,312,497
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  R& RBREEHEEBY 2O
Bank balances and cash RITEENES 8,669,626 8,312,497

Rl IR = A - e

Ee Rt = B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e D HRRME

for the year ended 31 December 2015 #IZ — T —hF +_A=+—HIELFE

1.

General

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law in the
Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Prior to 22 December 2014, the Company’s ultimate
holding and immediate holding company was Real Reward
Limited (“Real Reward”), a company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. As a result of completion of “Sale and
Purchase Agreements” (as defined in the composite offer
document of the Company dated 9 January 2015) in
respect of the sales of the Company’s shares by Real
Reward on 22 December 2014, Real Reward is no longer
the Company’s ultimate holding and immediate holding
company. The new ultimate holding and immediate
holding company is Asia Prime Assets Limited and United
Goal Resources Limited, respectively. Both companies are
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The Company's
ultimate controlling party after 22 December 2014 is Mr.
Thomas Lau, who is also the chief executive officer and an
executive director of the Company.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate
information section to the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are the
operation of “lifestyle” department stores and other
retailing format and property development and property
investment.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

Application of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs")

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants ("HKICPA") for the first time in the
current year:

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs ~ Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

—REIH
ARAR—HARHASHEREHASERERARE
MR ARBRBERABZARET AR
HEHBRMNEBBEXIMERAR ([EBZMD
£

EZE—NF+AZ+ZHZAH ' ARRINE&
AT RS N B 1E IR A A B Real Reward Limited
([Real Reward]) * —"RIRFASEHSFHMEKINA
AleBER_T—NE+_A-+-HTHK®
Real Reward E HA QA RIRMD 2 BB % - (1K
RARZE—RAF—ANBNEEENXHFRE
%) ' Real Reward THE R RIM R KRIER M B £
AT - MHREEBRMEZER AR S HE
Asia Prime Assets Limited &2 United Goal
Resources Limited -+ FMIZR A 7] #DH 58 4 5 7 AF
SEMAT - ARRMGREEFFEZS—HF
+TZAZH+ZRAZE  RARFNRITESRE
JEITE BB AE -

MM ERMU AR B T ZLEEMBEEFE
WELEERBORRKE -

RARMERKREER AR - EXTEMBRARZ
TEEBREE [HERHH] AEEREMEE
Fi5 o URMEEHREYERE -

FAMBMRARRAREEEEETIIE -

BRI REETEBYBREE
RI(TEEMBREEA L

AEERAFEERERATEESHAE
(IHFBERIAE ) BH 2 BEBUBREER
ZIEET

BRGENF19RBIIA)  FEENEE

BT
BETBERESEANEET BV BREER
FEHE (20105
Z 20124 H1R)
EATBREEANET BT BREER
FEME (20114
Z 2013 HAf)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) #R& Bf 3% 3k i ot (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ =T —HAF+=-A=+—HIFE

Application of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group's
financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 11
Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

Financial Instruments: Hedge
accounting and impairment?

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations'

Disclosure Initiative'

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation'

Agriculture: Bearer Plants'

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception'

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle'

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016, with earlier application permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018, with earlier application permitted.

The Group has early applied HKFRS 9 issued in November
2009 and revised in October 2010 regarding classification
and measurement of financial assets and disclosure
requirements. The Group has not yet early applied a revised
version of HKFRS 9 issued in September 2014 which deals
with classification and measurement, general hedge
accounting and impairment which is mandatorily effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,
with earlier application permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to
be determined.

B PR 37 5T T2 SRS AT B 58 B 0 8 4
B ([ & 55 B A6 3R 5 22 8 ) ()

MAFEEBEER] 2 BEBMBIME LG A
EENAERE RARFE R REHRGRE VT
TP EE 2 MR RN EE S ERF

a
=

AN E I R P AR LA 2 AR 1B 1 R AR R
HE] BRI BB M E AR

ERMBREERFE T

SRMIA: b

eENRE?
BRRBEMEENE 155 RERPAHZ
Yz
BB BIREEAE 158 WiE & RS
(ERTA) HZERRE
BRGEAE 1R WEATE
SCHEN)
BEREHENE16RR EREHAES
F3BFE (BT L) ZIERE

BB ENE 16 R
F4157(BRTAR)
ERUBIREERF 1051

BE EEMEY

RAMEAERE

B GFTERIE 285 REEECH
(1BFTA) MEEEESR
A
ERMEREERNE 105 - RAEE: EA
FRHRBEALERE 8% HKEAKRZ
(1BFTA) BIsMESR
EETBREENMET BAET RS LA
FENE(2012F
Z 2014 FHiR )

UO¥2016F 1 A1 AR ERIBNFEER R - AR
BN -

2 ¥W2018F 1 A1 Bk BB FEAR - R
BN -

3 KREBE RS EAR2009F 11 A 58# &K 2010 4F
10 BERTM B AR EEAFEORPEHEMEE
2o HERBEENR - A AEBETRIETR
FERRF 2014 4F 9 A M BB M EERIE 95 (&
ATHR) P D RETE - — RSP EHATRESN
BRI - E¥2018F 1 A 1Az #MBz FEAR
REFIR TR -

b HEERERARIARRER A B FRE o
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Rl IR = A - e

Ee Rt = B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) #R& B R MisE (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z = —AF+-A=+—HILFE

Application of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

HKFRS 9 was amended in 2013 to include the new
requirements for general hedge accounting. A revised
version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly to include a)
impairment requirements for financial assets and b) limited
amendments to the classification and measurement
requirements by introducing a “fair value through other
comprehensive income” ("FVTOCI") measurement
category for certain simple debt instruments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

Certain financial assets held within a business model
whose objective is achieved both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets
should be measured at FVTOCI (unless designated
at fair value through profit and loss ("FVTPL") to
eliminate or significantly reduce a measurement
mismatch). This applies to assets passing the
contractual cash flow characteristics assessment
(which is the same test used to determine whether
financial assets are measured at amortised cost).
Interest revenue, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment gains and losses shall be recognised
in profit or loss with all other gains or losses (i.e. the
difference between those items and the total change
in fair value) being recognised in other
comprehensive income. Any cumulative gain or loss
recorded in other comprehensive income would be
reclassified to profit and loss on derecognition, or
potentially earlier if the asset is reclassified because
of a change in business model. Interest income and
impairment gains and losses would be recognised
and measured in the same manner as for assets
measured at amortised cost such that the amounts in
other comprehensive income represents the
difference between the amortised cost value and fair
value. This results in the same information in profit or
loss as if the asset was measured at amortised cost,
yet the consolidated statement of financial position
would reflect the instrument’s fair value.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model, as
opposed to an incurred credit loss model under
HKAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires
an entity to account for expected credit losses and
changes in those expected credit losses at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred before
credit losses are recognised.

EAFREETEEUBRESE
RI(T&EEMBREER ] (&)

ERMBREENEIRISRMT A
R-F-=F I 2B BB MEERF O
BRE-REPSGHTERBENTRE - R =-F
— PO R BB B T W R 9 SR EE R
ARANE Z 1A (2) M 75 B E B9 RLE AR E M (b) 7%
RETHERHTESIAEERAFERA
Hitvzmibz= ] 885 BoBRERE
EHRARIERT ©

ERYBHMELEAE RN T ZREHRMT

. —EEREEANFAFENE THBEE
BENRARKRaNBEeREENBE
ER - EBEATESAEMZEKRER
W (R IEFEE AR FERT ARz [ AR
Bt RS | DUBRR SR D BRZEDNETER
Th) - EEAREERBEARARSRE
FEeHE (BERNEESMEERT A
L H AT ERRIED) - RIS WA - #
HYsiE AR MR EE S EERNIER
HLH M AT A YRR K (BIABLEIE B AR
FEZ B MM EE) R AR
b2 E U R o EfA A A KM E W s &
NEFFHRESIBRNE LR GE
MOBERD  HARERAEERAD
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BRRZBHEAABEBEERFEZHD
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. MU BEENREMS  BEBGFAE

BIE39RAE TREELEEBBEENG
HHER BB BEREEREOFRER
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BEXFEERNESAETAKBEREESR
BEZEEEBENEHZHAR A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) #R& Bf 3% 3k i ot (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ =T —HAF+=-A=+—HIFE

Application of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (continued)

o The new general hedge accounting requirements
retain the three types of hedge accounting. However,
greater flexibility has been introduced to the types
of transactions eligible for hedge accounting,
specifically broadening the types of instruments that
qualify for hedging instruments and the types of risk
components of non-financial items that are eligible
for hedge accounting. In addition, the effectiveness
test has been overhauled and replaced with the
principle of an ‘economic relationship’. Retrospective
assessment of hedge effectiveness is also no longer
required. Enhanced disclosure requirements about
an entity’s risk management activities have also been
introduced.

The directors of the Company is in the process of making
an assessment of the potential impact of the application
of HKFRS 9 and it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 9 until the
Group performs a detailed review.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers”

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15
will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related Interpretations when it becomes
effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in
the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity

satisfies a performance obligation
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Application of New and Revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers” (continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or
as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been added
in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore,
extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

The directors of the Company is in the process of making
an assessment of the potential impact of the application
of HKFRS 15 and it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15 until the
Group performs a detailed review.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate the
application of the other new and revised HKFRSs will have
material effect on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
("CO").

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for investment
properties that are measured at fair values at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies below.

The provisions of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) regarding preparation of accounts
and directors’ reports and audits became effective for the
Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2015.
Further, the disclosure requirements set out in the Listing
Rules regarding annual accounts have been amended with
reference to the new CO and to streamline with HKFRSs.
Accordingly, the presentation and disclosure of
information in the consolidated financial statements for
the financial year ended 31 December 2015 have been
changed to comply with these new requirements.
Comparative information in respect of the financial year
ended 31 December 2014 are presented or disclosed in
the consolidated financial statements based on the new
requirements. Information previously required to be
disclosed under the predecessor CO or Listing Rules but
not under the new CO or amended Listing Rules are not
disclosed in these consolidated financial statements.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is
determined on such a basis, except for share-based
payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS
2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Company.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of
the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of
the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9,
when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The
financial statements of associates and joint ventures used
for equity accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate or a joint
venture is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or
loss and other comprehensive income of the associate or
joint venture. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate or joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in
that associate or joint venture (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate or joint venture), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Investments in associates and joint ventures
(continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes an associate or a joint
venture. On acquisition of the investment in an associate
or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss
in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group's investment in an associate or a
joint venture. When necessary, the entire carrying amount
of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 "Impairment of
Assets” as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs of
disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate or joint venture are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the associate
or joint venture that are not related to the Group.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries presented in the statement of
financial position included in note 43 to the consolidated
financial statements are stated at cost less any identified
impairment loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods
are delivered and title has been passed, at which time all
the following conditions are satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

. the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Income from concessionaire sales is recognised upon
sales of goods by the relevant shops based on certain
percentage of turnover in accordance with the terms of
contracts. When the concessionaires fail to meet the
minimum guarantee income in accordance with the terms
of contracts, the relevant shops are required to pay the
minimum guarantee amount and hence the minimum
guarantee amount is recognised as income at that time.

Service income is recognised when services are rendered.

Dividend income from investment is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established (provided that it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of revenue
can be measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset including financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land
and buildings held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purposes (other
than construction in progress) are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include
professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the
appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other property
assets, commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the assets
(other than construction in progress) less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.

When buildings are in the course of development for
production or for administrative purposes, the
amortisation of prepaid lease payments provided during
the construction period is included as part of costs of
buildings under construction. Buildings under construction
are carried at cost, less any identified impairment losses.
Depreciation of buildings commences when they are
available for use (i.e. when they are in the location and
condition necessary for them to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management).

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. The cost comprises land,
development and construction expenditure, borrowing
costs capitalised and other direct costs attributable to the
development. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price at which the property can be realised less related
expenses.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation (including properties under
construction for such purposes).
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Investment properties (continued)

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at their fair values. Gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value of investment properties are
included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the
period in which the item is derecognised.

Club debentures
Club debentures are measured at cost less any impairment
losses.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Contingent
rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as
an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised
as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) #R& B R MisE (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z = —AF+-A=+—HILFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as a
finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element and building
element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as "prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term on a
straight-line basis except for those that are classified and
accounted for as investment properties under the fair
value model. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and building elements,
the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease
and accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) #R& Bf 3% 3k i ot (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ =T —HAF+=-A=+—HIFE

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise, except for exchange differences arising
on a monetary item that forms part of the Company’s net
investment in a foreign operation, in which case, such
exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity and will
be reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal of
the foreign operation. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period except for
exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income, in
which cases, the exchange differences are also recognised
directly in other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income
and expenses items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of exchange reserve.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income because of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) #R& B #% 3R M = (80

for the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z =%
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
arrangements, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period. The
measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale.
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for the year ended 31 December 2015 & Z= =%
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the current and deferred tax are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are calculated using
weighted average method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories less all
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to
make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured
in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) #R& B R MisE (&)
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost less impairment
loss (except for debt investments that are designated as at
FVTPL on initial recognition):

. the asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments measured subsequently at amortised
cost. Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is
included in “investment income” line item.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Investments in equity instruments are classified as FVTPL,
unless the Group designates an investment that is not
held for trading as at FVTOCI on initial recognition. The
Group has not designated investments in unlisted equity
securities as at FVTOCI.

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost
criteria (see above) are measured at FVTPL. In addition,
debt instruments that meet the amortised cost criteria but
are designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL. A
debt instrument may be designated as at FVTPL upon
initial recognition if such designation eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or
liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on
different bases.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)

Debt instruments are reclassified from amortised cost to
FVTPL when the business model is changed such that the
amortised cost criteria are no longer met. Reclassification
of debt instruments that are designated as FVTPL on initial
recognition is not allowed.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses
arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss is included in
the “investment income” line item in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any dividend or interest earned on these financial
assets.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial assets, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been affected.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, objective
evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period of 30 days, as well as observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly with the exception of trade
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit
or loss. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the investment at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale,
issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity
instruments.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the

financial liabilities are either held for trading or those
designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative, except for a derivative that is a
financial guarantee contract or a designated and
effective hedging instrument.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise. The net gain or loss is included in the
“investment income” line item in profit or loss and
includes any interest paid on the financial liabilities.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including bank borrowings,
bonds, trade and other payables, concessionaire sales
payable, amount due to a joint venture and amount due
to a non-controlling shareholder of subsidiaries are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss immediately.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit
or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets with finite
useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment losses on tangible assets (continued)
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Other government
grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses
or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans
are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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Critical Accounting Judgements and Key

Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimates are
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
The followings are the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies and that has the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax liabilities
arising from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the directors of the Company
have reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolio
and concluded that the Group's investment properties are
not held under a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time.
Therefore, in determining the Group's deferred taxation
on investment properties, the directors of the Company
have determined that the presumption that the carrying
amounts of investment properties measured using fair
value model are recovered entirely through sale is not
rebutted. The Group has recognised deferred taxes of
HK$156,478,000 (2014: HK$165,231,000) on changes in fair
value of the investment properties situated in the People's
Republic of China (the “PRC") as those properties are
subject to land appreciation taxes and enterprise income
taxes upon disposal as appropriate. No deferred tax has
been recognised on changes in fair value of investment
properties situated in Hong Kong as it is not expected to
have tax consequence upon disposal of these properties.
The deferred tax liabilities in respect of land appreciation
taxes in the PRC are determined based on valuations of
the investment properties performed by independent
professional valuers and on the assumption that the values
are the actual proceeds to be received from the sale of
these properties.
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Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

(continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group has a portfolio of investments in which the
directors of the Company confirm that the business model
of holding these investments is not just to collect the
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
Accordingly, they are classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss in accordance with HKFRS 9
issued in November 2009 and revised in October 2010. At
31 December 2015, the Group's financial assets are
measured at fair value through profit or loss which are
HK$5,123,761,000 (2014: HK$3,899,564,000).

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

Income taxes

At 31 December 2015, no deferred tax asset had been
recognised in respect of the tax losses of approximately
HK$766.2 million (2014: HK$650.6 million) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The realisability of
the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether
sufficient future assessable profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In cases where
the estimated future assessable profits or taxable
temporary difference are more than previously estimated,
a material recognition of deferred tax assets may arise,
which would be recognised in profit or loss for the period
in which the revised estimate takes place.

Investment properties

As described in note 17, the fair value of the Group's
investment properties situated in Hong Kong and the PRC
at 31 December 2015 had been arrived at based on a
valuation carried out at that date by DTZ Debenham Tie
Leung Limited (“DTZ"), an independent professional
valuer. The fair value of the Group's investment properties
at 31 December 2015 was arrived at based on direct
comparison method assuming sales of each of the
properties in its existing state and by making references to
comparable sales evidences of similar nature properties as
available in the relevant market.
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Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

(continued)

Investment properties (continued)

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties
situated in Hong Kong and the PRC was stated at fair
value at 31 December 2014 which was determined by the
directors of the Company with reference to a valuation
performed by DTZ carried out at 30 November 2014 and
recent property market data of similar properties in the
relevant locations. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the fair value of these properties at 31
December 2014 approximated the fair value at 30
November 2014. The fair value of the Group's investment
properties at 30 November 2014 was arrived at based on
direct comparison method assuming sales of each of the
properties in its existing state and by making reference to
comparable sales evidences of similar nature properties
available in the relevant market.

At 31 December 2015, the carrying amount of the Group’s
investment properties are HK$668,390,000 (2014:
HK$700,403,000). By relying on the valuation reports of the
independent professional valuers, the management has
exercised its judgment and is satisfied that the method of
valuation is reflective of the market conditions prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Any changes in the
market conditions will affect the fair value of the
investment properties of the Group.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes
Some of the Group's assets and liabilities are measured at
fair value for financial reporting purposes. The board of
directors of the Company has a designated team to
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties, the Group uses market-observable data to the
extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not
available, the Group engages third party qualified valuers
to perform the valuation of the Group’s investment
properties. At the end of each reporting period, the
management of the Group works closely with the qualified
external valuers to establish and determine the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for Level 2
and Level 3 fair value measurements. The Group will first
consider and adopt Level 2 inputs where inputs can be
derived from observable quoted prices in the active
market. When Level 2 inputs are not available, the Group
will adopt valuation techniques that include Level 3 inputs.
Where there is a material change in the fair value of the
assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be reported to
the board of directors of the Company. Information about
the valuation techniques and inputs used in determining
the fair value of the Group’s investment properties are
disclosed in note 17.

B RS H AN EER#E MR
R ()

REW (H)
AREBEUREERTENRENER T 1
FT-A=T—"HHNAFELAZRRESRES
BEERTE_ZT-—HFE+—A=1+HAETH
EMERAREE R R EITO TS8R E
FEeARFMEZERR —FT—NF+_H
=T -HOREMEAFER-_ZE-NFE+—
A=Z+THORFERE - AEBREMER -
T-EE+-A=TANAFERBEELR
ARREEMEERREER2ZRUEREY
FHALLHE R 5HRETE °

R-E-—RAFE+-_A=+—0 AE£EKREY
¥ 7 BRTH B /5 668,390,000 7T ( — & — PO 4 -
700,403,000/ 7T) - BEIREB A FEB I HEGHE
MM EERSITELE  EMEEFERES
ERPLEEANTR  c TREEEFERER
REMENATE -

AVENBRISERS

A EE DA ERE EARTE BN
HEZEM - AAFEFEH—AHERE
B E RS B B ATE -

ERFAEBEEREMEN AT ER  AEEE
RAESHTSAEREE - WITES1HS
B AEBZEE=AERMHERMAEARE
EEREYEETHE REREHR - A%
EEREHES ERINEEME S E - BE
F2REEIRNTFEAENEEHETERS
e mufeRREmS A ERRESHSE
REHSREERRAFE2R2E - MEE2R
28 AIREBEERBEFIN2HNEES
EoMEERATEBELEEAREY  FRARA
EEeRERIRA - FHEEASEKREY
FRFEMABETERSHNERRME 7
R o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) #R& Bf 3% 3k i ot (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ =T —HAF+=-A=+—HIFE

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(continued

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Fair value measurements and valuation processes
(continued)

In estimating the fair value of the Group's financial assets
at FVTPL, the Group uses market-observable data to the
extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not
available, the management of the Group will assess the
valuation of financial instruments based on quoted bid
prices of the previous trading day in the over-the-counter
markets or quoted market prices provided by brokers at
the end of each reporting period. For the fair value of the
Group’s unlisted equity investment (representing the 10%
equity interest in Shenyang Jiajian in note 26), the
management of the Group will assess its fair value by
taking into account primarily the fair value of underlying
property held by the investee after adjusting for lack of
marketability of the equity investment at the end of the
reporting period. In estimating the fair value of the
Group's financial liabilities at FVTPL (representing the
Group's derivative financial liabilities as disclosed in note
30), the Group uses market-observable data to the extent
it is available.

Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the management
of the Group will assess the valuation of the derivative
financial liabilities based on discounted cash flow method
at the end of the reporting period. The management of
the Group will exercise their judgements based on their
experience to establish and determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs to the valuation model.
Where there is a material change in the fair value of the
assets/liabilities, the causes of the fluctuations will be
reported to the board of directors of the Company. Note
6 provides detailed information about the valuation
techniques, inputs and key assumptions used in the
determination of the fair value of the Group's financial
assets/liabilities at FVTPL.
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Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes the bank borrowings and bonds disclosed in
notes 29 and 31, respectively, net of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and
retained profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors of
the Company consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors of the Company, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-
backs as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption
of existing debt.

Financial Instruments
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Categories of financial instruments SRTAER
2015 2014
—E-FHE —E—mEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Financial assets SEMEE
Financial assets at FVTPL (note 26) BAFEFAEBERZERMEE
(Bi5E26) 5,123,761 3,899,564
Financial assets measured at amortised cost B ERAGTEZ S REE
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BIERE LIREEBY) 8,809,214 8,595,005
Financial liabilities SEMERE
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost BREBENAGTEZ SRBE 14,360,265 12,545,515
Derivative financial liabilities TEemBE 1,997 7,307
Financial risk management objectives and policies HERRETEAENREE

The Group’s major financial instruments include bank
balances and cash, financial assets at FVTPL, trade and
other receivables, trade and other payables, derivative
financial liabilities, amount due from/to a joint venture,
concessionaire sales payable, bank borrowings, bonds and
amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of
subsidiaries. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.
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Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Currency risk

The functional currency of the Company and its major
subsidiaries in Hong Kong is HK$ in which most of the
transactions are denominated. The functional currency of
subsidiaries operating in the PRC is Renminbi (“"RMB") in
which most of its transactions are denominated. For
subsidiaries that provide financing function for the Group,
their functional currency is United States Dollars (“US$").

The Group has certain bank balances which are
denominated in US$ and RMB (being currencies other
than the functional currency of the respective group entity)
amounting to HK$1,036,182,000 (2014: HK$1,711,606,000)
and HK$24,215,000 (2014: HK$1,345,337,000), respectively.
Furthermore, the Group has certain bank borrowings
which are denominated in US$, Euro ("EUR”) and
Japanese Yen (“JPY") (being currencies other than the
functional currency of the respective group entity)
amounting to HK$276,523,000 (2014: HK$968,600,000),
HK$183,524,000 (2014: HK$209,798,000) and
HK$337,604,000 (2014: HK$72,591,000), respectively.

In addition, certain financial assets at FVTPL are
denominated in US$, RMB, EUR and JPY (being currencies
other than the functional currency of the respective group
entity) amounting to HK$3,201,979,000 (2014:
HK$2,180,209,000), HK$367,824,000 (2014:
HK$1,023,734,000), HK$256,911,000 (2014:
HK$258,716,000) and HK$352,770,000 (2014:
HK$93,302,000), respectively.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.

Under the pegged exchange rate system in Hong Kong,
HKS$ is effectively pegged to US$ and therefore the Group
is mainly exposed to foreign currency risk of RMB/EUR/
JPY against HK$ and US$ against RMB, hence the
sensitivity of US$ against HK$ is not presented below. In
addition, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
other foreign currency risks are not significant to the
consolidated financial statements.
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# 7L ) 367,824,000 jL( — F — 0 F:
1,023,734,0007% 7T ) * 256,911,000 7T( = &
— VU4 : 258,716,000% JT. ) K2 352,770,0007% 7T
ZF U4 : 93,302,000/ 7T) °

ANE BRSNS EOR R o AT > BIEE
BEEIMERER - WHTFE B E EE R EKR
#m o

IRIRE R B SEE R E - BT HR TR
MASEIZEYARE BEBITLET
RETAAREHIMERE - FUIEITHET
WHBED IR EEAT 25 < o - A
RIBEERR  HMINEEREGRA VI IRRIAL
REERTE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) #R& B R MisE (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z = —AF+-A=+—HILFE

Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Currency risk (continued)

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change of 3% (2014: 3%) in exchange
rate of RMB/EUR/JPY against HK$ and US$ against RMB,
while all other variables are held constant. 3% (2014: 3%) is
the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency
risk internally to the key management personnel and
represents the management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign currency rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the end of the reporting period for a 3%
(2014: 3%) change in foreign currency rate. A positive
number below indicates an increase in profit for the year
where HK$ and RMB weaken against the relevant foreign
currency. Where HK$ and RMB strengthen against the
relevant foreign currency, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the profit for the year and the
balances below would be negative.

SRIA(E)
M ERER B WREE ()

Shis E B (48
TRFAVWAEBRARE BE BILRBT
EETRAREK ZERIELEION(ZF
—PO4E : 3.0%) R IRE RS HRVE - MATAH
i B B B N 0 3.0% (—F— 4 : 3.0%) =2
REMEZERE A BRI AIIREEF 2 HNER
BBV IR BIEEBYINEE RSB T
& BREDMBIERRERRUIINELER
EEMIER - WA3.0% (ZZ—M4E : 3.0%) &
FEITIRE - THEBERTBLRARBES
HNEE BE R g 59 - (FF RN - BT RA
RIS H SINEERIGmE  WEENAHeEs
HERERNEE  F BRI EEH -

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+t—BLEE

2015 2014

—E-HF —T—HEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FHIT

RMB against HK$ ANREE S BT 11,761 71,072
EUR against HK$ FREE KB T 2,202 1,468
JPY against HK$ ATH AT 455 621
US$ against RMB ETHARE 6,332 7,979

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as
the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate bank deposits and bank borrowings,
fixed coupon rate bonds and fixed-rate balances with a
joint venture (2014: fixed-rate bank deposits, fixed coupon
rate bonds and fixed-rate balances with a joint venture).
The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
relating to the Group’s variable-rate bank borrowings
(2014: variable-rate bank borrowings). The Group currently
does not have an interest rate hedging policy. However,
the management monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure should
the need arise.

EEERR  BRFHERZERIERRER
[R\B - EEURKE 3 AT I AR ER BB JNEE R o

R @R
RNEBEHEHENEENERITERAFRLE
FoBEEREMNERESME-—HaERENE
ENEEGEE R FEMNERERE - (ZF—M
F o BEEMNRRITER TR BEZEMEE
FIE—EEEDERE TN EERR) o AEETR
HERTSRTEEIHRESRENEEAR (=
LM ERIMITEE) - ARBERB LB
IR R SRR o AT - BIRE & EEAEE
b - WHRHEERZEBEIHFERN KRR -
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Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The Group's sensitivity to cash flow interest rate risk has
been determined based on the exposure to interest rates
for bank borrowings (excluding the specific bank
borrowings for construction purpose) at the end of the
reporting period and the reasonably possible change
taking place at the beginning of each year and held
constant throughout the year. A 50 basis points (2014: 50
basis points) increase or decrease is used for variable-rate
balances when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates. The Group’s sensitivity to interest rate risk at the
end of the reporting period while all other variables were
held constant after taking into account the impact of the
tax and finance costs capitalised in construction in
progress is as follows:

R IT A (&)
B RBREE R M REBCE ()

F 2= @B ()

AREEHBESRMNERER 2 BRE - HRER
WEMRBERRITER (TREREZRITE
BEERERR) ARREFFEYA BRI EHER
ZEBPIREFESETEET ERTEEE
A B R EBEE A R o SOEER (- =
— P4 SOEE) I ANER D A KA )F B A4S
e WRKREEBHMNEAEGEZLS T
fly - ETEEMBEMHSIE  EEEHEAR
MEBEARERAERITIRRER  AERERREHME
HERYNEREBRERENT

Year ended 31 December

BE+-HA=+—BHLEE

2015 2014
—E-RfF —T—MmF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T

(Decrease) increase in post-tax profit for the year R F 1% 55 F Rl 2>) 12 H0
— as a result of increase in interest rate — BRME FFH (12,316) (17,332)
— as a result of decrease in interest rate — BHRFERTEE 12,316 17,332

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity is unrepresentative
of the inherent interest rate risk as the year end exposure
does not reflect the exposure during the year.

EBERR ARFHEBZARILNRERFA
Rk - MEBURE DT NKRE A M ERER -

Rl IR = A - e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) #R& B R MisE (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z = —AF+-A=+—HILFE

Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations
as at 31 December 2015 in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of those
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has formulated a defined fixed
credit policy and delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
receivable regularly at the end of the reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced. Retail sales are mainly on cash basis,
either in cash, debit card or credit card payments.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies or government
authorities.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk in
relation to trade and other receivables, with exposure
spread over a number of counterparties and customers.

The Group has concentration of credit risk in respect of
amount due from a joint venture. However, the
management considers the risk associated with amount
due from a joint venture is minimal.

The Group's concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in PRC, which accounted for
approximately 51% (2014: 50%) of the total trade
receivables as at 31 December 2015.

SRIA(E)
M ERER B WREE ()

FERR

RZZE—HF+-A=+—8 xEEHREF
DARERBTHEEMREEMNCHEREREE
E¥ 2 &REEERRE  BHEAMBRRERA
ZEAEZERAME - RFEREREERR - K
SEERECHEREZMEEERE  IXE
EF—#HAE HEETEERE HEEER
NAETEMEERREF - FEMRERER BB
BB EE ° o REEENHREHHE
HHE A E B &R ER U R R Z T E £
B DARER B N A W B SRIE A B R SR E S
BBttt AAREERR AEEZEFEER
REAERD - TEHETZUARSET A
AR 2 - RERRHEMB AR -

HREF I RERBREEFIRRESEEFT
Tz RITRBFERE  BORBDESZEERR
AR -

REBREEAETEERBN B R E AR
WK - BBy BN R Z R ZEFREF -

BHEEKR-—HEEREREA  AEEFEETH
FERR - AN BEEERSEHER-HE
BEEFHEZBERRE -

AEFEMETEERREETS  TBL2AE
AR AR - E—RAFE+ - A=+—HEK
BRFRAARE 2 51% (—Z— U4 : 50%) °
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Financial Instruments (continued) 6. ©RIT A (&)
Financial risk management objectives and policies BIEEEEE B M REBCK ()
(continued)
Price risk EiE R
The Group's financial assets at FVTPL and derivative AEEZQAFEFABZZEREERITES
financial liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of MBEEDIRREAREER Z AFERE -
the reporting period. Therefore, the Group is exposed to It AEEEHEERRR BEESAEFE
price risk. The management manages this exposure by TRRBRZZREHEENERZHERR - ZAF
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different risk Bt \BmsemEERITESRABEZHE
profiles. Details of the financial assets at FVTPL and 53 Bl EE 26 12 30 °
derivative financial liabilities are set out in notes 26 and 30,
respectively.
The Group's sensitivity to price risk on the financial assets EEMEHERIAET  FEERRESHELS
at FVTPL and derivative financial liabilities at the end of HAHEAFTEFABGZEREERITEAS
the reporting period while all other variables were held MmBEZERREREZRENAT
constant is as follows:
HK$'000
FHET
2015 —ZE-RF
Reasonably possible change in price BRZAIEEIEEE 5%
Increase (decrease) in post-tax profit for the year F R85 R o0 Cridr)
— as a result of increase in price — ERRAERIZ N 247,175
— as a result of decrease in price — AR BIEE (247,175)
2014 —E—-mEF
Reasonably possible change in price BRZAIEaREEE 5%
Increase (decrease) in post-tax profit for the year FRRTZR BN ORD)
— as a result of increase in price — BHRERIE 190,999
— as a result of decrease in price — R ERR D (190,999)

Rl IR = A - e

Ee Rt = B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) #R& B R MisE (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z = —AF+-A=+—HILFE

Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group's operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors the
utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures compliance
with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings and bonds as a
significant source of liquidity. As at 31 December 2015, the
Group has available unutilised borrowing facilities of
approximately HK$5,016.8 million (2014: HK$5,875.6
million). Details of bank borrowings are set out in note 29.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to

pay.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve
at the end of the reporting period.

In addition, the following table details the Group’s
liquidity analysis for its derivative financial instruments.
The tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted gross (inflows) and outflows on those
derivatives that require gross settlement. When the
amount payable is not fixed, the amount disclosed has
been determined by reference to the projected interest
rates/exchange rates as illustrated by the interest rate/
exchange rate existing at the end of the reporting period.
The liquidity analysis for the Group’s derivative financial
instruments are prepared based on the contractual
maturities as the management consider that the
contractual maturities are essential for an understanding
of the timing of the cash flows of derivatives.

SRIAE)
MHEREEENWRBER ()

REBESER

REERBDESRARE AEBEENERSE
BESRRABNANEERBREES KT Z
ReMReFEY  WRERSRERBTE -
EERERRTEEZER BRETERR

44
#h °

AEEERSERITEBELRESEATEENRDE
SRB-N-_ZE—AF+-_A=+—8 K&
Bl RIEHERTTE E R E REE £ %75,016,800,000
BT (= Z — P4 : 5,875,600,00058 7T ) * 515
A EE29 -

TRAVAEBFTESRMBER T A
He TRIDERBASEAERERLERZ R

TREHINMERASRERN - ENERBT

PAE . BRRSFEREERSHARNNAE X
AR ©
SN TRFIAEENITES R T AM)RE

Mo - ZERREBEFEBET 2TETREAREL
BAORN) BORHEHIE - BRENSETEE
WESESEIR M RIER (RS KRB
BNRFOERPR) HEE - AREWNITESRET
EH RS TEREGNIHA  AAEEE
R ARIHMAY THRITETANRESRE
FEJFRER -
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Financial Instruments (continued) 6. ©RIT A (&)
Financial risk management objectives and policies B E B E R B 0 R BUR (&)
(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REBESRR (F)
Liquidity and interest risk tables TEE B KT S E e &
Weighted
average  On demand/ Total
effective less than 1-3 3 months Over  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 month months  tolyear  1-5years Syears  cash flows amount
nETs  RER/ BT
FEYIES -BAR -Z=fif ZEARE-% -31% BEUL ReRE KEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
Tn Thx Thn TEn Thn Tén T
31 December 2015 “E-RE+-A=t-B
Non-derivative financial liabilities #7427 &%
Trade and other payables BRI R ERFE - 1612253 38,356 22,505 - - 1673114 1,673,114
Amount due to a non-controlling ENHBAR-2
shareholder of subsidlaries FERREZER - - - - 130,550 - 130,550 130,550
Bank borrowings — variable rate BiTRE-2HHE
note 1) (Pst1) 1.98% 816,994 412433 1,600,672 371,469 700438 3,902,006 3,653,750
Bank borrowings — fixed rate (note 1)~ 712 & - B A% (Hisk1) 0.55% 400,000 - - - - 400,000 400,000
Amount due to a joint venture ER-BAELE7ET - 40,101 - - - - 40,101 40,101
Bonds E% 4.82% 101,719 - 305157 4790468 5318438 10515782 8,462,750
2,971,067 450,789 1928334 5292487 6,018,876 16,661,553 14,360,265
Derivative — gross settlement fiEIA—#ELY
Interest rate swap ik
—Inflow - (49) (373) (687) (6,069) (226) (7,404)
— Qutflow — i 125 232 2,346 8,397 380 11,480
76 (141) 1,659 2,328 154 4,076 1997
Derivative — gross settlement ETA—@BRE
Written put options D
— Qutflow {note 2) — it (E2) 160,266 158,342 - - - 318,608 16,464

Rl IR = A - e

Ee Rt = B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) #R& B #% 3R M = (80

for the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z = —AF+-A=+—HILFE

6. Financial Instruments (continued) 6. EWIHAE(E)
Financial risk management objectives and policies B EREER K REBUER ()
(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REE SRR ()
Liquidity and interest risk tables (continued) REE S R FIEREGK (&)
Weighted
average  On demand/ Total
effective less than 1-3 3months Over  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 month months to T year 1-5years Syears  cashflows amount
nmEwy  EER/ 2R
ERAE —-EAR  -E=@R =BAE-% it RENE Rehg BEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERL TAR FER TER TR FER FERL
31 December 2014 —§-mE+ZB=1-8
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ #fi4¢RE®E
Trade and other payables EREH R ENTE - 1811672 51,3% 20,903 - - 1883970 1883970
Amount due to a non-controlling ERMBAR-%
shareholder of subsidiaries FERBRER - - - - 137,665 - 137,665 137,665
Bank borrowings — variable rate RiTEE-2DT=
(note 1) Gk 195% 1,274,360 312,384 485,846 2,057,981 192,824 4,523,395 4354412
Bonds BF 4.94% 101,719 - 200,531 4,575,406 2601431 749,093 6,169,468
3,187,751 363,719 707,280 6,971,052 2,814,261 14044123 12545515
Derivative — gross settlement fieTE—8%ELE
Interest rate swap ket
— Inflow —RA - @37 (111) (1,308) (939) (2391
— Qutflow — it - - 761 3,046 1139 4,946
- (37 650 1738 204 2,95 1857
Derivative — gross settlement ETE—2%EE
Cross currency swap RREXRS
— Inflow —RA - (1232) - - - (1232)
— Qutflow — iR - 3367 4525 - - 7892
- 213% 4,525 - - 6,660 5450
Derivative — gross settlement AR —@ERE
Written put options DhHE
— Qutflow (note 2) — i () 152,731 113,054 - - - 265,785 4676




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) #R& Bf 3% 3k i ot (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ =T —HAF+=-A=+—HIFE

Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables (continued)

Notes:

m

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or less than 1 month” time
band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 December
2015 and 31 December 2014, the aggregate undiscounted
principal amounts of these bank loans amounted to
HK$1,210.7 million and HK$1,268.0 million respectively.
Taking into account the Group's financial position, the
directors do not believe that it is probable that the banks
will exercise their discretionary rights to demand immediate
repayment. The directors believe that such bank loans will
be repaid within one year from the end of the reporting
period in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates
set out in the loan agreements. At that time, the aggregate
principal and interest cash outflows will amount to
HK$1,211.5 million (2014: HK$1,269.0 million).

The amount included above for written put options is the
maximum amount the Group is obliged to settle under the
written put option arrangements if the underlying index or
ETF go to zero upon the exercise or expiry of the written
put options. Certain written put options amounting to
HK$61,785,000 (2014: HK$77,475,000) are included in the
“on demand or less than 1 month” time band in the above
maturity analysis as those options could be exercised at any
time before the expiration dates. The remaining written put
options are included in the respective time bands according
to the expiration dates of the options since the options
could only be exercised on those dates. Based on
expectations at the end of the reporting period, the Group
considers that it is very unlikely that such an amount will be
payable under the written put option arrangements as the
chance of the index or ETF dropping to zero is remote.
However, this estimate is subject to change depending on
the market volatility of underlying index and ETF of the
written put options, and final settlement price of the options
along with other factors.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities is subject
to change if changes in variable interest rates differ from
the those estimates of interest rates determined at the
end of the reporting period.

R I A (&)
B RBREE R M REBCE ()

REBE SR ()
RENE £ KT SRR ()

5L -

M

M5 1R 2SR RGN IRTT B B7E L5 R
FHEABREREL—EAZANEESE R=2—5
F+ZA=+—"BER=ZZE—NF+=A
=+—0B ' ZEEGBRNBITERESHRE
$£1,210,700,000 % 7T & 1,268,000,0005% 7T © &
RRIAREENP BRI - EREERITTET
BURBEERAIREE FMNES  c EFNR
B EREESRABREHPRBE—FRIZR
BEXpEaERBEER - BERANASHE
F B IR £ # A&1,211,500,00008 (==
—PU4E : 1,269,000,000787T) ©

BT HARE S RS HE B HE - AR RA i Esk
REFMEBESKET  LRSEAAEER
RAHEANERAECRASE - 5 TEE
61,785,000/ 7T R i B #E( = T — U F
77,475,000 70) BB ABIEE RKI LR —E A2
FR A RRH B ME AT A B HA B B (T (I B R /7 B o H
RN HAAE RIR R AR B HA B > S = P s R
HE - AZHERERELBBITE - RER
MEHHARRHEE  AAMEHRRRIZMESR
ESEHRETHHRSRY  AEBRARER
SRS NREL MRS EN AR - &
M EhtgRRAAEERESERRSME
BEES I MBESMNERPRESREEES
Bl A R = 8 o

EXHETEEMABZ FHMNETABREZ

S - WIET B K B A B R R
A AR T A -

e
wE

Rl IR = A - e

[l

20



G0z Moday [enuuy  paliwi] sBulp|oH |euoneuiaiu| o|A1sa
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Financial Instruments (continued) 6. EWIHAE(E)
Fair value measurements of financial instruments SRIAZAFENE
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial FAEFEHEERERABBREEHEENGE
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring AT E
basis
Some of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities AEEETHEREENSREB EETE®ERS
are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting BIRE IR A PER 8 - TRIBHBBOMAEE
period. The following table gives information about how ELSRIEENSRABBENATE(LERME
the fair values of these financial assets and financial FEFE AR EAEUR) o
liabilities are determined (in particular, the valuation
technique(s) and inputs used).
Significant Relationship of
Financial assets/financial Fair value unobservable unobservable
liabilities Fair value as at hierarchy ~ Valuation technique(s) and key input(s) ~inputs inputs to fair value
ATFER
31.12.2015 31.12.2014 BEBEN
“E-IF “E-ME AT fEEREN EABLBEN LPN-§ 1
SREE/CRER +ZA=1+-A tZA=t-H SRR TEGANEE BARE ATENBE
HK$000 HK$000
TAL TAR
Financial assets at FVTPL
BEATE N BR, 2REE
1. Listed equity securities 1,535,323 495,721 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in active markets. N/A N/A
il Eh- REETHPHEAE - TER TR
2. Listed debt securities 1,344,378 830,745 Level2 Quoted prices in over-the-counter N/A N/A
markets.
LS Fh= R FTHENE - TER TR
3 Listed investment 1,593,006 1,224.957 Level2 Quoted market prices provided by brokers ~ N/A N/A
funds which are financial institutions. (note 1)
IiREES Fh= fERBEHSBERIERSD TER TR
miaEM o (1)
4. Unlisted certificates - 779,075 Level2 Quoted bid prices in the over-the-counter ~ N/A N/A
of deposit markets.
¥ETEFE Sh= SR 5MBENE TER TER
5 Unlisted hedge funds 77,283 160,937 Level2 Quoted market prices provided by brokers ~ N/A N/A
which are financial institutions. (note 1)
FEmEnEs Sh= fEREEMERERRER TER TER
MiEEMR o (1)
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Financial Instruments (continued)
Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis (continued)

£RTH (&)

SRMIT R AFEE (&)

H 2 E ()

AEESREERSHABREEMHEENS

Significant Relationship of
Financial assets/financial Fair value unobservable unobservable
liabilities Fair value as at hierarchy ~ Valuation technique(s) and key input(s) inputs inputs to fair value
NYER
31.12.2015 31122014 EEREN
“E-1% “E2-mE AYE fREFEN EARZBEN P8 o1
SHEE/SRER tZA=t-H tZA=t+-H SHRE  IEBANEE BARE NENEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TR
Financial assets at FVTPL
RATFEFTAREZEREE
6. Unlisted investment 399,865 32,118 Level2 Quoted market prices provided by brokers — N/A N/A
portfolios which are financial institutions. (note 1)
FETREES £H- fERE MBI ER (M TEA TER
minERE o (1)
7. Unlisted debt 23459 30,675 Level2 Quoted prices in the over-the-counter N/A N/A
securities markets.
FLMmES /= B GHIENENE - TEA TER
8. Unlisted equity 10percentequity  10percentequity  Level3 Reference to the fair value of the underlying ~ The fairvalue of the  The higher the fair
investment interest in Shenyang  interest in Shenyang property and after adjustment for lack of underlying property  value of the
Jiajian which major ~ Jiajian which major marketability. based on valuation  underlying property,
assetis a assetis a model. (note 3) the higher the fair
commercial commercial value.
property held for property held for
sale sale
FETRARE 0% EFGER 10% &85 =2 5= SERENENATERARS EREERS BBRRENEL
(EEE— & (HEE—E TG miEL A% - ETRERE ATEES
RIELERE RIELERE MENDTE - BENTE
LENe M) e (FizE3) A=
29,075 note 2) 50,660 (note 2)
GE) (Hiz£2)
9. Written put options 16,464 4,676 Level2 Quoted prices in the over-the-counter N/A N/A
markets.
Rk HE EH= BHRSTIEMEAE - TEA TER
10. Unlisted index-linked 104,908 - Level2 Quoted prices in the over-the-counter N/A N/A
notes markets.
¥ riEEANGES EH- B STIENEAE TEA TEA

Rl IR = A - e

Ee Rt = B
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6. Financial Instruments (continued) 6.
Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis (continued)

Financial assets/financial Fair value

@I A (#)
SWMIAZAFEE(H)

AEECHEERSHAERKEHEETGS
B E (8)

Significant Relationship of
unobservable unobservable

liabilities Fair value as at hierarchy ~ Valuation technique(s) and key input(s)  inputs inputs to fair value

DYER
31.12.2015 31.12.2014
“g-If —g-mE DY faEREA
SHEE/SRAR tZA=t-H tZA=t-A SRR TZRANIE
HK§000 HK§000
TET TER

ELRED
EXEEREY BAHER
WARE ATENER

Financial liabilities at FVTPL
BATEHARGZERAR

1. Interest rate swap 1,997 1857 Level 2 Discounted cash flow; Future cash flows are ~ N/A N/A
estimated based on forward interest rates
(from observable yield curves at the end of
the reporting period) and contract interest
rates, discounted at a rate that reflects the
credit risk of various counterparties.

GilESCE

Tﬁﬁ
|
b

BRALRE - BRI E Nam TiER

(e & HIRES AT R R oK AR )
MEHNE  ZRRERXZHFH
EERBMERR - BEtAKRE

=E
ILE °

12, Foreign currency - 5450 Level2 Discounted cash flow: Future cash flows are ~ N/A N/A
forward contracts estimated based on difference between
predetermined forward exchange rates and
spot exchange rates at the end of the
reporting period discounted at a rate that
reflects the credit risk of various

counterparties.

SNEEHIEH F-] BRAGNE  ARETEHERN T

7

bl @R

BEARBANAERNZH 2R
REZXZHTFOEERBRFIRER -

Notes:

(1) Quoted market prices provided by brokers which are
financial institutions represent the net asset value of the
respective funds, based on the quoted prices of the
underlying investments, reported to the trustee by the
administrators.

(2)  There has been a decrease in the fair value during the year
ended 31 December 2015.

(3) If the fair value of the underlying property is 5% higher/
lower while all other variables were held constant, the
carrying amount of the unlisted equity investment would
increase/decrease by HK$7,626,000 (31 December 2014:
HK$7,769,000).

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 during
both years.

G0z Moday [enuuy  paliwi] sBulp|oH |euoneuiaiu| o|A1sa

BARRRERE -

B -

m ERREHSREBRHAMNTISER KK
MEEAERGZEA - BRERBERERE
EECEESEETE-

(2) RZT—RAF+ZA=+—RHIEFE  2FE
Tk -

(3) HAERAREMEZRAFEMEF TES% - M
FEHEMASREEFTE  FLTRARE
7 BR B #5385 hn R 407,626,000 T (=&
—MMFE+=A=+—H :7,769,00087T) °

F—R - F_RNEB=REESFREFH
A (R8RS -
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Financial Instruments (continued) 6. £ETHA(E)
Fair value measurements and valuation processes ATEFERGERE
Except as detailed in the following table, the directors of BRENATER  ARBEERE  EHEAMGHR
the Company consider that the carrying amounts of RIZBER TR SMEEMES A EHNER
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at HEEEAFERE -
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values:
31 December 2015 31 December 2014
—Z-HF+=-A=+—-8 | ZE—WNF+ZA=+—H
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
BREE AFE BREE AEE
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET T T
Financial liabilities cREE
Bonds &% 8,462,750 8,576,933 6,169,468 6,432,655
Amount due to a non-controlling  JENHIB ARG 2 —L
shareholder of subsidiary FEIE R AR R B IR 130,550 127,765 137,665 134,469
Fair value hierarchy N ESERRE
31 December 2015
—E-RF+=-HA=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—& ER E=M Fb
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FExT
Financial assets at FVTPL: WAV EFABRY
SREE -
— Listed equity securities FRRE 1,535,323 - - 1,535,323
— Listed debt securities — EWEF - 1,344,378 - 1,344,378
— Listed investment funds — FmiEERES - 1,593,006 - 1,593,006
— Unlisted hedge funds — JE R ES - 77,283 - 77,283
— Unlisted investment portfolios — JE EHIREHME - 399,865 - 399,865
— Unlisted debt securities — ¥ EHES - 23,459 - 23,459
— Unlisted equity investment — LR ERE
(note) (M%) - - 29,075 29,075
— Written put options — RUL R - 16,464 - 16,464
— Unlisted index-linked notes — JE IR EERES - 104,908 - 104,908
Total HE 1,535,323 3,559,363 29,075 5,123,761
Financial liabilities at FVTPL: BATEGFABRZ
TRBE -
Derivative financial liabilities PTESREaRE - 1,997 - 1,997

=

OE ot B O SR B B

Rl

Ee Rt = B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) #R& B R MisE (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z = —AF+-A=+—HILFE

6. Financial Instruments (continued) 6. EWIHAE(E)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEEEREE(E)

31 December 2014
—Z—+-A=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EF—& FE-R FE=R et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FAET FAET
Financial assets at FVTPL: BAFEGFABREZ
ERMEAE
— Listed equity securities — FHiEE 495,721 - - 495,721
— Listed debt securities — FWmfE%H - 830,745 - 830,745
— Listed investment funds — TR EES - 1,224,957 - 1,224,957
— Unlisted certificates of — I ETFERE
deposit - 779,075 - 779,075
— Unlisted hedge funds — IELHERES - 160,937 - 160,937
— Unlisted investment portfolios — FE_FHREEE - 322,118 - 322,118
— Unlisted debt securities — LM ES - 30,675 - 30,675
— Unlisted equity investment — 3E E AR (Mt aE)
(note) - - 50,660 50,660
— Written put options — AL ERE - 4,676 - 4,676
Total HEET 495,721 3,353,183 50,660 3,899,564
Financial liabilities at FVTPL: AT EFFAERY
EREE :
Derivative financial liabilities TETmAas - 7,307 - 7,307
Note: The unlisted equity investment at 31 December 2015 and 31 M- RZZE—AF T _A=+—BR-_ZT—NF
December 2014, represents the retained 10% equity interest TZ A=+ B2 LTRARERRESGE
in Shenyang Jiajian. There has been a decrease in fair value BREMNIO%RE BE_T—HAFT+=A
during the year ended 31 December 2015. =t+—HIFE  RFETEK-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) #R& Bf 3% 3k i ot (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ =T —HAF+=-A=+—HIFE

7. Turnover 7. XX
Turnover represents the amount received and receivable BEEERASEEARFERAIARTFELER
for goods sold by the Group to outside customers, net of 2 B U YR IE R, T 40 K sE B ARRE TR IR - 5
discounts and sales related taxes, income from FEEHEEWA - RBWAUEBESWA @ 24
concessionaire sales, service income and rental income DWW

during the year, and is analysed as follows:

2015 2014
—2-1fF —T—mE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T
Sales of goods — direct sales EMHE -—HEIHE 3,350,441 3,254,212
Income from concessionaire sales B EEHEERA 2,557,266 2,473,805
Service income RRFS U A 120,849 114,307
Rental income AU A 142,837 127,416
6,171,393 5,969,740
The cost of sales are analysed as follows: HERARDHTAT

Cost of goods sold B ER AR 2,390,947 2,316,401
Other cost of sales H b iR 73,505 69,529
2,464,452 2,385,930

The Group has no customers that contributed over 10% of REEREF  AEBUEESERBRASE

the total revenue of the Group for both years. Bz 10% °

Rl IR = A - e

Ee Rt = B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) #R& B #% 3R M = (80

for the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z =%

—hAFE+ZA=t—HILLFE

Segment Information

Information reported to the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker, for
the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance focusing on two reportable and
operating segments geographically, Hong Kong and the
PRC which are managed separately. The Group
determines its operating segments based on the internal
reports reviewed by the chief operating decision maker
that are used to allocate resources and assess
performance.

Segment revenues and results
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by reportable and operating segment:

’“"Bﬁ*ﬁl

EHRERAIEFATEEEREANER iﬂﬁa
ZEE’]?E A E R E IR 2 A R s LK
DEbHE - FERRE  AFEIRD A M0 BER

BT - AEERTELERRAZENL
BULEE RO ERB A EZARRSEEE

i«( ** s —AB °
AL

o EBULEE I A
REBRAMEDEE D 2 W R EE
T~

o

Consolidated
Hong Kong PRC total
&5 2] HREHERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FHET FET FET
For the year ended BE—_Z=—AHF+=A
31 December 2015 =+—BuLtEE
Segment revenue o ERUR =
External sales HINHE 4,867,118 1,304,275 6,171,393
Result E
Segment result D ERELE 2,118,399 236,608 2,355,007
Investment income BB A 163,509
Fair value changes on investment REMEANFEEZS
properties 3,000
Share of profit of a joint venture FE(E—REBDLHEHN 38,040
Share of profits of associates e ’jﬁ%“ Ehavil 400,505
Finance costs BhE Al AN (284,650)
Profit before taxation [ A5 AT v ) 2,675,411
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Segment Information (continued)

8.

REMBRRME ()

D EPE R ()

Segment revenues and results (continued) S EBUk R B A ()
Consolidated
Hong Kong PRC total
aBE s Re s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FAET
For the year ended BE-Z-NF+=A
31 December 2014 =t+—ALFEE
Segment revenue 7 U
External sales HHNHE 4,689,905 1,279,835 5,969,740
Result ES
Segment result bal=E 2,079,520 235,196 2,314,716
Investment income TERA 413,849
Fair value changes on investment KREMENTEES
properties (3,053)
Share of profit of a joint venture BE—REEERH 26,463
Share of profits of associates FERESE & X B E F 347,157
Finance costs BRE A AR (267,267)
Profit before taxation R 54 AT 2,831,865

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating
segments are the same as the Group's accounting policies
described in note 3. Segment result represents the profit
earned by each segment without share of profits of
associates and a joint venture, fair value changes on
investment properties, investment income and finance
costs. This is the measure reported to the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company for the purposes of resources
allocation and performance assessment.

A ERE D A 2 & AT B B AR AR [ OB RE 3 AT A
BRTBERAAR - 2 A EEE S BRI &
Mo ERFEEBERAR - KaELE R
M- REDEAFEEDY  REWRAKLBEK
KN WIRBRTAEARRBRATERERD
e M AR 2 IR IE ©

Rl IR = A - e

Ee Rt = B



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) #R& B R MisE (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z = —AF+-A=+—HILFE

8. Segment Information (continued) 8. ZoEHER (&)
Segment assets and liabilities PHEEREE

G0z Moday [enuuy  paliwi] sBulp|oH |euoneuiaiu| o|A1sa

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and

AREBERAREDHED 2EERBBEDITN

liabilities by reportable and operating segment: T
Consolidated
Hong Kong PRC total
&5 23] REHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FERT FERT F#ET
As at 31 December 2015 R-E—HE+=A
=+—H
Assets BE
Segment assets DEE E 8,332,387 11,634,513 19,966,900
Financial assets at FVTPL RATFESTABZE Y
TREE 5,123,761
Interest in a joint venture R—REBELE#ER 491,680
Interests in associates REE N TR 3,202,796
Unallocated assets KOBLEE 19,137
Consolidated total assets e EEBE 28,804,274
Liabilities BfE
Segment liabilities DEEE 1,115,876 1,314,612 2,430,488
Amount due to a joint venture EW—REBEENIE 40,101
Bank borrowings RITEE 4,053,750
Bonds (= 8,462,750
Unallocated liabilities KofcBE 721,054
Consolidated total liabilities IrEBERE 15,708,143
Consolidated
Hong Kong PRC total
'E 23] REHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FERT FHERT FHET
Other segment information Hib 5 ZER
Amounts included in the measure of TEORERS D EE
segment profit or loss or BEZ 8
segment assets:
Addition to non-current assets FERBEERE 144,943 909,439 1,054,382
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BEMSEZTE
equipment 118,204 120,118 238,322
Loss on disposal of property, plantand HHE¥ZE - KB K &EE
equipment 5= 1,090 10,309 11,399
Reversal of impairment and written-off — J& Uk BR 7k Kz E 4th JiE Uk I8
of trade and other receivables TR B K i $E O]
(3) - (3)
(Reversal of) write-down of obsolete W IETFE (BO) MUR e
inventories (216) 209 (7)
Release of prepaid lease payments FBREERIEE N - 23,827 23,827
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8. Segment Information (continued) 8. ZHER(E)
Segment assets and liabilities (continued) PHEEREEE)
Consolidated
Hong Kong PRC total
aBE s Re s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FA&T FAET
As at 31 December 2014 R=B-—NF+=A
=+—H
Assets BE
Segment assets DEEE 8,097,790 11,307,214 19,405,004
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFABRZ
TRNEE 3,899,564
Interest in a joint venture MN—REELERRS 556,835
Amount due from a joint venture B —REELEFIE 11,638
Interests in associates B N A S 2,926,323
Unallocated assets ROBLEE 48,531
Consolidated total assets EBEEBE 26,847,895
Liabilities BE
Segment liabilities nEfaE 1,218,265 1,390,140 2,608,405
Bank borrowings RITIEE 4,354,412
Bonds &5 6,169,468
Unallocated liabilities AP EE 726,697
Consolidated total liabilities e RERE 13,858,982
Consolidated
Hong Kong PRC total
aE s Re s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FA&T FAET
Other segment information HihpEE R
Amounts included in the measure of SFENEBES D EEE
segment profit or loss or BIEZ 85
segment assets:
Addition to non-current assets EREBEERE 214,944 522,015 736,959
Depreciation of property, plant and VIEE - BB LB ITE
equipment 88,336 164,862 253,198
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, HEME - BE &S
plant and equipment 2R (Was) (339) 1,080 741
(Reversal of) impairment and written-off & Y BR 3% 2 EL A i Uk
of trade and other receivables FRIE (BEE) k(B M 5 8 116 (1,042) (926)
Write-down of obsolete inventories T E T EMUR R
17 427 444
Release of prepaid lease payments TR ERTEE - 24,370 24,370
At 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, the RZE—AF+-_A=1+—HNM=_ZF—UF
unallocated segment assets represent club debentures TZA=+—H8 RXOEHNSIBEEREKEE
held by the Group and dividend receivable from an Bz g@MES RER —EBE QAR ZKRE
associate (included in trade and other receivables) while (EBRERERER R EMmEWFKIEAE) » kRS
unallocated segment liabilities mainly represent tax MO HBEABEBETEEENHIE  REHKE
payable, deferred tax liabilities, amount due to a non- & - BB A R 2 — AL JE IR AR BR kI8 e £7
controlling shareholder of subsidiaries and derivative EeRBeE -

financial liabilities.

Rl IR = A - e

Ee Rt = B
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8. Segment Information (continued) 8. ZoIHER (&)
Geographical information hEE R
Analysis of the Group’s non-current assets by geographical HEEMEWRE D 2 ANEBIERBEEST
location of the assets are detailed below: ORI
2015 2014
—ZT-HF —E-F
Hong Kong PRC Hong Kong PRC
B h BB s
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET T FHIT
Non-current assets SEMBIEE 1,912,893 8,970,724 1,863,688 8,728,661
Note: Non-current assets excluded interests in associates and a ek : ERBEETBRERBEARR—REELE
joint venture. T o
Other Income, Gains and Losses 9. HAtA > WEREIE
2015 2014
— —F—mE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Management fee income EBEE- PN 107,258 104,180
Project income T8 B WA 9,959 9,492
Government subsidies (note a) BB (M3t a) 6,205 10,929
Net exchange loss VR W RS 1E (55,398) (80,695)
Others (note b) Hib (M5Eb) 98,247 143,474
166,271 187,380
Notes: M -
(@)  The amount represents the government subsidies received () ZEHEETEMSERLTUREEE 5

from the PRC local authorities for subsidising its operational
activities and promotional activities conducted by the
Group. All of them had no specific conditions attached.

(b)  Others mainly represent bank credit card recharge and

commission income.

REEETHER TP REGHERTH - 78
el B S 4B A AR B BRS 0 A6R A ©

b) HMETERXRITEAREARTNEMEUA -
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10.

11.

—hAF+ZA=t+—HILFE

111

ll
=
R
S
Investment Income 10. BEWA §
2015 2014 "
—E-HF | —EF-pmE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T -
Interest income on bank deposits RITEFERZFEHA 150,741 201,768 %
Imputed interest income (note) HEF B WA (ML) - 1,622 .
Dividend income from financial assets at FVTPL & AF({EFF ABR 2 & BEER &
A% 8 0 A 36,593 29,615 &
Interest income from financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFABGCEHEERN i
FLEWA 80,206 46,380
Change in fair value of financial instruments: TRIEEATEES
Financial assets at FVTPL other than derivative THES I A AIMEAFEE
financial instruments FFABmZERERE (106,481) 123,203
Derivative financial instruments PTESRTA (1,070) 5,644
Other interest income H b F) B UA 3,520 5,617
163,509 413,849
Note: Imputed interest income represented unwinding of imputed MiEE - R AL AR R S E — M E R

interest on fair value adjustment of deferred consideration
receivable for disposal of a subsidiary. The deferred
consideration receivable was fully settled during the year

ended 31 December 2014.

Finance Costs

11. @ERA

TﬂtE’]%Ekﬁf“@?ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁjximf%ﬁ*'J
cEE—
J"@BUELKF‘E w5 e

P_TH- )El TBHLEFE %

2015 2014
—E-1F —T—mE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Interest on: LATIER 2R :
Bank borrowings: RITIEE -
— wholly repayable within five years — AR AFRNEEEE 66,220 100,187
— wholly repayable after five years — AR T FREBEEER 35,338 29
Bonds: &5 ¢
— wholly repayable within five years — BRI FERNEHEER 204,574 204,560
— wholly repayable after five years — ERAFRBEHESR 157,353 101,813
Others Hh 18,287 22,492
481,772 429,081
Less: Amounts capitalised in construction B ERIREBECERNMEERE
in progress (197,122) (161,814)
284,650 267,267

Borrowing costs capitalised during the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014 were interest expenses incurred
on the Group's certain RMB denominated borrowings that
carried interest at variable interest rate of The Peoples’
Bank of China Standard Loan Rate minus 10% and US$
denominated bonds that carried interest at fixed interest

TLES ©

rate of 5.25% per annum for financing the development of

qualifying assets.

PHEBE-_ZE—HAR_T—
AILLtFEE BEMNMEZBERATRERFH
AEREEZMEMELENBELH  FED T
B2ERE ARIBITZEENE 2 ZEHFI R
10% 2 ANREEEE MEFEFHEAE525% 2 3%

mE+—A=+—
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12. Taxation 12. HIE

2015 2014
—E-RfF —EE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FET

The tax charge comprises: BB HBRETIIES -
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEFESH 352,416 334,389
PRC Tax e I Y] 147,191 112,151
499,607 446,540

Overprovision in prior years: WAFE R REE:

Hong Kong Profits Tax BEENEH (314) (838)
PRC Tax PRSI - (10,475)
(314) (11,313)
499,293 435,227
Deferred tax charge (note 32) EERIA ST B (i 5E 32) 4,804 31,168
504,097 466,395

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profits for both years.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Enterprise Income Tax (the "EIT Law”) and

BABEFSETIRE MR EFE 2 (E 5 ER TR A
BR165%:E -

RIFhEARAMBBZEMSTE ([ REMFRS
BOED REEMETERGIED - PREKBA

Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of AE—EZF
the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards.

Tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit

P /RBR B Al

or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

NEFE—HA—BRRZHER25% -

a2z SRR

AREERBAXHEFEER R EME2ERAER

2015 2014
—E-EF —T—-MF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FAET
Profit before taxation BRE AT 2,675,411 2,831,865
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate BEBNEHEAE 2 HIE 441,443 467,258
Tax effect of share of profit of a joint venture B —REBDLEGHNZ FHERE (6,277) (4,366)
Tax effect of share of profits of associates FERE 2 A RaR 2 HIETE (66,083) (57,281)
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose  HZERTWA Z T TBZE (65,941) (60,086)
Tax effect of expense not deductible for TAREZ 2 RIETE
tax purpose 96,503 41,316
Tax effect on utilisation of tax losses previously — B R R AR ERHRBEEE 2 HIBEFE
not recognised (1,240) (11,676)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AR IEER 2 HIETE 34,385 31,978
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries TEEM R EERLE 2B AT
operating in other jurisdictions TRBE 2 BiETE 47,692 36,785
Overprovision in prior years BEFEERZEME (314) (11,313)
Withholding tax A 23,922 21,879
Others ) 7 11,901
Tax charge for the year RFEBRIBEZ L 504,097 466,395
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13. Profit for the year

13. NEE@F

2015 2014
—2-1f —T—mE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
Profit for the year has been arrived at REFHMEMBRTHIER -
after charging:
Directors’ remuneration (note 14): EEH/E - (BFE14)
Fees ok 1,526 1,616
Other emoluments H 4t J B 7,200 7,200
Bonus TE4L B 15,000 17,500
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RRTE R SR 18 17
23,744 26,333
Other staff costs, excluding retirement benefits ﬁﬁi@f JFEW\\
scheme contributions HA 8 TR 420,527 405,059
Retirement benefits scheme contributions, net of iR VRAE Fl 5181 FORL WAL TR
forfeited contributions for staffs 18,839 19,242
Total staff costs BETRAR 463,110 450,634
Release of prepaid lease payments AR ERIEE L 115,896 121,589
Less: Amount capitalised in construction in W R ITIR 2 ERNMe 258 (FEE18)
progress (note 18) (92,069) (97,219)
23,827 24,370
Auditor’s remuneration ZE AN & 5,103 5,079
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1% ~ BE k& B 2 T8 238,322 253,198
Write-down of obsolete inventories ST BB S - 444
Rental payments paid under operating lease in ~ HLAF %Tﬂﬁ]—ﬁcﬂ&iﬁﬂ&?ﬁt
respect of leasehold land and buildings to FAT AT 2 e KIA
— ajoint venture ——REE%E 195,421 172,081
— other parties — HEM AL 115,026 62,370
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment Hj%%¥ ﬁ%& ﬁZEﬂE 11,399 741
Cost of inventories recognised as expense REZHZTFE 2,390,947 2,316,401
and crediting: LAREFATSIIER -
Gross rental income from investment properties &Y H & A5 - -
Less: Direct operating expenses from investment  J : Zlifﬁf‘y{hﬁﬂifﬂﬁug&%
properties that generated rental income REMFENEELEERX
during the year ) - -
Less: Direct operating expenses from investment  J : ZSEEET\EEE%HZQZ
properties that did not generated rental BREMENERKERX
income during the year (3,477) (2,152)
(3,477) (2,152)
Gross rental income from sub-letting of BE-—REELELERNTZ
commercial properties under an operating lease [ElEkYE Sapiikith o X2
entered into with a joint venture 142,837 127,416
Less: Direct operating expenses in respect of o BB -REBERELE
sub-letting of commercial properties under Tﬁ@—fﬁﬁfﬂﬁéﬁﬁﬁ MR
an operating lease entered into with a joint BEEEEHX
venture (82,416) (76,786)
60,421 50,630
Reversal of impairment and written-off of trade  FEM AR K EL At f L R IEURUE
and other receivables Ko wE 3 48 o] 3 926
Reversal of write-down of obsolete inventories i SH T & IUR B [E] 7 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) #R& B R MisE (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z = —AF+-A=+—HILFE

14. Directors’, Chief Executive’s and 14. EE -  THBHREBREE#HS

Employees’ Remuneration
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, FREHLRTREXNMES O RIEEEN EH
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and AR D EHERDIIREE - MEmT -
Companies Ordinance, is as follows:
2015 —E-hF

Lau Cheng Lau Lam Shek Hui

Luen Do Wai Kar Yuk Siu Lai Chiu Ip

Hung, Hoi, Cheng Shun, Wai, Lun, Him, Chung, Yuk

Thomas’ William YuTung Henry Amy Simon  Abraham Stephen Keung Total

2% HEE BHY B4 EES HEB RER FFRE 4 @it

HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

TR TiEn TiEn TEn TEn T#n T#n TR TR TR
(note a) (note a)

(Hia)  (Wia)

Fees #e 200 200 34 34 158 300 200 200 200 1,526
Other emoluments e
Salaries and other benefits ESREMET 7,200 - - - - - - - - 7,200
Bonus* AT 15,000 - - - - - - - - 15,000
Contributions to retirement benefits schemes BINERE B 18 - - - - - - - - 18
Total emoluments WeEs 2,418 200 K] 3 158 300 200 200 200 23,744
2014 —2-mE
Lau Doo Cheng Lau Lau Lam Cheung Shek Hui
Luen Wai Cheng Kar Luen Yuk Sy Yuet Lai Chiy [
Hung, Hoi, Yu Shun, Hung, Wai, Lun, Man, Him, Chung, Yuk
Thomas® William Tung Henry Joseph Amy Smon  Raymond  Abraham Stephen Keung Total

o s BHyY 854 Bz EES HREE Fhix higk R E53 &zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TEL TEL T T TiEL TiEn TEL TEL TEL TEL

(note b) (note ) (note d)
(Hfitb) (Bskc) ()
Fees ik 200 20 100 100 20 100 300 57 200 200 139 1616
Other emoluments e
Salaries and other benefits FERAMER 7200 - - - - - - - - - - 7.20
Bonus* T 17,500 - - - - - - - - - - 17,500
Contributions to retirement RIVERET AR
benefits schemes 17 - - - - - - - - - B 17
Total emoluments HemE 2917 20 100 100 20 100 300 57 200 200 139 26333
* The bonus is determined with reference to performance * TEAEURNEEEERTHBE -
and market trends.
# Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas, is also the Chief Executive of # BB de A R A RIMTTIAEE, -

the Company.
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for the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ =T —HAF+=-A=+—HIFE

14. Directors’, Chief Executive’s and

14. B THRHEBREEMSE (&)

Employees’ Remuneration (continued)

The directors’ emoluments disclosed above include their
services in connection with the management of the affairs
of the Company and the Group. There was no
arrangement under which a director or the chief executive
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
years.

Notes:

(a) Mr. Cheng Yu Tung and Mr. Cheng Kar Shun, Henry have
retired on 4 May 2015.

(b) Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Joseph had resigned as a non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 14 March 2014.

(c) Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond had retired as an
independent non-executive director of the Company with
effect from 14 April 2014.

(d)  Mr. Ip Yuk Keung was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company with effect from 22 April
2014.

Of the five highest paid individuals of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2015, one of them (2014: one)
was a director of the Company whose remuneration is
disclosed above. The remaining four (2014: four) are
employees of the Group, details of whose remuneration
were as follows:

NEEEMESREEARR MASEEET @
RS - RMFHHE - BB EFHITHAE

WEHKFBREEMAME -

e

(@) BWREAEERBRAXEER_F-HEFERHA

() R-ZT—WNE=ATMARL  DEELERE
RABHZEAITESE -

(@ RZZ-NFOA+TMAR  REXEERE
RARBBILIFNITES ©

d) RZTE—EFEOA_FT_AE EHELES

BHE-ZT-AF+-_A=+—BLFE K&
ALt —FB(ZF—mF: —
Z)RARARES  B2MER EXHEE - SIb
ma(—F—mFE : m2)MAAEEESR @

ElFnE=S

ERARBNBILIFAITES -

LZMERFITHEIINT

2015 2014
—E-RF —ZT—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT T

Employees: EE :
Salaries, allowances and other benefits e - R R EAMET 6,637 6,633
Retirement benefits scheme contributions IR FIFT IR 72 67
Performance related incentive payments ERIFEH S 1,010 1,644
7,719 8,344

The emolument of the remaining four were within the
following bands:

HfpMEmESHA LT ZHMN FLATEE :

2015 2014

—E-AfF —E—mF

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

AE N ¢

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 /87T 2 1,500,000 %8 7T - 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T £ 2,000,000 %8 7T 3 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7% 7T 2 2,500,000 7 7T 1 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7% 7T = 3,500,000 7T - 1

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, no

PRAEE-—_ZE—AFE_ZT—NF+_A4
T+ BUHFE AEEVERAQNAESK

remuneration was paid by the Group to the directors of
the Company or the four highest paid employees as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

mMEm=HEESXNME - ARSIHBFMAR

SEAIER/IMANEE 2 BB AH(E -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) #R& B #% 3R M = (80

for the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z =%

15.

16.

—hAFE+ZA=t—HILLFE

Dividends 15. RE
2015 2014
—E-RfF Z— M
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHAT
Dividends recognised as distributions FRBERBDIRZIE
during the year:
Final dividend in cash paid for year ended HE-ZT—NF+-_A=+—H
31 December 2014 — HK cents 34.3 per share thﬁr AR & R 2 REARE B
(2014: HK cents 32.7 per share paid for year — BR3AIBM(ZZT—UF -
ended 31 December 2013) KEEZZ—=F+=A
=t —RIEFESR32.7 8D 556,888 535,176
Interim dividend in cash paid for six months HE-_T—RAFA=1+AH
ended 30 June 2015 — HK cents 28.9 per share  1F73E A AR &R {2 A AR &
(2014: HK cents 24.8 per share paid for — R 28.9B (=T —Mm4F :
six months ended 30 June 2014) KNEZ=—Z—WFXA=+H
17N E A& 24.8784U) 464,297 404,087
1,021,185 939,263
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, final RMEPEERE  ESEZHRMNRPB SR

dividend of HK cents 34.3 in cash (2014: HK cents 34.3) per
share has been proposed by the directors of the Company

BER3AIBAUM( =T —F : 34.3781l) - 1

AEFRRNEERFBFERNGIE -

which is subject to approval by the shareholders in the
forthcoming general meeting.

Earnings Per Share 16. BRER
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share RARHEEABEERERREERFN TR T
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the BB AESDE

following data:

2015 2014
—E-EF — P4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Earnings 2
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the MAEFRERREEAT
Company for the purposes of basic and diluted & Z A&A2RQ Al HE AL
earnings per share ANF 1,914,392 2,143,994
2015 2014
—E-HfF —E
‘000 ‘000
TR TR
Number of shares RHEE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for LT ESREARAEFME 2
the purpose of basic earnings per share %@Hﬁj}ﬂ$§$i’:}§5{ 1,612,978 1,635,103
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares issuable 72 &]88 2l IETT%%?‘_I
under the Company's share option scheme ZEBTEEEERR R
(note) (FF=E) - 173
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for  FLETESREEHFME 2
the purpose of diluted earnings per share LE AR HNARE 1 8 1,612,978 1,635,276
Note: The Company does not have any dilutive potential ordinary MisE © ANA BN E R ST FAVEEEE SR - B
share for the year as the share options were all exercised KEE2HBREBLE—"ZT-—NF+-A=+—H

during the year ended 31 December 2014.

LIEFETE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) #R& 8 # 3R 3% M & (80

for the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ =T —HAF+=-A=+—HIFE

17. Investment Properties 17. REYE
Completed
investment
properties
EEE:974
REWE
HK$'000
FET
FAIR VALUE NEE
At 1 January 2014 NZZE—WMFE—H—H 716,753
Additions during the year FRNRE 5,202
Decrease in fair value recognised in profit or loss RiBRRER 2 AT ERD
— Unrealised loss — REREE (3,053)
Exchange adjustments PE H 53 2 (18,499)
At 31 December 2014 R-ZT—NE+_-_/F=+—H 700,403
Increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss RIBRRERZ AFEEM
— Unrealised gain — REB W= 3,000
Exchange adjustments M H R (35,013)
At 31 December 2015 MWZE—RAF+_-_A=+—H 668,390
The carrying amount of investment properties shown LA EREYERERE S B
above comprises:
2015 2014
—E-hfF —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Land in Hong Kong held under medium-term lease & BRIEH BFHAFE 2 £ 42,400 39,400
Land in the PRC held under medium-term lease AR BIRIEP R4S H 2 i 625,990 661,003
668,390 700,403

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes
are measured using the fair value model and are classified
and accounted for as investment properties.

The legal document in respect of the real estate title
certificate of the Group's investment properties situated in
Harbin with carrying value of RMB277,500,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$327,450,000) as at 31 December 2015
(31 December 2014: RMB277,500,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$345,765,000)) has not yet obtained. The
management of the Group considers there is no material
legal impediment for the Group to obtain the real estate
title certificate.

AN [E A WCERTE © W A LA E AR IE(E % B B8
REHETRHENMERDRAAFET G
B UDBRARRKREDE -

R-E-—RAE+-_A=+—H0 £ERKBEZE
M EYE - HEEmEEA AR 277,500,000 7T
(HHE M 49327,450,00078 70) (A —ZF — U4
+ZA=+—8: AR® 227,500,000t ({H&
RA#1345,765,0007%87T)) + DAREISEBEER
FEAENH EEEEBREEEERBREE
BHER A E AR REMER -
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17. REWE (&)

17. Investment Properties (continued)
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The fair value of the Group’s investment properties
situated in Hong Kong and the PRC at 31 December 2015
had been arrived based on a valuation carried out at that
date by DTZ, an independent qualified professional valuer
not connected to the Group whose address is 16/F., 1063
King’s Road, Quarry Bay, Hong Kong, at 31 December
2015. DTZ is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors. The fair value of the Group’s investment
properties at 31 December 2015 was arrived at based on
direct comparison method assuming sales of each of the
properties interests in its existing state and by making
reference to comparable sales evidences of similar nature
properties available in the relevant market.

The fair value of the Group's investment properties
situated in Hong Kong and the PRC was stated at fair
value at 31 December 2014 which was determined by the
directors of the Company with reference to a valuation
performed by DTZ carried out at 30 November 2014 and
recent property market data of similar properties in the
relevant locations. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the fair value of these properties at 31
December 2014 approximated the fair value at 30
November 2014. The fair value of the Group’s investment
properties at 30 November 2014 was arrived at based on
direct comparison method assuming sales of each of the
properties in its existing state and by making reference to
comparable sales evidences of similar nature properties
available in the relevant market.

AEBVAREBSEFENRENER T —
E+-A=1+— Em NF(ET2E EAREEL
BEAECBLAEAREEGEMBERT m
it & & S 8 & /%9& E106355 1618 © B —
—hE+-A=+—BHETZHEETE - %ﬁ
RITABSIEMEBS €8 - REFNERE
MER-_ZT—AF+-_A=+—BHNRFER
NEBHLBABRRGEMEEZEBRREER
SEGMMBZREEENENTLHERS
RETE °

AEBMUAESRFENEENER T —
F+ZA=Z1+—HNAFEIBRARGESRZ
ERIHBBERITR T —UF+—A=1+RHi#T
Z G B R FAFE B Hb 2h [R) 28 ) 2 M T 452 3T HA 8k
EMET - ARAEERAEZSVWER_-Z
—OFE+-A=+—HHAFEER =_ZF—NQ
F+—A=Z1THHNAFEEE - AEENERE
MER-_ZT—NF+—A=Z+HNAFEIZMNU
BEEEBEABRRSEAVERSERRKEERS
EEAMBZRBEEEMENTLHEER DK
EETE -
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for the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ =T —HAF+=-A=+—HIFE

17. Investment Properties (continued)
The following table gives information about how the fair
values of these investment properties are determined (in
particular, the valuation techniques and inputs used), as
well as the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value

measurements is observable.

17. BEY= (H)
TRBIIZSRANEATENEES ELE
RAGEFARAEASE) ARATESE - R
BATER  ATEARERATEAESY
MABRIEEN A—E=M

Carrying value of investment Fair value Valuation technique(s) Relationship of unobservable
properties held by the Group hierarchy and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s) inputs to fair value
AEEAFRENE AVE R E EXES EEBRNAARE
ZIREE ZHER MEEBANEE BENBARE HATENER
At 31 December 2015
R-B-AF+ZA=t-H
Commercial property in Qingdao Level 3 Direct comparison method Price per square metre, using market The higher the price per square
BEEENE =1 assuming sale in its existing direct comparables and taking into metre, the higher the fair value.
HK$298,540,000 state and by making reference to  account location and other individual BRHKEREE  ATESS -
298,540,000 % 7T comparable sales evidences of factors such as environment,
similar nature properties building facilities, levels, etc.,
as available in the relevant which is ranging from RMB9,429/sq.m. The higher the level adjustment,
market. to RMB13,935/sg.m. the lower the fair value.
UKL ER2EBRTS RETHAEREREETSIRBBLL APERES  ATEUE-
RENE L EERSH STALE RENREORE - MERE
BERABE RHEEERER - REFHAK
ARE949TEARK13935T
The key inputs are:
TE2HA: Level adjustment on individual floors of the
property range from 40% to 70% on
(1) Price per square metre; and specific levels.
BYHARER: R NEREEHRAEES
(2) Level adjustment R 5289 40% Z 70% °
RHHE
Commercial property in Harbin Level 3 Direct comparison method Price per square metre, using market The higher the price per square
RREEENE =8 assuming sale in its existing direct comparables and taking into metre, the higher the fair value.
HK$327,450,000 state and by making reference to  account location and other individual BEHKEREE ATEYS -
327,450,000/ 7T comparable sales evidences of factors such as environment,
similar nature properties building facilities, levels, etc., The higher the level adjustment,
as available in the relevant of RMB27,500/sg.m. the lower the fair value.
market. RETHAEREREETSIRBELR ARBERLES A TELE-
RBRREER2EEATS SAALERERNEZWRS - WERE
REMF 2L HEERSH TAEEERE  AEFAA
BELEE - AE# 27,5007 °
The key inputs are: Level adjustment on individual floors of the
TES2H 5 property range from 50% to 70% on
specific levels.
(1) Price per square metre; and NESEENRAAZS
SYIKER R {151/ 5 #50% £ 70% °
(2) Level adjustment
RAEE
Commercial properties in Hong Kong Level 2 Direct comparison method N/A N/A
BENENE £ assuming sale in its existing TEA TEA
HK$42,400,000 state and by making reference
42,400,0007 7T to comparable sales evidences

of similar nature properties
as available in the relevant
market.

NRMRHER2ZEBTS
REMEZ I EERSH
BEREEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) #R& B #% 3R M = (80

for the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z =%

—hAFE+ZA=t—HILLFE

17. Investment Properties (continued)

17. REWE (&)

Carrying value of investment Fair value Valuation technique(s) Relationship of unobservable
properties held by the Group hierarchy and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s) inputs to fair value
AEEFBRENE AVE HERE EAEE EEBENBARSE
ZIREE i NEEBADEE BENBARE HATENEE
At 31 December 2014
R=Z2-mE+=A=+-H
Commercial property in Qingdao Level 3 Direct comparison method Price per square metre, using market The higher the price per square
HK$315,238,000 =R assuming sale in its existing direct comparables and taking into metre, the higher the fair value.
BEEENE 315,238,000/ T state and by making reference account location and other SYHRERER  AFEES -
to comparable sales evidences individual factors such as environment,
of similar nature properties building facilities, levels, etc., The higher the level adjustment,
as available in the relevant which is ranging from RMBY9,203/sq.m. the lower the fair value.
market. to RMB13,876./5g.m. BABRYS - ATEME -
URRHER2ZER REVIRBREREETSTLERLE
TEREME 2 AL HE FTANE RERRZNRE - MERH
RGNERLEE RAERBERZ - REFHK
AR9203LE ARK 13876 °
The key inputs are:
TE2EA: Level adjustment on individual floors of
the property range from 40% to 70%
(1) Price per square metre; and on specific levels.
Y AER: R NEEZREORAAER
(2) Level adjustment {EIRI B 4% 40% Z 70% °
RpHE
Commercial property in Harbin Level 3 Direct comparison method Price per square metre, using market The higher the price per square

HK$345,765,000 E=H
TR R BTS2 345,765,000 7T

Commercial properties in Hong Kong Level 2
HK$39,400,000 %=
BB 39,400,000 % 7T

assuming sale in its existing state
and by making reference to
comparable sales evidences of
similar nature properties
as available in the relevant
market.

WERHER2ZER
TIERENE 2T HE
RBNERLRE

The key inputs are:

(1) Price per square metre; and
BYARER: K
(2) Level adjustment

#&E‘J%Jﬂ%

Direct comparison method
assuming sale in its existing
state and by making reference
to comparable sales evidences
of similar nature properties
as available in the relevant
market.

URRHER2ZER
MERENE L T HEE
RHMEELRA

direct comparables and taking into

account location and other individual

factors such as environment,

building facilities, levels, etc.,

of RMB27,500/sq.m.
RETHRKERERERETS M L EERTE

FAGLE RERIERWRE - MERE

BREEERE - ABTAK

AR 27,5007 ©

Level adjustment on individual floors of
the property range from 50% to 70%
on specific levels.

NEEREORAIAER
{8152 4Rk 50% 2 70% °

N/A
@R

metre, the higher the fair value.

Y AAERER ATEES -

The higher the level adjustment,
the lower the fair value.

RAARER  ATELE -

N/A
TER
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18. Property, Plant and Equipment 18. M¥ - BERZE
Leasehold Furniture,
land and Leasehold Plantand fixtures and Motor  Construction
buildings  improvements machinery equipment vehicles in progress Total
AELH AENE BER BB
kT 1] B RERRR AE ERIE &t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
ThL TR TR ThT T TR ThL

Rl IR = A - e

Ee Rt = B

COsT A
At 1 January 2014 RZZ-mF-F-H 5,780,389 912,058 382,538 193,323 16,206 317,672 7,662,185
Exchange adjustment [E A (86,042) (13,642) (5,561) (1,746) (177) (4.861) (112,029
Additions NE - 124,030 45531 72,515 6,99 482,625 731,757
Disposals HE - (110,461) (27917 (11,09 (2,359 - (151,829
Transfer B - 17,210 - - - (17,270) -
At 31 December 2014 R-E-NE+-f=+-H 5,694,347 929,255 394,591 253,060 20,665 838,166 8,130,084
Exchange adjustment B AR (163,920) (27.82) (10,121) (3962 @13 (25,246) (231,489
Additions HE 2067 84,997 25,185 54810 1312 882,511 1,050,882
Transfer to properties under BREEERME(MH2)

development (note 22) - - - - - (284,078) (284,078)
Disposalsfurite-off the /3 (10485) 80014 (13403) (2,065) (836 - (106,803
At 31 December 2015 RZE-RFTZA=1-H 5,522,009 906,411 396,252 301,843 20,728 141,353 8,558,596
DEPRECIATION ik 3
At 1 January 2014 W=E-mE-F-A 1,337,101 758,423 211,607 133,380 10213 - 2,450,724
Exchange adjustment EiRE (9,202) (10,867) (1,964) (1,518) (94) - (23,645)
Provided for the year FRfE 136,238 71478 24010 19,354 2,118 - 253,198
Eliminated on disposals HERLE - (110,461) (26,988) (10,841) (2,359 - (150,649)
At 31 December 2014 RZF-RE+=A=1-A 1,464,137 708,573 206,665 140,375 9878 - 2529628
Exchange adjustment ERAE (29,343) (23,088) (4,291) (3,021) (227) - (59,970)
Provided for the year ERHE 136,238 49981 20480 29014 2,609 - 238322
Eliminated on disposals/write-offs ~ HER /53 (881) (719.687) (12,796 (1,634) (152) - (95,150)
At 31 December 2015 RZE-RE+-A=+-H 1,570,151 655,779 210,058 164,734 12,108 - 2612830
NET BOOK VALUES REFE
At 31 December 2015 RZE-RFTZA=1-H 3,951,858 250,632 186,194 137,109 8,620 141,353 5,945,766

At 31 December 2014 R-E-MET-A=+-H 4,230,210 220,682 187,926 112,685 10,787 838,166 560045




G0z Moday [enuuy  paliwi] sBulp|oH |euoneuiaiu| o|A1sa

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) #R& B R MisE (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z = —AF+-A=+—HILFE

18. Property, Plant and Equipment

19.

(continued)

Included in construction in progress are borrowing costs
and prepaid lease payments capitalised during the year,
amounting to HK$197,122,000 (2014: HK$161,814,000) and
HK$92,069,000 (2014: HK$97,219,000), respectively.

18. ¥ - BEK&E (&)

EREIRBEFABERZEERARIERN
HEFRE  H51A197,122,000/8 (= —M
F 1 161,814,000 71 ) 92,069,000 L (==
—PU4E : 97,219,000 7T) °

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other BREZIRRIN - Ltz - BENMKBIEB T
than construction in progress, are depreciated after taking BT HMAERTRER - WERRIR T F X5
into account their estimated residual value, using straight- BIE
line method over the following useful lives:
Leasehold land and Over the shorter of lease HETREF REHFHHM+F
buildings terms or 40 years (ABRRE & R YE)
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of lease HEMEXE LA F R F
terms or 5 years (AR HE A%E)
Plant and machinery 5to 10 years TR 55 e i e BFE+F
Furniture, fixtures 5 years B BIERE RIF
and equipment L
Motor vehicles 5 years P heF
2015 2014
— —T—mE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET THETT
The carrying amount of leasehold land and HE L REFREBESE
buildings comprises land and buildings: AT RiEF -
— long lease in Hong Kong — R EEZRBOEE 432,156 441,025
— medium-term lease in Hong Kong — R EBZPEEOEE 1,015,793 1,053,843
1,447,949 1,494,868
— medium-term lease in the PRC — R E S EAFR L SR 2,503,909 2,735,342
3,951,858 4,230,210

Please refer to note 39 for the details of pledge of assets.

Prepaid Lease Payments
The Group's prepaid lease payments comprise:

DEMEEZFBEEN  B2HMEIY -

19. ENHEHERE

AREBEZENHEFRIARHE

2015 2014
—E-HE —T-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FET

Leasehold land in the PRC A 2 & T
Medium-term lease A ERFR 49 3,505,666 4,345,426

Analysed for reporting purposes as: MERMENDWTR -

Current portion BIHAER 17 80,204 94,504
Non-current portion FERNHEAER 1D 3,425,462 4,250,922
3,505,666 4,345,426

Please refer to note 39 for the details of pledge of assets.

BHEREEZFIBER  B2MME39 -
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20. Interests in Associates

20. REEE QA EIHER

Unlisted, at cost

Discount arising on acquisition of additional
interest in an associate in prior years

Share of post-acquisition profits and other
comprehensive income, net of dividends

FELT - HAA

PR 4 IR — R 2 A T
BOME R TR

FENR U BB 18 2 i A

NEMEEBA - HERE

2015 2014
= —T—mF
HK$000 HK$'000
TR THT
1,527,491 1,514,131
114,556 114,556
1,560,749 1,297,636
3,202,796 2,926,323

At 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group had interests

in the following associates:

RZE—AFER_T—NOF+=_A=1+—H"
AREBM TF & AR AR

Form of Place/ country of Proportion of nominal value
business establishment/ Principal place of issued capital/ registered Proportion of voting
Name of entity structure incorporation of operation capital held by the Group power held Principal activities
AL/ EEEABCRTRE/
RiE£E EBERES Bz Vg TEREHY EMBAEEL A P RRRLLA TREH
2015 2014 2015 2014
“®-1f | “ET-PF | CB-EF | ZEOF
BERENEAREE Incorporation PRC PRC 49% 49% 49% 49%  Investment holding of a group
EREARE L HE E of companies engaging in the
("Beiren Group”) (note 1) operation of department stores,
(EA%E]) supermarkets and property
k2D leasing
HFERE  BORYE
BEXBZEEREZ
RERR
ALLEERTES Incorporation PRC PRC 49% 48% 49% 48%  Retailing business in the PRC
BRELAT EljzAva P Gl EPRUETERT
("Future Mall") (note 2)
([£RTES))
(Ffz2)
Dragon Sign Limited Incorporation Hong Kong PRC 50% 50% 50% 50%  Investment holding of a company
EEARAE L EE hE engaging in operation of
restaurants in the PRC
ErERFRELEEY
REZRERR
Notes: MRt

(1) The Group's 60% owned subsidiary holds equity interest of

49% (2014: 49%) in Beiren Group.

2) During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group has
further acquired 1% equity interest in Future Mall at a
consideration of HK$13,360,000. At 31 December 2015 and
2014, the Group's 60% owned subsidiary, Ample Sun Group
Limited, held equity interest of 49% (2014: 48%) in Future
Mall. In addition, 51% equity interest of Future Mall is being
indirectly held by a non-wholly owned subsidiary of Beiren

Group.

AEBIFHO% R 2B AR HEILALR
49% (ZZ— U4 : 49%) B A fEss ©

RZZE-—RAF+A=+—HILFE F&EH
BABNERTES %2 BE ERER
13,360,000 8T R_T—RAF+_A=+—
AR—ZE-—NFE+_A=+—0 AEEHAF
0% HEmZMBARmREEMARARFA L
RTES49% (—F — 04 : 48%) IR A= o
IS - 51% BB R T ES R ERILASEESE
BEA 2B AREEES -

Rl IR = A - e

[l

20
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) #R& B #% 3R M = (80

for the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z = —AF+-A=+—HILFE

20. Interests in Associates (continued)
The financial information in respect of the Group's
associates is set out below:

20. REE D FER (&)

BHAEEBERRZHBERNT

2015 2014

—B-AF ZE—UF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET TET

Total assets BEMEEE 13,732,648 13,328,133
Total liabilities BERH 8,494,863 8,585,409
Net assets BEEE 5,237,785 4,742,724
Group's share of associates’ net assets REBEELBE AR EEEE 3,202,796 2,926,323
Revenue e &5 18,085,395 18,009,301
Profit for the year REE)HH 497,915 436,484

Other comprehensive expense HEm2mEz (172,124) (72,597)
Group's share of profit of associates for the year 7S5 B JE(G Bt & A B 2N 4F 2 5 7l 400,505 347,157

Group's share of other comprehensive expense AN E E(FHF & QR AFE

of associates for the year HuermEms B (115,970) (47,019

Summarised financial information of material
associates

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's
material associate is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts shown in
the associate’s financial statements prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs.

Beiren Group is the only material associate to the Group
and it is accounted for using the equity method in these
consolidated financial statements.

EXRBERRZHBERBE

BAAREBEERBE AR ZHBENEERT
AT - AT B E R E 25 RB & R F 28
BRERZ TR ERBEBYBREERRS -

EARERERAEERE -SANBEAR 2K
AN A VB WMERAIR
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20. Interests in Associates (continued)

20. REEE QT ER (F)

Beiren Group tAKEH
2015 2014
—E-EF —T—mE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T
Current assets BB E 7,713,635 7,593,760
Non-current assets SEMENEE 5,815,104 5,534,084
Current liabilities mEAaE 8,220,865 8,289,761
Non-current liabilities JEmEAaE 75,991 102,439
Non-controlling interests IEIE IS R = 1,030,865 861,596
2015 2014
= —T—mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Revenue W 25 17,978,085 17,896,887
Profit for the year AN E % F 499,095 437,804
Other comprehensive expense for the year AEEEMEES N (172,124) (72,597)
Total comprehensive income for the year AFEREP AL 326,971 365,207
Dividends declared from the associate RERZE SN T
during the year ZEEIREE 21,421 56,003

Rl IR = A - e

Ee Rt = B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) #R& B R MisE (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z = —AF+-A=+—HILFE

20. Interests in Associates (continued)
Beiren Group (continued)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest in the
associate in respect of Beiren Group recognised in the
consolidated financial statements:

20. REE N RIS ()
1t A S ()
BRI A RBREA BB RE T ERH L AT
Ve 2 BRI 81 LB A AR 9

2015 2014
—E-HF —T-mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FET
Net assets of Beiren Group attributable to owners #HG AFE(HIL AR 2 BEFE 4,201,018 3,874,048
Proportion of the Group's ownership interest in ~ R&E B ML A & B3
Beiren Group B 49% 49%
2,058,499 1,898,284
Add: Interest in Beiren Group through other mn:EBEAREEH AN B AR
subsidiaries of the Group RIEANEB R 2 #ws 1,141,347 1,024,499
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in REBERIEARE R
Beiren Group ZEREE 3,199,846 2,922,783
Aggregate information of associates that are not BERIEER ZHE RARFEER
individually material
2015 2014
—E-HE —E—mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
The Group's share of loss and total KEBEELER
comprehensive expense A (590) (660)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's REFEREE R E R
interests in these associates ZHBEREE 2,950 3,540
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21.

Interest in a Joint Venture 21. R—REEL¥ERS

At 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group had interest in
the following joint venture:

R-B-—RFR-ZT-—MOF+-A=+—H"
AEER T AECERAER

Proportion of nominal
Place of establishment/ value of issued capital  Proportion of voting
Name of entity Form of business structure operation held by the Group power held  Principal activities
AEEfE
BEARA fiRER
ERER EBERES AU/ By HELH th EERE
HENERTREERAT Sino-foreign equity joint venture PRC 50% 50%  Propertyholding and
(Shanghai Joinbuy City Plaza Co, Ltd) ~ FIMGERELE HE leasing
NEBEREE
The joint venture is accounted for using the equity method BB EEESEHEAE
of accounting:
2015 2014
—E-IF —Z-mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Cost of unlisted investment in a joint venture —REELEIELMIREZKRA 433,104 433,104
Share of post-acquisition profits and other JEAR U B 1% 2 v I B EoAth
comprehensive income, net of dividends 2EEA - HBREE 23,176 36,511
456,280 469,615
Amount due from a joint venture R —REEBENRIE 35,400 87,220
491,680 556,835

As at 31 December 2015, the amount due from a joint
venture represents an entrusted loan to a joint venture of
HK$35,400,000 (2014: HK$87,220,000) which carries fixed
rate of 3.5% per annum. An amount of HK$47,200,000 was
repaid during the year ended 31 December 2015.

E-Z—hFE BR-RAELERERE
ETAEBRE  NETFMEISSZEFAER
35,400, OOO/% 7o( = & — [0 4 : 87,220,000 %
) BE-FE-AFT-_A=1+—HLLEFE"
EE%MQO0,000‘}%T_E °

Rl IR = A - e

Ee Rt = B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) #R& B R MisE (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z = —AF+-A=+—HILFE

21. Interest in a Joint Venture (continued) 21. R—REEL¥EER (&)
The summarised financial information related to the FAASERGECE 2 #an 2 AR
Group's interest in the joint venture is set out below: N
2015 2014
—E-RF —ZT—MF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TET
Non-current assets EREEE 1,153,645 1,228,167
Current assets BB E 98,527 211,600
Current liabilities mEAE 339,612 500,537
Cash and cash equivalents NWeENBEESEEY 43,509 26,530
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade and ~ REI& @B E (T EIEENERR
other payables and provisions) Ko EO A FE A< 5018 R A ) 307,290 457,360
Income A 246,890 235,516
Expenses X 170,810 182,590
Profit for the year AR T 76,080 52,926
Other comprehensive expense Hih2mEZ (28,272) (14,174)
Total comprehensive income for the year RELZEHEPALE 47,808 38,752
Dividend income recognised by the Group FAREEEBRZREMA
during the year 37,239 35,992
Group's share of profit of the joint venture AEBEHAELERH 38,040 26,463
Group's share of other comprehensive expense ~ AEBEERAEEDEEM
of the joint venture 2HEXH (14,136) (7,087)
The above profit for the year includes the following: A ERFZHENBIEATIER
2015 2014
—E-RF —T-MF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Depreciation and amortisation s R - -
Interest income F B WA 206 110
Interest expense FMEZH 14,056 14,437
Income tax expense FriSiis 30,389 28,910
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21.

22.

23.

Interest in a Joint Venture (continued)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial

21. R—REELFESE (&)
LRMBERER RS AMBRETREAD

information to the carrying amount of the interest in a joint ¥ikam 2 BREELR -
venture recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:
2015 2014
= —T—mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Net assets of the joint venture SECEZEEFE 912,560 939,230
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest REEHAREIRLL D 50% 50%
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in a REEREELEES
joint venture Z REE 456,280 469,615
Properties under Development 22. BRPYHE

During the year, the Group transferred HK$778,716,000
(representing the amounts of prepaid lease payments of
HK$494,638,000, development and construction
expenditure, borrowing costs capitalised and other direct
costs of HK$284,078,000 which are directly attributable to
the construction and development of two office towers of
the Group’s commercial complex development project in
Shanghai, the PRC) to the balance of properties under
development. Management intends to sell these two
office towers in part or in whole when the sale permit is
granted by PRC authorities. Refer to note 39 for the details
of pledge of assets.

Inventories

FER - REB 778,716,000 7T (A4 &= E R
FEEEERNERAOAMERERAKNEZ
494,638,000 SLIE M E A - MR LR
KA BEAMLEEERLREMEEEA
284,078,000 L) B EEREFME - EFEHEA
RAEBPIR T E MR - BEETEEmE
B AERIREHLE - CEBEEZFE
BAEMIFE39 -

Merchandise held for resale FEEEEEM

23. 78
2015 2014
—E-EHEF —ZT—MmEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tt
79,348 86,419

Rl IR = A - e

Ee Rt = B
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24. Trade and other Receivables

24. FEWARAR R E At UK TR

G0z Moday [enuuy  paliwi] sBulp|oH |euoneuiaiu| o|A1sa

2015 2014

—B-AF —E-mEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FA&T

Trade receivables JEUBR X 84,517 84,640

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts T REREHE (2,206) (2,209)
82,311 82,431

Prepayments FETARAK 28,685 47,073
Deposits paid [EANESn 38,652 43,105
Value added tax (“VAT") receivable FE W% (E T 66,317 93,938
Dividend receivable from an associate FEURESE & A R 2 AR B - 32,894
Others HAth 57,277 68,325
273,242 367,766

The Group's retail sales to customers are mainly made in
cash, through debit card or credit card payments. Its major
trade receivables arise from credit card sales and the
receivables from concessionaire income are normally
settled 30 days in arrears. The following is an aged analysis
of trade receivables net of allowance for doubtful debts
presented based on the invoice date, which approximates
the respective revenue recognition dates:

AREBRABTEENTEHETZUNRS &
BREERRIER AR - AEBEE EBREIRK
KEEARHEEMBER=1T B A% E RS
FFREBRARR - LT ARMEREES
FEYER R (FIBR RER BB RIFBRZ A H (&
B Yees R B HIRRAT) 2 BREC DA

2015 2014

—E-Af%F —E-mEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FA&T

0-30 days 0H=30H 74,292 76,021
31-60 days 31THZE60H 4,671 4,342
61-90 days 61HZEH 1,038 628
Over 90 days HiE90 H 2,310 1,440
82,311 82,431

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balance are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of HK$3,348,000
(2014: HK$2,068,000) which are past due at the end of the
reporting period for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances. The average age of these receivables
is 90 days (2014: 90 days).

7K £ [5] JE Ut Bk R4S 24 B 1 BR 1 42 8 3,348,000 7%
TT(—Z—PU4E : 2,068,000 7T) 2 FEW K » %
SR ARE B @ MRk E - MAER
AEIEHREBEEE AEETERZEL
BEBEATMERR - ZSERFEZ FHERER
BB (ZZF—PH4E 1 90R) °
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24.

25.

Trade and other Receivables (continued) 24. BN RRFR I H b fE W SRR (4])
Aging of trade receivables which are past due but BHERREZBURIRRNERENT
not impaired
2015 2014
—E—AF —E—mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
61-90 days 61HZE9H 1,038 628
Over 90 days im0 H 2,310 1,440
3,348 2,068
The Group has not provided for receivables over 90 days RE B R BE AT FR B 90 B B FE R 1E 2 8
because historical experience is that these receivables B RARBREBATEAR SEAIEHEER
were recoverable from the relevant debtors. AW [E 52 55 PR
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts on FEUERRRIRREEE
trade receivables
2015 2014
—E-EF —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Balance at beginning of the reporting period A B 45 65 2,209 3,135
Impairment loss recognised BER 2 RERE - 116
Reversal of impairment loss recognised B R 2R E R B R E (3) (1,042)
Balance at the end of the reporting period TR HRAR Ah R 2,206 2,209
Amount due from (to) a Joint Venture 25. EW(EN) —REELERE

At 31 December 2015, the amount due to a joint venture
represented accrued rental and management fee payable
to a joint venture. At 31 December 2014, the amount due
from a joint venture represented prepaid rental and
management fee to a joint venture. The amounts are
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on
demand.

RZZE—RF+-_A=+—H EN—FK&%
TEZFBBRBARENGECEZHERE
BE -RN_ZT-WF+-_A=+—8  EBR—
FAEECEZHBBEENAECEZHEE R
EIRE o WFUAREIRA - 0B RARZKE

EE -

Rl IR = A - e

Ee Rt = B
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26. Financial Assets at Fair Value Through
Profit or Loss

26. BAVEFABREZEMEE

2015 2014
—ZE—AF T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT

Financial assets at FVTPL: AT EFAEBaZEBHEE
— listed equity securities in Hong Kong — REB LEHIRE 884,816 263,290
— listed equity securities in Singapore — RFTINE ETARE - 10,096
— listed equity securities in New York — R4 FTHRRE 384,539 129,033
— listed equity securities in Tokyo — RER FHRE 265,968 93,302
— listed debt securities (note a) — EWESH (Mska) 1,344,378 830,745
— listed investment funds — FhREES 1,593,006 1,224,957
— unlisted securities (note b) — JE LM ES (MsEb) 500,607 1,292,805
— unlisted equity investment (note c) — I LTIRAEE (MisEc) 29,075 50,660
— written put options (note d) — Roh HARE (BFEd) 16,464 4,676
— unlisted index-linked notes (note e) — IE IR EUHNES (MiiEe) 104,908 -
5,123,761 3,899,564

Notes:

(a)

(c)

The listed debt securities mainly represent investment in
corporate bonds which are mainly listed in Hong Kong and
Singapore.

The unlisted securities mainly include hedge funds with
carrying amount of HK$77,283,000 (2014: HK$160,937,000),
investment portfolios managed by financial institutions with
carrying amount of HK$399,865,000 (2014: HK$322,118,000)
and debt securities with carrying amount of HK$23,459,000
(2014: HK$30,675,000). No certificates of deposit was held at
31 December 2015 (2014: HK$779,075,000).

At 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, the unlisted
equity investment in the PRC represents the Group's 10%
equity interest in Shenyang Jiajian. The fair value is
determined with reference to the fair value of the underlying
property assessed by the management of the Group and
after adjusting for lack of marketability of the investment.

BEE -

EMEFEERET BRI L2 hEE

FEMESFEBIERMEERT7,283,000% T
hES (ZZF— P4 : 160,937,000/ 7T) * M
& Bl AR B IR AR T B 5 399,865,000 7 7T 1% & 48
A (=ZZ—PU4F £ 322,118,000 7T) MEEEEA
23,459,000 7t (=& —PU4F : 30,675,000/%87T)
EH N_ZT—RAF+-_A=+—AXEZE
FRE(ZZ— 4 : 779,075,000 7T) ©

R-E—RAF+_A=+—BR_-_Z—MNF
+ZA=+—8 EPEFETRAELEE
FSERE 2 10% s - HRAFEBURNESER
HENKREYEZ A FEREMABIZRERRT
SmmMEmiEL 2 A -
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26. Financial Assets at Fair Value Through

Profit or Loss (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(d)  The written put options are derivative financial instruments.
The details of the written put options are as follows:

Underlying variables Strike

HEEE 1TEEME

26. BAVEFABSEZEHMEE ()
L : ()

d) RLBEBSRITELA - ROHENFBN
T

Quantities  Expiration date

#E IHA

At 31 December 2015
R-B-HF+=-A=+-—H

EURO STOXX 50 Index 3,050 to 3,250 points
BUMETFE 2 5046 £k 3,050 2% 3,250 2

(exercisable only at expiry date)

(REIE R 7 ae5A1T1E)

S&P 500 ETF Trust US$191 to US$198

BTS00 EHETFES 19122 198%TT

(exercisable anytime until

the exp|ry date)

(RATAA B HA H AT AT R R AT 6E)

Nikkei 225 Index 17,000 to 18,500 points
EECEDSEEE 24 17,000 % % 18,500 %4

(exercisable only at expiry date)

(REIEIB A aes7THE)

iShares FTSE A50 China Index ETF HK$9.75 to HK$10.5

iShares %21 & I AS0 R Bl {5 8 ETF 9.75TTE10.587T

(exercisable only at expiry date)

(B M E 7 8e#A77(E)

At 31 December 2014
R=Z-MF+=-A=+—H

EURO STOXX 50 Index 2,750 to 3,000 points
BUMETFE S 5046 £k 2,750 2% 3,000 2

(exercisable only at expiry date)

(RBIEIR 7 8e59171E)

S&P 500 ETF Trust US$180 to US$200
EELMS00IE#ETFES 180 TTE 2005 T
(exercisable anytime until

the exp|ry date)

(RATAA B HA H AT AT R R A T6E)

(e) As at 31 December 2015, the index-linked notes were
denominated in JPY with principal amount of
JPY1,440,000,000 and in US$ with principal amount of
US$2,500,000. All investments have a maturity period of 1
year. The return of these investments are linked to various
stock market indexes around the globe (“Underlying
Indexes”). The final redemption amount at maturity is
determined by the performance of the Underlying Indexes.

The index-linked notes are designated as financial asset at
fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition as
they contain one or more embedded derivatives. The
maturity dates of the index-linked notes outstanding as at
31 December 2015 were within one year and was therefore
classified as current assets.

At 31 December 2015, financial assets at FVTPL with
carrying amount of HK$1,174,739,000 (2014:
HK$1,790,881,000) have been pledged as security for
short-term loan facilities granted to the Group.

408 15 January 2016 to 19 February 2016
—ZE-RE-ATHHEZE
—F-R"E-A+NA

41,100 15 January 2016 to 19 February 2016
—ZE-RE-ATHEZE
—F-R"E-A+NA

67,000 8 January 2016 to 11 March 2016
—E-R"E-ANHZ
ZE-XRF=A+—H

7,740,000 13 January 2016 to 30 March 2016
T-R"F-At=HZ
72—/\$_ﬂ_$5

681 16 January 2015 to 20 March 2015
i K N R AN =
—E-h¥=A=+H

51,500 16 January 2015 to 20 March 2015
L RN =k
—T-AF=A=1A

() HEZZ—AF+-A=1+—8 Z5EHE
ﬁﬁ%%mﬁuﬁ > Bl B LA B Tt E A
1,440,000,000 H 7t }& A E T 5HE A 2,500,000 3
TC o R EIEHHMELFNEHA A —F - %
FIRYBBES 2 ERERIEZIRTRAKRE
ISR (FRRES) MEE - LR H A NKE
fEEl & 52 B ZAMERNRIBIORE -

MR ELESRHBEREE —EXZERALN
ATAR - YRR - HER/BAFEFA
BHZ2EemEE-MR_ZT—RAF+=A
=t —ADAREZERHBEZFNIHAR
—FURN - MOBR/RBEE ©

R-ZZF-—RAF+-_A=+—H REER
1,174,739,000# 7T (= Z — P94 : 1,790,881,000
BIL) ZIR A HER AR 2 & BB E AR
RERRTAREE B EREE -

Rl IR = A - e

[l
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) #R& B #% 3R M = (80

for the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z =%

27. Bank Balances and Cash

28.

—hAFE+ZA=t—HILLFE

27. RITEERAS

At the end of the reporting period, bank balances and
cash comprised mainly short-term deposits with original
maturity within three months and carry interests at
prevailing market rates ranging from 0.18% to 4.70% per

annum (2014: 0.01% to 4.90% per annum).

Included in bank balances and cash are the following
amounts denominated in currency other than functional

currencies of the respective group entities:

RIEHEEER  RTETRESTERRE
BIRITMIS A EF B (FHMENTF018EE4LT
E)(ZZ—WF : FRENF001EEL9E)
MR =B AR B2 TR

RITA ﬁ&ﬁ%&%Tﬁ‘JLMHFﬁ%IEE%E}J BE
B AINEEETERRUE

2015 2014

—E-FHEF —E—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FA&T

us$ Ev 1,036,182 1,711,606

RMB AR 24,215 1,345,337
Trade and Other Payables 28. ENERRKRHEAMENRIE

2015 2014

—ZE-AF T

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FA&T

Trade payables FEATBR TR 255,700 287,361

Construction payables FEAT TH2 5K 249,194 275,361

Concessionaire sales payable FERHSFRF BB E U 1,022,788 1,180,877

Deferred income EIEW 2= 327,662 289,483

Rental deposits received B EZS 67,207 67,842

Accrued expenses fExt 1 256,281 248,770

VAT payable FEHIEET 11,784 20,720

Interest payables FEAT R B 111,629 109,323

Others Hih 128,244 128,668

2,430,489 2,608,405

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables T ARBEHEEEBENERBEBEESR

presented based on the invoice date at the end of the HAZ BRER AT ©

reporting period:

2015 2014

—E-hF —ZE—mF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAET

0-30 days 0H=Z=30H 201,120 225,924
31-60 days 31HZ60H 45,783 54,415
61-90 days 61HZEH 2,837 2,298
Over 90 days HRiB90 H 5,960 4,724
255,700 287,361

The average credit period of trade payables and
concessionaire sales payable is within 45 days from invoice
date. All concessionaire sales payable are aged within 45
days from invoice date. The Group has financial risk
management policies in place to ensure that all payables

are paid within the credit timeframe.

N EREEMNFFEBEEENBEZTEEER
HGMRBEZEEMRTRAS HIAN « FTEERSET
B HESAZ R AR EZAMETEASH
LA o REERRA M ISR EIRHBOR - IR
BRENFIEREEHRASA -



29. Bank Borrowings

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) #R& Bf 3% 3k i ot (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ =T —HAF+=-A=+—HIFE

29. RITEE

2015 2014
—E—AF —E—mF
HK$7000 HK$'000
THEx FHET
Bank borrowings comprised bank loans HRITIEEBRRITE AR -
and analysed as: WHRLAT 94 -
Secured Vg 3,653,750 4,354,412
Unsecured IR 400,000 -
4,053,750 4,354,412
Carrying amount repayable based on contractual ZA#FEER N E >
repayment dates: JE(EEBRENE -
Within one year* —FREE* 3,165,156 2,004,388
More than one year, but not exceeding —FIRBTEBIBRE
two years 184,842 1,980,413
More than two years, but not exceeding MEIRBETHBIB=F
three years 11,800 166,513
More than three years, but not exceeding = FIBRETHBBOF
four years 11,800 12,460
More than four years, but not exceeding WEREBTEBBRS
five years 35,400 12,460
After five years HBidhF 644,752 178,178
4,053,750 4,354,412
Less: Amount due within one year shown under  J& : ZI ARBIBER —F RN E|H
current liabilities ZE (3,165,156) (2,004,388)
Amount due after one year —Fi2RI8 2 FIA 888,594 2,350,024

* Bank borrowings amounted to approximately HK$1,210.7
million (2014: HK$1,268.0 million) contain repayment on

demand clause.

* #71,210,700,0003% 7T 48 17 f
1,268,000,000 8 70 ) B & ZE A B SKIF (2 55K ©

ER(ZF—mE:

Rl IR = A - e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) #R& B #% 3R M = (80

for the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z = —AF+-A=+—HILFE

29. Bank Borrowings (continued)
Fixed/variable rate borrowings comprise:

29. RITHE (&)
BEEF LTRGBS

Carrying amount

IREE
2015 2014
—E—0F —E—mE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
HK$ bank loans at HIBOR + 1.22% per annum BILRITER - RBEBRITRAERE
(2014: HIBOR +1.22% per annum)® MEBN2EFE (T —PUF -
BBEABRITRAEREINFER
1.22E&F 800 1,801,440 2,401,920
HK$ bank loan at 0.55% per annum® BILIRTTE R - RFL055ET 89 400,000 -
US$ bank loans at London Interbank Offered Rate EJTLIRTTE R MM BERITRIERE
("LIBOR") + 0.65% per annum (2014: LIBOR I B.0.65E 5T A
+0.5% per annum to LIBOR + 0.65% per annum)?  (=ZF— 04 : I mIBERTTRZE
FEMEL0S5EZ0.65ER) 276,523 968,600
EUR bank loans at Euro Interbank Offered Rate  BXZBIRTTEZX » IZBUMIRTTRIZEIRE
("EURIBOR") + 0.65% per annum INEB0.65EHE(ZZ—PF :
(2014: EURIBOR + 0.65% per annum)@ EEONRITRZEFEIMNES
0.65[EFtE) @ 183,524 209,798
Great Britain Pound bank loans at LIBOR + 0.65% #5iR1TE R - ILMBIRITRIZERE
per annum (2014: LIBOR + 0.65% per annum)? 14 8.0.65E 58 (ZZF —P04 ¢
ERIBTREREMES
0.65[EFHE) @ 13,085 4919
Singapore Dollar bank loans at Singapore O TIRTTE R IR T
Interbank Offered Rate + 0.65% per annum B EFEINFEE0.65E R
(2014: Singapore Interbank Offered Rate + 0.65% (== —PU4F : LF I IBITRIZE
per annum)? WEIMFBO0L5EFE)P - 12,071
JPY bank loans at LIBOR + 0.65% per annum ATIRITER  ERBBITRE
(2014: LIBOR + 0.65% per annum)@ R EINFE B 0.65EETE
(ZF—F : RRBRTT
T ESIF L 0.65EE)P 337,604 72,591
Other RMB bank loans® H i A REERITER® 1,041,574 684,513
Total bank borrowings RITEEEE 4,053,750 4,354,412

m Repayable in one year (2014: one to two years) and interest Ul
rates will be repriced every one month to three months.

@ Repayable in one year and interest rates will be repriced @
every week, one month or three months.

@ Repayable in one month and fixed interest rates at 0.55%. ®

@ Included in RMB bank loans were amounts of @

HK$1,041,574,000 (2014: HK$684,513,000) which were
repayable within one to nine years (2014: three to ten years)
and the loans carried interest with reference to The People’s

AR—F(ZE—NF: —FEMF) REE -
MAMEER—E2=MAEHNTE -
HAR—FRNEER MAXEE—285 —EA
E=EAEHMEE -
AR —EARER - MEEFREAO0SSE -
ARMBIRITE R E R 82151,041,574,000 % 7T
(ZZ— M4 : 684,513,000 ) 2ER * 78
R—ZNF(ZZ—UF : —ZE+F)NEE -
MBBERZFEUSEFRARBITIELS
Bank of China Standard Loan Rate. =R



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) #R& Bf 3% 3k i ot (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ =T —HAF+=-A=+—HIFE

29.

30.

Bank Borrowings (continued)

The unsecured bank borrowing is guaranteed by the
Company. The range of effective interest rates of the
borrowings is 1.88% to 2.07% (2014: 1.92% to 1.98%) per

annum.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
undrawn borrowing facilities as follows:

29. RITEE (&)

BEFNRITERAARNRGMELHER - BEEE
BRARIBENFELS188EE207E(=F—M
FINREE198F) °

RBEPEEE R AEEZ REZIURITRE
BEMT :

2015 2014
i —ET-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THEx FHET
Floating rate R
— expiring within one year — —FREH 1,664,000 -
— expiring beyond one year — —F1& 5| H 3,352,762 5,875,598
Total Bt 5,016,762 5,875,598
Derivative Financial Liabilities 30. fTEERAE
2015 2014
— —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Other derivatives BEmiTHETA
(not under hedge accounting): (TR hEE!) -
Interest rate swaps | & 55 HA 1,997 1,857
Foreign currency forward contracts SMEREIE A - 5,450
1,997 7,307

Major terms of the interest rate swaps are as follows:

MR R ZEFT

Notional amount Maturity Pay fixed Receiving floating
£EREH |8 R X REEFE ZF=E WECE B FI 2 2 R =&
R-B-HAF+-A=+—H

At 31 December 2015

US$4,000,000 to US$10,000,000 3 September 2019 to 20 May 2021 1.455% to 3.23% LIBOR

4,000,000 7T % 10,000,000 & 7T

B N ELES

—E-—9FHA=-+H

R-ZE-—NmFE+=-A=+—H
At 31 December 2014

1455[BE323E  WMBERTRAZERE

US$3,000,000
3,000,000 7T

20 May 2021
—ZT-—FRA=-+H

Note: The Group will pay fixed interest on the notional amount
semi-annually and receive floating interest on the notional
amount quarterly based on the interest rate swaps
contracts.

3.23% LIBOR
3232 MBRITRERE

W - AREERELFREFDEINEEFNEM
BRI AW AR R SRBEFEEBAE -

Rl IR = A - e

Ee Rt = B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) #R& B #% 3R M = (80

for the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z = —AF+-A=+—HILFE

30. Derivative Financial Liabilities (continued)
Major terms of the foreign currency forward contracts are

30. PTETEMAE (&)
SNSRI A MM EBHERMT

as follows:
Notional amount Maturity Pay fixed Receiving floating Exchange rates
INHEERE WEGZEN R R

BERLH ZHA ZRR ZRR ER

At 31 December 2014

R-®B—mE+=H=+-8

Buy US$50,040,617 13 May 2015

& 50,040,617 37T —E—h%F 1.50% LIBOR  US$1: RMB6.155
"A+=H 1.50/2 WBERITRERE  1EXTLH 6155 ARE

Buy US$49,842,302 6 March 2015 1.20% LIBOR  US$1: RMB6.1193

549,842,302 T —E-RF=AKH 1.202 MBERITRFERE 1ETH6NBARE

Note: The Group will pay fixed interest on the notional amount
annually and receive floating interest on the notional
amount quarterly based on the foreign currency forward
contracts.

These interest rate swaps contracts and foreign currency
forward contracts can be terminated by the Group at any

MisE - AEBERBIEEHEOMEBFINAEDHE
ZEEMBIFFERREESRIFBFE

AN SR B A] LA B HA A A () By R 4% LB L S A 3R
RHE QOMINEEIIAK) -

time before the maturity date.

31. Bonds 31. BE#
2015 2014
—E-—HE —ZT—yE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Carrying amount repayable: FEEZBEEME -
More than one year, but not more than two years —FEETBBEMF 3,873,665 -
More than two years, but not more than five years MRAFZEBETBARSF - 3,872,528
After five years HBid A F 4,589,085 2,296,940
8,462,750 6,169,468
US$500,000,000 bond carries fixed coupon rate 500,000,000%TE% @ BEE
of 5.25% per annum, payable semi-annually EEFFEE525%  BEF
with maturity in January 2017 YR—R BHE_ZT—+F
—RREALE 3,873,665 3,872,528
US$300,000,000 bond carries fixed coupon rate 300,000,000%TES @ BEE
of 4.25% per annum, payable semi-annually EEFMERL2%  FHF
with maturity in October 2022 YRR BHE-Z -
TAEIERIE 2,300,027 2,296,940
US$300,000,000 bond carries fixed coupon rate 300,000,000 TES @ EE
of 4.50% per annum, payable semi-annually FHFFEF450% - BFF
with maturity in June 2025 IRk BEZZ_RF
NAEE AL 2,289,058 -
8,462,750 6,169,468




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) #R& 8 # 3R 3% M & (80

for the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ =T —HAF+=-A=+—HIFE

31. Bonds (continued)

In January and March 2012, LS Finance (2017) Limited, a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, concluded
public offering of the bonds of US$350,000,000 and
US$150,000,000 respectively (equivalent to approximately
HK$3,875,000,000 in aggregate). The bonds carry fixed
coupon rate of 5.25% per annum, payable semi-annually in
arrears. The first tranche bond, issued at discount, carries
effective interest rate of 5.54% per annum, whereas the
second tranche, issued at premium, carries effective
interest rate of 4.70% per annum. The principal amount of
the bonds issued under the first and second tranche are
repayable 5 years from the date of issue of the first tranche
of the bonds, i.e. January 2017 and unconditionally and
irrevocably guaranteed by the Company.

In October 2012, LS Finance (2022) Limited, another wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, concluded public
offering of the bonds of US$300,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,325,000,000). The bonds carry fixed
coupon rate of 4.25% per annum, payable semi-annually in
arrears. The bond, issued at discount, carries effective
interest rate of 4.43% per annum. The principal amount of
the bonds is repayable 10 years from the date of issue of
the bonds, i.e. October 2022 and unconditionally and
irrevocably guaranteed by the Company.

In June 2015, LS Finance (2025) Limited, another wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, concluded public
offering of the bonds of US$300,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,325,000,000). The bonds carry fixed
coupon rate of 4.50% per annum, payable semi-annually in
arrears. The bond, issued at discount, carries effective
interest rate of 4.70% per annum. The principal amount of
the bonds is repayable 10 years from the date of issue of
the bonds, i.e. June 2025 and unconditionally and
irrevocably guaranteed by the Company.

The purpose of the bonds is to satisfy funding
requirements for the capital expenditures relating to store
renovation and new department store projects in the PRC.
The bonds are subject to redemption, in whole but not in
part, at their principal amounts, together with interest
accrued to the date of redemption, at the option of LS
Finance (2017) Limited, LS Finance (2022) Limited and LS
Finance (2025) Limited at any time in the event of certain
changes affecting taxes of the British Virgin Islands and
the Cayman Islands. The Bonds also contain a provision
for redemption at the option of the bondholders at 101%
of the principal amount of each bond, together with
interest accrued to the date for redemption, upon a
change of controlling shareholder with respect to LS
Finance (2017) Limited, LS Finance (2022) Limited or LS
Finance (2025) Limited.

31. &% (&)

R-ZE——F—AN=F AEENZ2EHE
A @I LS Finance (2017) Limited 2 2 17 9 B &
350,000,000 3= Jt K 150,000,000 3 7T 2 1& % (42
R {E4)/53,875,000,00087T) ° EH 2 ETE
HERRAE525% BXFLH—k F—it
BHEUITEGET BERFMNEES554% @ M
FoMBELFRUGEERET BERFNRA
470% ° BE—HLEE —MWEHFHOARSESIUE—
HEHF 2 BITHE BN AFHREEZ I =%
—tF— A WERHARDEEEG TR
Bt fEPEAR ©

RZE—ZF+A AEEN2EWNBARLS
Finance (2022) Limited & % 77 300,000,000 2 JT
2 &% (H{E452,325000,00087)  EH 2
EFEZ@MEMERBL255%  FEFIAF—K-
BEHEUMEEBRETT BERFFNNERLIA3% - E
FRARSRKEENESF 2 BITHBE RN +F
BiERZ N-_ZT-_—_F+A TEEHARQF
A N N AT B H EE AR ©

RZZE—RFARA AEEN2EWNBEARLS
Finance (2025) Limited & % 7T 300,000,000 3 JT
Z1EH (SEHA2,325000000E7T) c EFHF 2
BEETEmFMEAEL40%  BEFIAF—K-
BEUMEERTT ERFFNNEXRLIT0% - &
FRASREENESFZBITHEF RN +F
®BEE B-ZZ-_AF/,"A TERHAAQR
AR R A AT VR PELR o

BTEBENETZEENRNAETEERFEE
NAEE BB EREENERAAYNE S
TR BAEMBEENRNEMFERBERR
BEMMAESEEMT B - LS Finance (2017)
Limited * LS Finance (2022) Limited LS
Finance (2025) Limited A #3232 & [0 2 2B 1 FF
MOMESHZASEREZERL A M FERF
B B EFHBE — &5 &LS Finance
(2017) Limited * LS Finance (2022) Limited 2 LS
Finance (2025) Limited Ay 3% % A% 38 /5 & (L &0 B
B BAFEANREBUGESZACERESR
EORMEMAENI101%EBERIES o

Rl IR = A - e

Ee Rt = B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) #R& B R MisE (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z = —AF+-A=+—HILFE

32. Deferred Tax Liabilities 32. ELEBIEAE
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities NTREERZEZRELEHRIEE BARKAF
recognised and movements thereon during the current ERiBEFERE

and prior years:

Distributable

EIT on fair LAT on fair  profits of PRC

Property,  value change  value change subsidiaries,
plantand of investment  of investment associates and

equipment properties properties  joint venture Total
RIBREME HEREAR
AT ELD REMF BENAR
WE - BE PRt ATEEE EELE
ET ] CEMREHE  ZIHEER  ZUSERRE @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FET FET FET T
(note) (note) (note)
CiES) (H5E) (FsE)
At 1 January 2014 RZZ—NE—A—H 16,488 61,321 108,550 25,082 211,441
Exchange adjustments [ R - (1,676) (2,964) - (4,640
Charge to profit or REB&MR
loss (note 12) (BFzE12) 25,994 - - 21,879 47,873
Released upon dividends B S &R
declared (note 12) (BtzE12) - - - (16,705) (16,705)
At 31 December 2014 RZZE—NE+-A
=+—H 42,482 59,645 105,586 30,256 237,969
Exchange adjustments [ R B - (3,160) (5,593) - (8,753)
Charge to profit or KBk
loss (note 12) (PfizE12) 11,138 - - 23,922 35,060
Released upon dividends ERBEERR
declared (note 12) (FFEE12) - - - (30,256) (30,256)
At 31 December 2015 RZE—FF
+ZA=f+—H 53,620 56,485 99,993 23,922 234,020
Note: The amounts represent deferred tax liabilities recognised in Mt - ZeERKRYE  BFE KRB MR AT E
relation to accelerated tax depreciation of property, plant RERPEZIREMENN T ELS 2 BT+
and equipment, LAT and EIT on fair value changes of HIGER REEMEH 2 BRELHIBEEE -

investment properties located in the PRC.
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32.

33.

Deferred Tax Liabilities (continued) 32, EEBIEAME ()
Under the EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on RBIEBPEMSHZE - N\EFE—HF—Hi#
dividends in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries 5 24 kAR BB B R R AT BRER A FDE 2 Ak B
from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation of EHH BHE—Z—hE+-_A=1+—81%
HK$23,922,000 (2014: HK$21,879,000) in respect of & R EE B A 5 K 7158 239,220,000 T (=
distributable profit of PRC entities amounting of T — M4 : 235,370,000 7T ) P 1 58 2 i i
HK$239,220,000 (2014: HK$235,370,000) have been 18 /23,922,000 7% T ( =& — M 4 : 21,879,000
provided during the year ended 31 December 2015. At HBIT) c RIEEIR - SIB A RIRD IR Z A
the end of the reporting period, the aggregate amount of EENRAETRUEZRENWRERAR/ELE
temporary differences associated with undistributed & A279,801,000% t( = T — I F:
earnings of subsidiaries for which deferred tax liabilities 213,628,000 7T ) ° BLA E & B )8 B HEREM
have not been recognised was HK$279,801,000 (2014: A& EAANEEARE D15 =R = E D
HK$213,628,000). No liability has been recognised in MEMHE > EEEZRAA L T2 T8 R AR
respect of these differences because the Group is in a (o] o
position to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that such
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused REHEEER AEBEBE R HHE
tax losses of approximately HK$766.2 million (2014: &5 18 #766,200,000% T( = T — @ F:
HK$586.8 million) available for offset against future profits. 586,800,000/ 7T ) A] A {FK 8 B 125 A » B R
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of Hig s Mm e ATER - it EF RS FHIW
tax losses for both years due to unpredictability of future ER R EEERERREHIEEE - FEBOM
profit streams. The tax losses in Hong Kong may be BRIEEIEL AT ERHALEE - MESREK L
carried forward indefinitely. The unrecognised tax losses M B AREE 2 RERTIAB RS SN T5F
arising from subsidiaries operated in the PRC will expire as EE
follows:
2015 2014
Tax losses expiring in WMIBEERE 2 1 —ZE—EHF —FT—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET
2015 —E—AF - 21,556
2016 —E—RF 20,951 20,951
2017 T —tF 23,096 23,096
2018 —T—)\F 76,161 79,212
2019 —E—NF 181,498 182,010
2020 —E-FF 207,832 -
509,538 326,825
During the year ended 31 December 2015, approximately BE_Z—AF+A=+—HLEFE" &
HK$21.6 million (2014: HK$32.9 million) tax losses expired. 21,600,000 7t (== —PU4F : 32,900,000 % 7T)
ZHIARIRE AR -
Amount Due to a Non-Controlling 33.

Shareholder of Subsidiaries

The amount is unsecured and interest free. The non-
controlling shareholder of subsidiaries agreed not to
demand for repayment within one year from the end of
the reporting period.

EBAMEAR—BFEERKRRZK
|

ZRBRERRL LR o B AR ZIFERR
RAB TG ERAEREMRE—FAEETR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) #R& B R MisE (&)
for the year ended 31 December 2015 #Z = —AF+-A=+—HILFE

34. S
D

hare Capital

etails of the changes in the Company’s share capital

during both years are as follows:

34. RA
BEXFRSFE  ARRAZRABHHENT :

Number of
shares Amount
KRHOEE MIE
HK$'000
FHET
Authorised: ERE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.005 each as RZZE-WFE—-A—H -
at 1 January 2014, 31 December 2014 —E-NE+-_A=+—H
and 31 December 2015 r=E—hF+-A=+—H
SRRMEE0.005 82 il 4,000,000,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: BERITRER -
At 1 January 2014 RZE—MNF—A—H 1,650,341,000 8,252
Exercise of share options — ordinary shares of TEEBAE — SR mE
HK$0.005 each (note a) 0.0058 .2 E@A% (Fizta) 2,310,000 "
Shares repurchased (note b) FE el Bt (Miztb) (23,266,000) (116)
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE—NE&E+=-—A=+—H 1,629,385,000 8,147
Shares repurchased (note b) FE Bl Bt (MiEtb) (26,798,500) (134)
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RF+-A=+—H 1,602,586,500 8,013
Notes: B 5 -
(a) During the year ended 31 December 2014, 22,000 shares of (a) HE-ZT—NE+-_A=1+—H AQaRE

HK$0.005 each were issued at HK$6.16 per share upon
exercise of the 2005 share option under the 2004 Share
Option Scheme (as defined under note 35) and 2,288,000
shares of HK$0.005 each were issued at HK$6.40 per share
upon exercise of the 2009 share option under the 2009
Share Option Scheme (as defined under note 35) of the
Company by share option holders and all these shares rank
pari passu with other ordinary shares of the Company in all
respects.

MR E ATTERE _STNF 2 BREFE
(AR RE 35 MFERR) W — 2T R F W IE MR B
“EEAFZBEREE (W3 AEE) B
“TTNFHERER D ISR 616BITETT
22,000 % & % T {8 0.005 % 7T 2 B 17 & 42 & ik
6.407% 7T 3% 17 2,288,000 % &F fi% [ {8 0.005 /& 7T
2Bt FTAZERNNE N EHEARTE
hEBEFERSES -
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34. Share Capital (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

34.

(b)  During the year, the Company repurchased its own shares

on the Stock Exchange as follows:

Total number of

IS (48)
GERNCH)

b)  FR - ARFREBZAEEQRBRGFHBHT

ordinary shares Price per share Aggregate

repurchased SREE consideration

Month of repurchased EfE 2 EER Highest Lowest paid
B85 A 4 REEE BB B BIHEHE
HK$ HK$ HK$'000

BT BT FHET

March 2015 4,395,500 13.52 13.22 59,015
April 2015 4,858,500 14.70 14.14 70,595
May 2015 10,260,000 14.62 13.96 146,268
June 2015 1,768,000 14.48 13.76 25,000
August 2015 4,632,500 13.08 11.70 57,317
September 2015 884,000 12.10 11.62 10,568
26,798,500 368,763

In prior year, the Company repurchased its own shares on

the Stock Exchange as follows:

Total number of

REF  ARARBZAER AR RGO BN

T

ordinary shares Price per share Aggregate

repurchased SREE consideration

Month of repurchased B EER Highest Lowest paid
=5 A 4 RBEEE B& BIE BRNEHE
HK$ HK$ HK$'000

BT BT FHET

February 2014 —E—mFE=A 1,271,500 15.54 15.24 19,499
March 2014 —T-NF=A 11,258,500 15.48 14.48 168,880
April 2014 —E—UFMA 5,216,500 16.06 14.94 81,414
May 2014 —T—NFHA 3,278,500 15.26 14.66 49,263
June 2014 —E—FERA 2,241,000 15.12 14.78 33,557
23,266,000 352,613
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35. Share-Based Payment Transactions

The 2004 Share Option Scheme

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted for a period of 10 years commencing 27 March
2004. Under the Scheme, the Company may grant options
to selected full-time employees and directors of the
Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in
the Company. Additionally, the Company may, from time
to time, grant share options to eligible advisors and
consultants to the Company and its subsidiaries at the
discretion of the board of directors of the Company (the
"Board of Directors”).

The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to
exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
point of time, without prior approval from the Company's
shareholders. The number of shares issued and to be
issued in respect of which options granted and may be
granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted
to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
point in time, without prior approval from the Company'’s
shareholders. Options granted to substantial shareholders,
independent non-executive directors, or any of their
respective associates (including a discretionary trust whose
discretionary objects include a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director or any of their
respective associates) in excess of 0.1% of the Company's
share capital or with a value in excess of HK$5,000,000
must be approved by the Company’s shareholders.

Option granted must be taken up within the time limit
specified in the offer letter (which shall not be later than 5
days from the date of offer), upon payment of HK$1 per
option. Options may be exercised at any time during a
period commencing on or after the date on which the
option is accepted and deemed to be granted and
expiring on a date to be notified by the Board of Directors
to each grantee which shall not be more than 10 years
from the date on which the option is accepted and
deemed to be granted. The exercise price is determined
by the directors of the Company, and will not be less than
the higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares
on the date of grant, (ii) the average closing price of the
shares for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company'’s share.

The 2004 Share Option Scheme expired on 26 March
2014.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) #R& B R MisE (&)
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35. Share-Based Payment Transactions

(continued)

The 2009 Share Option Scheme

The adoption of a new share option scheme (the “2009
Share Option Scheme”) was approved by the shareholders
of the Company in an extraordinary general meeting held
on 3 March 2009 for a period of 10 years commencing
from 3 March 2009 as incentive or reward for the
contribution of the eligible participants to the growth of
the Group and to provide to the Group with a more
flexible means to reward, remunerate, compensate and/or
provide benefits to the eligible participants.

Under the 2009 Share Option Scheme, the Company may
grant options to (a) any full-time or part-time employee of
the Company and/or any subsidiary; (b) any directors
(including executive, non-executive and independent non-
executive director) of the Company and/or any subsidiary;
and (c) any consultant or adviser (whether professional or
otherwise and whether on an employment or contractual
or honorary basis or otherwise and whether paid or
unpaid), distributor, contractor, supplier, service provider,
agent, customer and business partner of the Company
and/or any subsidiary who, at the sole determination of
the Board of Directors, have contributed or will contribute
to the Company and/or any subsidiary.

There is no general requirement on the minimum period
for which an option must be held or the performance
targets which must be achieved before an option can be
exercised under the terms of the 2009 Share Option
Scheme. However, the Board of Directors may offer to
grant any options subject to such terms and conditions in
relation to the minimum period of the options to be held
and/or the performance targets to be achieved before
such options can be exercised and/or any other terms as
the Board of Directors may determine in its absolute
discretion.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options which may be granted under the
2009 Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company must not, in aggregate, exceed
166,860,950 shares, representing 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at 3 March 2009, the date on
which the 2009 Share Option Scheme was approved by
the shareholders of the Company. The Board of Directors
may seek approval by shareholders in general meeting to
renew such limit provided that it must not exceed 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company at the date of
approval of the renewed limit. The maximum aggregate
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the 2009 Share Option Scheme and any other
scheme must not exceed such number of shares as shall
represent 30% of the issued share capital of the Company
from time to time.

35. R IRRZ ()

“EENFHERES
RARBERN-_ZETZNF=ZA=ZAETZRR
FrRIRE LB B 8I( —Z2FN
FHEEREASED B -ZTTNF=A=ZBEAR
H+F FRAEBSEEHASEERFL
BRI B EEE - Wi AR EE AE i
SBEREERHEE B WEE IR
HAEA -

BE-_ZZNFHERETS ARRARTH
FEBET (a) AR B 2 SAEAATH B A Al 2 el 2
B EBRE  (b) AR R KRS M E R A
ZAERES (BIENT - JEIT B IFRITE
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KRR R/ A B R REL BRI Z AR F]
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35. Share-Based Payment Transactions

(continued)

The 2009 Share Option Scheme (continued)

Where options are proposed to be granted to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company or any of their respective
associates, and the proposed grant of options will result in
the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all options already granted and to be granted
(including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding)
to such person in the 12-month period up to and including
the date of such grant representing in aggregate over
0.1% of the issued share capital of the Company on the
date of offer and having an aggregate value, based on the
closing price of the shares at the date of each grant, in
excess of HK$5 million, such grant of options must be
subject to the approval of the shareholders taken on a poll
at general meeting. The connected person involved in
such proposed grant of options and all other connected
persons of the Company must abstain from voting in such
general meeting (except that any connected person may
vote against the proposed grant provided that his
intention to do so has been stated in the relevant circular
to the shareholders).

Option granted must be taken up within the time limit
specified in the offer letter (which shall not be later than 5
days from the date of offer), upon payment of HK$1 on
acceptance of the offer. Options may be exercised at any
time during a period to be notified by the Board of
Directors to each grantee which shall not be more than 10
years from the date of the offer. The exercise price is
determined by the directors of the Company, and will be
at least the highest of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares on the date of grant, (ii) the average
closing price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company's share.
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35. Share-Based Payment Transactions

(continued)
The 2009 Share Option Scheme (continued)

35. R IRRZ ()
—EEThFBRESTE (8

Details of specific categories of options are as follows: BFERRBREZFRNT
Adjusted
Vesting Exercise Exercise exercise
Option type Date of grant period period price price
RRE
BREES BB BEH T TEE T8
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Under the 2004 Share Option Scheme
TE 2004 EEHE R &I T
2005 7.10.2005 7.10.2005 - 7.10.2006 — 12.32 6.16
7.10.2008 26.3.2014 (note 1)
—ZTThE —ZThE “ZThETALREZE % 7/\£E—I_ﬂ'tElj: GER
+TAtH —ZTN\F+AtH —mFE=ZAZ+7H
2007C 31.8.2007 31.8.2007 - 1.10.2008 — 37.00 18.50
1.10.2010 26.3.2014 (note 1)
“ERLEFER “RRLEH “ZZ+EN\A=+—BE ZTZN\F+A—RHZE GED)
NA=+—H —T-ZF+TAR—H —mE=A=+<H
Under the 2009 Share Option Scheme
FE2009 FHERR T 2T
2009 (note 2) 2.2.2009 (note 3) 2.2.2009 - 7.2.2010 - 6.40 6.40
7.2.2012 26.3.2014
“ETAF(WE2) —TEAF “ETNF-_AZAE “E-TE_ALHE
ZAZH(HEE3) ZT——FZAtH ZT-mF=A=+H
Notes: Bt -
(1) The exercise price had been adjusted upon sub-division of (1) EROHNR-_ZZ+LFNA -+ EBHH001ET

)

(©)

shares of the Company of HK$0.01 to HK$0.005 on 27
September 2007.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, 20,400,000 share
options were newly granted as replacement for the
cancelled share options under option types of 2007A and
2007B and this is accounted for as a modification of the
original share options.

Option subject to approval by independent shareholders
was proposed and granted by the Board of Directors on 2
February 2009. The approval was subsequently obtained on
3 March 2009, which is the date of grant as defined in
accordance with HKFRS 2.

4= 0.005/8 7T

@ BUE—ZEAF+-A=+—BLLFE £A2
A]#7 % 1 20,400,000 17 i A 4 - LA
tFFRR-_ETLFLBEREERATE

B TTEECRTE -

ZFERRHE - X AR R A 2 T AR -

B EFERN_TTAF_A_BEHARREER
3%1%?&&&25\%%% '

F] EE’X SHUE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) #R& B R MisE (&)
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35.

36.

Share-Based Payment Transactions
(continued)

35. RMIIRKZ ()

The 2009 Share Option Scheme (continued) “EZhFBRETS (E)
The following table discloses movements of the TREBETRENRESHAHARRBERE L
Company'’s share options held by certain employees and ZE -
directors:
Outstanding at
Outstanding Exercised Lapsed 31 December
at 1 January during during 2014 and
2014 the year the year 2015
R-E-DOF
+=ZA=+—-H
R-ZE-OF kK=Z-5fF
—A—H +=A=+-H
Option type i RATRE FRTE FRER i RATE
2005 22,000 (22,000) - -
2007C 17,020,000 - (17,020,000) -
2009 2,336,000 (2,288,000 (48,000) -
Total g 19,378,000 (2,310,000 (17,068,000) -
Exercisable at end of the year RERE] FIT(E ~
HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Weighted average exercise FRRINETFIITEE
price per share 17.03 6.40 18.47 -

In respect of the share options exercised in 2014 , the
weighted average closing share price of the Company
immediately before the exercise dates and at the dates of
exercise was HK$14.73 (2015: nil) and HK$14.95 (2015: nil),
respectively.

Reserve

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for
foreign investment enterprises in the PRC, the Company'’s
PRC subsidiaries are required to maintain a statutory
surplus reserve fund. Appropriation to such reserve is
made out of net profit after taxation as reflected in the
statutory financial statements of the PRC subsidiaries while
the amounts and allocation basis are decided by its board
of directors annually. The statutory surplus reserve fund
can be used to make up prior year losses, if any, and can
be applied in conversion into capital by means of
capitalisation.

E-ZT-NFERACTEERENS  BROREE
BERERETFERR — R REBRETTER Z hnE
FHWTHED B AE1473ET (T —HE « &)
B149SBT (T —H4F ) -

36. f#E
AT EINES LY AR AR AA
AzhENBEATAREEC RSB ARES -5
B 5% 1 > 18 2K U 3 9 BB B 8 O R B S 4R
KTBBEMF  MRBERHIEEERESS
BERE - AT RBAELTANBERBES
2B IR(INE) - AT AE AL iR A
B o
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37. Operating Leases 37. REHEY

The Group as lessee AEEERABEA
2015 2014
—E-AfF —E—-mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Minimum lease payments paid under FARBLELEHEOERNZ
operating leases during the year: AR A RRIE

Other assets E & E 654 583
Leasehold land and buildings HE+IHRET 300,667 251,583
301,321 252,166

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
incurred HK$84,919,000 (2014: HK$30,453,000) contingent
rents which was based on certain percentage of sales.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases (fixed rent only) which
fall due as follows:

HE-_Z-—hA+-_A=1+—HBIEE K&
BEIZHEER T E D AT % 584,919,000
7T (—Z—P04E : 30,453,000 7T) °

RIE MRS A - AR E R TA RUSE R
02 FiRE B AR ER O R0E(RREEAS)
mT

2015 2014

=F-1F —TmEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

TFERT FHET

Within one year —FER 219,474 217,418
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EZERF(BEEREMF) 859,537 923,234
Over five years HBidhF 998,877 1,189,989
2,077,888 2,330,641

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for certain of its leasehold land and building
amounting to HK$2,077,164,000 (2014: HK$2,329,940,000)
and other assets amounting of HK$724,000 (2014:
HK$701,000).

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for leasing commercial properties and other
assets which represented machineries and rentals payable
are predetermined at fixed amounts except for certain
lease of which contingent rental are charged based on
certain percentage of sales. Leases are generally
negotiated for terms ranging from one to five years and
rentals are fixed for terms ranging from one to two years
except the followings:

(@) Lease of Shanghai Joinbuy Cityplaza by Shanghai
Ongoing Department Store Limited, a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, for the period
from 1 October 2004 to 30 September 2024, with an
option to renew for a further 10 years upon the
request from Shanghai Ongoing Department Store
Limited not less than 12 months before the expiry of
the lease terms.

KERAOFEEHRAEERAE L 1
REREX2,077,164,0008 0 ( — & — U4 -
2,329,940,000 8 7T ) Mgt B At & & 7 15 724,000
BT (ZZ—PO4E : 701,000 7)) WS -

REBORIBREANEEREREAEDE R EAM
BE(BeR) BN 2 S - MEN ZEERITE
EEBEMNTRE R 7T —LRIBHERLOS
RO AR £ 9T A9 - A —RIEEH —
EREHE HEEERE —=MFEE - H
AT ERANBRSN -

@@ ARFBEZEMBARLEAXBESR
RABMEIEBMLEEBENABRTESZ
B HME—_TTONF+A-REZ
T_MFRA=TRH - AEERE-SE
Bt+F BELBAXBERRAFELE
HEMRER TR+ ZEARRESL

=%
R
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37. Operating Leases (continued) 37. BEHEO (E\)

(b) Lease of the Elegance, at Sheraton of Sheraton Hotel (b) =X (EH)FTIN A ML ERBE LT
at the junction of Nathan Road and Salisbury Road, TEMESR 7 EREBEZROA -
Kowloon by Sogo HK for the period from 15 July T-NFELtA+AEHE=ZZE=_=F+A
2014 to 14 July 2023. +mA -

The Group as lessor AEBFERHEA

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has REREHRHGEER  AEEZHEEFTONE

contracted with tenants for the following future minimum EEEBNRIERAT :

lease payments:

2015 2014
—E-hf%F —E-mEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within one year —F R 67,729 84,335
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EZERAF (RREEEMT) 80,043 115,858
Over five years B AF - 1,842
147,772 202,035
Leases are generally negotiated for terms ranging from A —RIZHERH - ZEAFHE -
one to five years.
In addition, the Group had contracted with its PO REEEE ST ERERIRSTEEE ¥
concessionaires to receive contingent rentals based on FWMAAESILFRARPHE—EMF2E
the concessionaires’ turnover for terms ranging from one # o
to two years.
38. Capital Commitments 38. EAKIE
2015 2014
—E-REF —T—AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition of ~ BB AWE - ME LREN
property, plant and equipment and YHEBEREE ZEARAY
property development project:
— Authorised but not contracted for — BEREMERETAY 3,483,100 4,085,400
— Contracted for but not provided — BETAMERR
in the consolidated financial statements A B RREE 1,107,076 1,616,200
4,590,176 5,701,600
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39.

40.

Pledge of Assets

At 31 December 2015, the Group has pledged certain
leasehold land and buildings in Hong Kong with carrying
values of HK$1,325.5 million (2014: HK$1,369.9 million),
together with shares of the Company’s certain
subsidiaries, to secure the available banking facilities of
HK$3,465.4 million (2014: HK$4,065.9 million) granted to
the Group.

Certain of the Group's property, plant and equipment in
the PRC, prepaid lease payments and properties under
development with carrying value of approximately
HK$3,615.2 million (2014: HK$3,003.3 million), HK$2,848.7
million (2014: HK$3,802.8 million) and HK$778.7 million
(2014: nil), respectively, have been pledged to secure loan
facilities in the amount of approximately RMB2,736.3
million (equivalent to approximately HK$3,228.8 million)
(2014: RMB3,040.0 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$3,787.8 million)). In addition, financial assets at FVTPL
with carrying value of approximately HK$1,174.7 million
(2014: HK$1,790.2 million) have been pledged to secure
loan facilities in the amount of approximately US$255.0
million (equivalent to approximately HK$1,976.3 million)
(2014: US$255.0 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,976.3 million)).

Related Party Disclosure

(a) Transactions
During the year, the Group had entered into the
following significant transactions with the following
related parties.

39.

40.

EEERM

R-_E—RE+-_A=+—H K&£EBEE
BF T 8 /2 1,325,500,0000 7T ( — & — [0 £ :
1,369,900,000/8 L) (LR E B 2B THE L&
B ERAARETHBARRGIRE  EA
7R & B IR 1T A] A Y B8 & A 3,465,400,000 75 7T
(ZZF P04 : 4,065,900,000787T) °

AEEBMRRBENYE - BFE MEE - BAHE
EXELEEDPYE FEED ALY
3,615,200,0007% 7T ( == — P4 £ : 3,003,300,000
7 JT )~ 2,848,700,000/8 ;t( — & — U 4 ¢
3,802,800,0003% 7T ) }778,700,0008 7T ( — &
—PO4 TR DAERIS 49 A R 15 2,736,300,000
7T (374 #93,228,800,00038 70) (—ZF—PU4F © A
R 3,040,000,0007T (374 #93,787,800,000/%5 7))
ZEFEEE o N - K9BRTIE A 1,174,700,000 7
TR AT EFAEBS 2 EMEE(ZZT—NF :
1,790,900,000% JT. ) 1K 8 LA EL 15 49 255,000,000
ETT(FREF491,976,300,00058 70 ) (—ZF —PU4F -
255,000,000 2 7t (4948 & 72 1,976,300,0007 7T ) )
ERRERE -

BEREALTHE

(a) X3
FR AEBCGHEATHEBEATET
THERRS :

2015 2014
—E-AF —E—-mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Nature of related parties transactions MEMEATHRZZEE
(i) Rental and management fee paid to BT EBNERTESERDR
Shanghai Joinbuy City Plaza Co., Ltd. (%488 0% 2HE R
(“Property JV") (notes 1 and 4) ERE (M1 k4) 245,367 224,803
(i) Loan interest income received from MYESECEWEZER
Property JV (notes 1 and 4)* FLSUA (P EE1 ] 4)* 3,011 3,561
(i) Loan interest expenses paid to AMELRECESHZ
Property JV (notes 1 and 4)* B8 (1 Rd)* 375 839
(iv)  Concessionaire income received from MEAXEHREEEEGR AT
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group REMBEAR(AXRKRESRE])
Limited and its subsidiaries Wz EEEA (3 Kk4)
("CTF Jewellery Group”)
(notes 3 and 4) 39,913 47,330
(v)  Rental, vetting fee, air-conditioning MESERARAR(ES])
charges and management fee paidto Y ZH4E « BHER -
Hong Kong Island Development EREREESE (MT2Rk4)
Limited (“"Hong Kong Island”)
(notes 2 and 4) - 14,442
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40. Related Party Disclosure (continued)

Transactions (continued)
Notes:

(a)

(b)

M

@

@)

Property JV is a joint venture in which the Group has a
50% interest.

Dato’ Dr. Cheng Yu-tung and Dr. Cheng Kar-shun,
Henry, (former directors of the Company who retired
from the directors on 4 May 2015), have control over
Hong Kong Island. As such, Hong Kong Island was a
related party of the Group.

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited is an
associate of Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited which
is an investment holding company of which the family
members of Dato’ Dr. Cheng Yu-tung (the former
chairman and non-executive director of the Company
who retired from the Board on 4 May 2015) have
controlling interest. As such, CTF Jewellery Group is a
connected person of the Company. The agreement
and the transactions contemplated thereunder
constitute continuing connected transactions for the
Company.

The Group's related party transactions were carried
out in accordance with the terms and conditions
mutually agreed by the contracting parties.

At 31 December 2015, concessionaire sales payable
included amounts HK$32,108,000 (2014:
HK$41,823,000) aged within 30 days due to CTF
Jewellery Group. The amount was trading in nature
and related to payables arising from concessionaire
sales. These trading balances are unsecured, non-
interest bearing and repayable according to the terms
of the concessionaire dealership agreement.

These transactions constitute connected transactions
but are exempted from complying with the disclosure
requirements under the Listing Rules.

Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of executive directors during the
year was determined by the remuneration committee
having regard to the performance of the individuals
and market. Details of which together with the other
4 highest paid management personnel are disclosed
in note 14 above.
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41. Retirement Benefits Schemes

Hong Kong

The Group participates in a defined contribution scheme
under Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance
("ORSO Scheme”) and Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
("MPF Scheme”).

For members of the MPF Scheme, both the Group and the
employee contribute 5% of the employee’s relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$25,000 with effect from 1 June 2013 and revised to
HK$30,000 with effect from 1 June 2014 for the MPF
ordinance. No forfeited contribution was available to
reduce the contribution payable in the future years.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions
from both employees and the Group at 5% of the
employee.

PRC

The employees of the Group in the PRC are members of
state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by
the respective local governments in relevant jurisdictions.
The Group is required to contribute and recognise a
specified percentage of payroll costs to the schemes to
fund the benefits. The only obligations of the Group with
respect to these schemes are to make the specified
contributions and recognise the respective retirement pay
in accordance with terms set out in the schemes and
relevant jurisdiction requirements.

The total cost charged to profit or loss in respect of the
above-mentioned schemes amounted to HK$18,857,000
(2014: HK$19,259,000).
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42. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries 42. FENBARFE
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At 31 December 2015 and 2014, the details of the
Company'’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place/Date of incorporation/

Issued and fully paid

RZF-—RAFR=_FT-—NF+_A=+—H"
ARRMERAZEIZHBARFENT

Proportion of ownership interests

Name of company establishment and operation share capital/registered capital held by the Group (note) Principal activities
AMAIRE£BH
NAER NRERALAH BRTRES/EMEA FEERERAREDD (W) ITER
2015 2014 2015 2014
“E-1f —F-IE Z2-1f —3-mE
Ample Sun Group Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 HK$10,000 60% 60%  Investment holding
BREDERAT 17 August 2007 10,000% 7 10,0007 RABR
“EREE\ATLH
Congenial Company Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 HK$10,000,000 100% 100%  General trading and
24 April 1981 10,000,000 % 70 10,000,000/ 7T property holding
BE -REZRMERA
-AN\-ERA=+0A
Eastlord Development Limited Hong Kong HK$500,000 HK$500,000 100% 100%  Property holding and leasing
MEERERAF 21 August 1987 500,000 %7 500,000 7T NENEREE
- EENAZT-R
Everwin Worldwide Limited Hong Kong HK$2 HKS2 100% 100%  Property leasing
XERRARLA 17 November 2000 287 287 ik
SRRTEL-ATLE
Fine Shine Limited Hong Kong HK$2 HKS2 100% 100% ~ License holder
BRERLA 11 September 2003 28T 2ET FTEREA
“EREEAAT-R
Forceworld Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$500,000 HK$500,000 100% 100%  Property holding
ARREERAA 15 July 1988 500,000 7 50000077 ST
“AMN\ELATIR
Future Develop Limited British Virgin Islands/ Us$3 Us$3 100% 100%  Investment holding
Hong Kong 3%n 3% REER
12 December 2003
_H
Glory Line Management Limited Hong Kong HK$500,000 HK$500,000 100% 100%  Provision of property
BEERERAT 5 September 1995 500,000 % 0 5000007 security and
Bk management services
—ANEFNARR RENZRZLERRE
Grand Kinetic Limited Hong Kong HKS2 HKS2 100% 100%  Property holding and leasing
Z2ERAA 7 February 2001 28T 28T NERAREE
R
“ET-H-A4R
Lifestyle Properties Cayman Islands/Hong Kong HK$41,911,400 HKS41,911,400 59.56% 59.56%  Investment holding
HEnE 5 January 2012 41,911,400 7 H.911400%7 REER
R2ke/ 2k
—E--%-f1A
LS Finance (2017) Limited British Virgin Islands/ Uss$1 US$1 100% 100%  Financing
Hong Kong 127 (Eo RATH
1 November 2011
LREARES /B
“F——%#+-A-8
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&l
%
42. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries 42. FEME R BFE (&) =
(continued) B’E
N
Place/Date of incorporation/ Issued and fully paid Proportion of ownership interests %
Name of company establishment and operation share capital/registered capital held by the Group (note) Principal activities :
AMALRE DS
rAER HRERRIEH BRARES/ERRA EEESEEARDD (W) TEEH =
2015 014 2015 214 =
“3-1f “F-pE g-1f —T-pE -
il
LS Finance (2022) Limited British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 US$1 100% 100%  Financing &
Hong Kong 1371 157 REZH F
27 September 2012 5
“E-CEARZTLA
LS Finance (2025) Limited British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 - 100% - Financing
Hong Kong 127 AR
2June 2015
ARBEREE /TR
“F-RF/AZA
Pacific Trump Development Limited Hong Kong HK$2 HKS2 100% 100%  Property holding and leasing
HEERARLA 6.July 1995 2R 28T NEFEREE
&
“MEELARE
Public Might Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 HK$1,000 100% 100%  Property investment and
HEARAA 30 August 1984 1,000% 7% 100077 provision of bulding
& managementservices
-M\BENRZTH MERERREAR
BRIk
Ronson Kwok Asia Pacific Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 HK$1,000,000 100% 100%  Building management
5October 1993 1,000,000 7 1,000,000%7T and club operator
0 REEBREMEE
-MZETAER
Sogo Hong Kong Company Limited Hong Kong HK$4,000,000 HK$4,000,000 100% 100%  Retailing business
SX(BAR)BEARAR 23 September 1983 4,000,000 %7 400000057 TEEK
&k
-MZEAAZTZR
Superlite Limited British Virgin Islands/ Uss1 US$1 100% 100%  Property holding
Hong Kong 127 15T ES
3 April 2001
ARBEREE/BE
“ET-F¥MAZA
FEAXBERRAT* PRC Us$12,000,000 US$12,000,000 65% 65% Retalling business
(Shanghai Ongoing Department 26 July 2004 12,000,000 %75 12,000000% 7 TEER
Store Limited) FEAREM
“FERELAZT/A
Wingold Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 HK$10,000 60% 60%  Investment holding
REARAA 20 April 2007 10,0007 1000077 RERR
&
“ERLEMA-TR
HhEB2EE (LB ARAA PRC RMB2,500,000,000 RMB2,500,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
23 April 2012 ARM2,500,0000007 | ARH25000000007 RENR
HEARSA
“F-CEPNAZTZA
LEMEREEERAT PRC RMB15,000,000 RMB15,000,000 100% 100%  Retailing business
31 March 2012 ARH15,000,0007T | AR 150000007 TERH
HEARAAE
ZE3-CEZA=t-H
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42. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries 42. FENEBARIFE (&)
(continued)
Place/Date of incorporation/ Issued and fully paid Proportion of ownership interests
Name of company establishment and operation share capital/registered capital held by the Group (note) Principal activities
BRI
NAEE HRERALAH BRIRES /R FEERERARSA (W) IBER
2015 2014 2015 2014
“2-1% —F-IE “2-1% —E2-pE
FESRELARA PRC RMB710,090,392 RMB710090,392 100% 100% Retalling business
1 December 2006 AR710,090,392 7T ARET10090,3927 TEER
PEARANE
ZERRETZR-H
EBREEEARAT PRC U5$89,990,000 15$89,990,000 59.56% 59.56%  Property holding
12 March 2007 89,990,000 7 89,990,000 % HEST]
PEAREANE
“REREEZATCA
HRES (BN BRAR PRC RMB683,955,600 RMBE83,955,600 100% 100%  Retailing business
Lifestyle Plaza (Suzhou) 1 March 2007 AR 683,955,600 7T AR 683,955,600 T TELK
Co., Limited FEAREAE
“ZRrEZA-A
HEBHE(KE)BRAR PRC U5$45,000,000 1S$45,000,000 100% 100%  Retailing business
9 October 1993 45,000,000 45,000,007 TEEK
PEARLAE
“AMZETANE
EERE(EE)ARAT PRC RMB225,000,000 RMB225,000,000 59.56% 5956% Property holding
Lifestyle Plaza (Qingdao) Co., Limited 31 December 1995 AR 225,000,000 & AR 225,000,000 T NERE
hEAREAE
“MNEETZAZ+-R
BERTREEARAR PRC US$18,000,000 US518,000,000 59.56% 5956%  Property holding
16 October 1995 18,000,000 %70 18,000,000% 7T nERE
PEARRAE
“ANEETATAHE

a sino-foreign equity joint venture established in the PRC.
wholly foreign-owned enterprises established in the PRC.

Note: Lifestyle Properties is directly held by the Company. Other
subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

* MHBRIZZ FIMEE R
= RRBRIZIZ 2N ERE

Mizt : FIBMERBARTEESTA - RMHBLRR
HMARBREEREE ©
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42. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries 42. FEME R BFE (&) =

(continued) i

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, LRI EETRATELEREEBEE IK%

in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally BEZMBAR -EFRA BEAMKER %
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give details AIEMEEYFIERAEK -

of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors -

of the Company, result in particulars of excessive length. =

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has REEHHER AR A2 EMHE QR E A% Eil

other subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. A BEREEATE AL/ ZEMBRAREES F

majority of these subsidiaries operate in Hong Kong and FAhEgE - ZEMBAR 2 E2 BN f&

e

the PRC. The principal activities of these subsidiaries are
summarised as follows:

Principal activities

Principal place of business

T

Number of subsidiaries

FEER TELE MELRHE

2015 2014

e i —T—mF

Restaurant operator Hong Kong 2 2

PRC 1 1
T

3 3

Securities investment Hong Kong 6 7
BHEE EE

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that none
of the Group’s subsidiaries that has non-controlling
interests are material to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole and therefore, the financial
information in respect of those subsidiaries that has non-
controlling interests are not presented.

RAREEFRR  AEHEIWRE HREMBR
REBASAPE GEIFEREaZEAR
B BULERZENB AR ZMBERNILIZA

271 -
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43. Statement of Financial Position and 43. XA R BEMRR TR FEE
Reserves of the Company \
Information about the statement of financial position of REEHEER R - ARRIFHRARERE
the Company at the end of the reporting period includes: 7

2015 2014
—E-FE —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FA&T

Non-current asset FEREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries S EENGIE T 774,925 774,925
Amount due from a subsidiary (note a) FEW—RMBARIZIE(Msta) 3,081,617 -
3,856,542 774,925

Current assets BV EE
Other receivables H b pE UG FR T8 1,020 941
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note b) UM B A FZE (M sEb) 8,918,718 5,792,443
Bank balances and cash RITEF MRS 16,643 69,827
8,936,381 5,863,211
Current liabilities RBEE

Other payables Hith e FE 2,195 2,481
Amounts due to subsidiaries (note b) FEASHHTEE A R 5 E (st b) 9,938,407 4,182,813
Tax payable FEEBIE 185 197
9,940,787 4,185,491
Net current (liabilities) assets mE(BAE) EEFE (1,004,406) 1,677,720
2,852,136 2,452,645

Capital and reserves B R
Share capital A& 7N 8,013 8,147
Reserves S 2,844,123 2,444,498
2,852,136 2,452,645
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43. Statement of Financial Position and

Reserves of the Company (continued)

43. KA TR IR R R fEHE ()

Movement of the reserves of the Company is as follows: RARIMEEEBIT -
Capital Share-based
Share redemption payment Retained
premium reserve reserve profits Total
=& N e BB
R EE it s REEF met
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
At 1 January 2014 RZE—mFE—A—H 12,075 437 148,364 2,225,440 2,386,316
Profit and total comprehensive  ANEEHHM E 2 EBA
income for the year k) - - - 1,335,175 1,335,175
Share repurchase i qratidC
— premium on repurchase — BRIk 2 EE
of shares (29,110) - - (323,387) (352,497)
— transfer — - 116 - (116) -
Exercise and lapse of FERR R T AR
share options 17,035 - (148,364) 146,096 14,767
Dividends paid BIRARE - - - (939,263) (939,263)
At 31 December 2014 RZZE—F
+=-A=+—H - 553 - 2,443,945 2,444,498
Profit and total comprehensive AN H | & 2 E KA
income for the year JE%E - - - 1,789,439 1,789,439
Share repurchase & 17 B a1
— premium on repurchase — BRERG 2 HE
of shares - - - (368,629) (368,629)
— transfer — - 134 - (134) -
Dividends paid BIRARE - - - (1,021,185) (1,021,189)
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—AF
+=ZA=+—8 - 687 - 2,843,436 2,844,123
Notes: B 3
a. The amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, interest- a. FEM — R B A F) 2 RIE T EIKIR - RBETH
bearing at prevailing interest rate and has no fixed KA BORBEEERGR - EFSRRIRE
repayment terms. In the opinion of the directors, based on HAME AR A E AR B EERKR SR Z
their assessment as at the end of the reporting period of the % ZeBEBTEERESHR—FURNESR -
estimated future cash flows from the subsidiary, the amount B D BRRIERENEE ©
due from a subsidiary will not be repayable within one year
from the end of the reporting period, accordingly the
amount is classified as non-current.
b. The amounts due from (to) subsidiaries are unsecured, b. Bl (A MBARZREREEER 28K
interest-free, and repayable on demand. BRENRBGEE -
c. Under the Company Law (2009 Revision) of the Cayman c. RIBEF S BHSRRIE(20091E5T) « ARFRZEK

Islands, the share premium of the Company is available for
distribution or paying dividends to shareholders subject to
the provisions of its memorandum or articles of association
and provided that immediately following the distribution of
dividends, the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business. The Company's
reserve available for distribution as at 31 December 2015
consisted of retained profits of HK$2,843,436,000 (2014:
HK$2,443,945,000).

I (BRI R IR E A AR AR AR A M S AR Bl 2 4R
TERB D IR S AE RS M RFIRS - HEREER
BOIRE  ARRARENNSERBEEDR
BREFPENMZEE - R_FT-—HAF+_-H
=+t—R  AAFAHEDIRERESREBRNL
2,843,436,000 % 7T (=& — 04 : 2,443,945,000
ABIT) °
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FIVE-YEAR GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY
LFEEEMBRHE

Results

For the year ended 31 December

R\

BET-A=1+T—RHIEFE

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-RE —TE T —T-—fF —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHL FHL FHET FAT
(Restated)
(E7))
Turnover L] 6,171,393 5,969,740 5,955,335 5,523,443 5,131,950
Profit attributable to owners NG 2PN A
of the Company gl 1,914,392 2,143,994 2,448,247 2,057,461 1,867,170
Earnings per share (HK cents) SREF (OBIL)
— Basic — AR 118.7 1311 147.8 1235 Mm3
— Diluted — s 118.7 131.1 147.6 123.1 110.3
Total dividends per share Ttk S 2%
(HK cents) (ML) 63.2 59.1 59.1 494 44.9
Assets and Liabilities EERAE
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-1F —T-MmF —T=F —T-CF T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FAT FAT FHExT FAT
(Restated)
(&%)
Total assets BE®E 28,804,274 26,847,895 26,715,998 24,598,805 18,581,349
Total liabilities BlEEE (15,708,143) (13,858,982) (14,452,228) (14,116,780) (9,472,410)
Net assets BEFE 13,096,131 12,988,913 12,263,770 10,482,025 9,108,939
Non-controlling interests IEIE IR IR AE R (1,973,072) (1,886,546) (1,799,205) (933,474) (806,526)
Net assets attributable to YNSIE Y PN L
owners of the Company EEFE 11,123,059 11,102,367 10,464,565 9,548,551 8,302,413
Net assets per share (HK$) BREEFEGET) 8.17 7.97 7.43 6.30 546
Net assets per share attributable N2 &) B AJE(S
to owners of the Company (HK$) BREEFEGET) 6.94 6.81 6.34 574 498
Number of shares issued 2ETRMEE 1,602,586,500 1,629,385,000 1,650,341,000 1,664,921,500 1,667,513,500
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Lifestyle

International Holdings Ltd.

Ml ot BB % B OA R 2 A

Lifestyle International Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

20/F., East Point Centre, 555 Hennessy Road
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

FEEFRSEERRAE
(RSB BEMRIIERAR)
BB S EFNES555%
ERAFIO2018

Telephone: (852) 2833 8338
Facsimile: (852) 2838 2030
Email: info@lifestylehk.com.hk
www.lifestylehk.com.hk
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